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2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Order book -

firm and announced (£bn) 583 555 459 261 244 213 187 171 167 145
Underlying revenue (£m) 10,108 9,147 7817 7.353 6,458 5,947 5,645 5,788 6,328 5,864
Profit before financing (£m} 1,172 862 512 700 855 417 270 212 in 289
Underlying profit before tax (Em) 915 283 845 851 579 364 285 255 475 436
Underlying EBITDA (£m) 1,300 1,244 1,065 986 911 715 661 672 849 837
Return on capital employed (%) 17 4 171 172 160 145 85 77 72 i18 112

Cautlonary statement regarding forward looking statements.

This Annual report has been prepared for the members of the Company only The Company its duectors, emplayees or agents do not accept or assume responsibility to any other person in connection with this document
and any such responsibiliy or iability 1s expresshy disclamed This Annual report contans certain forward looking statements These forward fooking staternents can be identified by the fact that they do not refate only 1o
historical or current facts In parnicular all statements that express forecasts expectations and projections with respect to future matters, includng tiends in results of operations, margins, growth rates, overall market trends,
the impact of interest ot exchange rates the availzbility of Anancing to the Group anticpated <ast sawngs or synergies snd the completon of the Groups strategic transactions, are forward looking statements By therr nature
these statements and farecasts invalve nisk and uncertainty because they relate 1o events and depend on cwcumstances that may of may not occur in the future There are a number of factars that could cause actual resutts
or developments to differ matenally from those expressed or implied by these farward looking staternents and forecasts. The forward looking statements reflect the knowledge and infarmat:on avallable at the date of
preparatian of thrs Annual report and will not be updatad during the year Nothing i this Annual report should be construed as a profit forecast

Note The reconciliation of underlying revenues and results 1s provided in note 2 and on page 68 of the consohdated financial staternents

Directors report

The Directors present the Annual report for the year ended December 31 2009 which includes the business review and audited financial statements for the year Referencesto Rolls Royce

the Group the Company we o1 our are to Rolls RoyCe plc and/or its subsidiaries or any of them as the context may require Pages G110 53 inclusive of this Annual report comprise a Directors
report that has been drawn up and presented i accordance with English company law and the habiliies of the Directors in connection wath that report shall be subject to the hmitations and
restnctions provided by such law Rolls Royce plc 15 incorporated as a public imited company and 1s registered in England under the UK Companies Act 1585 with the registered number 1003142
Rolls Royce ple s regustered office 15 65 Buckingham Gate London SW1E 6AT
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. Directors’ report ___ Introduction

__Introduction
We have followed a consistent Cwllaerospace
Strategy for 20 yea rs a nd our Powering more than 30 cavil arrcrafi types from

small executive jets to the largest airliners

investment in technology,

together with our strong order Z£7_0bn £4481m
book, positions us well for Order ook Underyng revenue
future growth

Defence aerospace

An engine portfolio that covers all major
sectors including transpart, combart, rainers,
helicopters, tactical and unmanned arcraft

£6.5bn  £2,010m

Order book Underlying revenue

Marine

A world-class range of capabilities in ship
design and in the supply and support of
power and propulsion systems

£3.5bn  £2,589m

Order book Underying revenue

Energy

An established and leading position in
power for onshore and offshore cit and gas
applications, together with 2 growing
presence In POWer generation

£1.3bn  £1,028m

Order book Underlying revenue

—Raoils ke pic = AnnLa repor 2009
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__Chief Executive’s review

“Our resilience, coupled with the inherent
strength of our business model, will enable
us to manage short-term uncertainties and
deliver future growth”

[n 2009, Rolls-Royce has delivered solid results despite the severity
of the economic downturn, a performance which has again
demonstrated the benefits of pursuing a consistent strategy over
a long period This approach has created a broadly-based business
with deep customer knowledge, outstanding technology and
world-class people

Our financial resuits demonstrate the resilience of our business

The Groups order book increased 1o a record £58 3 billion with
underlying revenue growing 11 per cent to £10 1 bilhon and
underlying profit before tax improving four per cent to £915 million

The Group has a strong financial position with average cash balances
increasing by £259 million to £633 milion The trniennial valuaticn of
the Group’s largest pension scheme has just been completed and
confirms that 20105 cash funding will be maintained at a level similar
to that in 2009 This demonstrates the benefits of the early action
taken to amend the terms of the scheme and to adopt an investment
strategy that reduces volatility

The economic environment remains challenging and it seems
likety that world growth will be slower in the years ahead than it
has been in the past decade In these circumstances, we will benefit
from cur ability 1o access the world's faster growing markets where
there continues to be demand for investment in transport

and infrastructure

We will maintain our focus on cost reduction and improving our
operatnional efficiency At the same time we will continue to invest
in technology, n our product and service portfolio, n the capizal
assets required to delver growth, in cur international footprint and
In our people

A long-term business

It I1s important to recagnise that ours 1s a long-term business Typically,
our product and service lifecycles span 40-50 years and we invest in
technclogy programmes that fook five, ten, 20 years and more into
the future

A good example of this 1s the Avon engine In its latest version —
modified to produce significant improvements in power and efficiency
-1t s meeting the demands of customers In the ail and gas sector

Yet the Avan first entered the industrial gas turbine market 40 years ago
That engine In turn was derved from the criginal aero version, which
powered a Canberra aeroplane on the first non-stop, non-refuelling,

jet fight across the Atlanuc in 1951
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Examples like this show why 1t 15 so Imporiant to set our Group's progress
into a broad context This review will chart our progress over the past

ten years, dunng which we more than doubled our revenues and our
underlying profits This has provided us with a platform from which we
are confident we can grow our revenues by at least as much again in

the decade ahead

A very different company

We are now a very different company than we were ten years age This can
be measured in terms of our scale and geography, in terms of the range of
things we do and In terms of operational efficiency All this has made us a
more resilient business and has established a far broader foundation from
which to build revenues in the future A few facts and figures comparing
the Rolis-Royce of 1999 with today’s Group illustrate the point

Today, at any one time around 200,000 people are flying in arrcraft
powered by Rolls-Royce engines Our ability to keep those arcraft in the
sky 15 a powerful illustranion of the ‘mission crical’ nature of what we do
At peak times that figure can double, which means that the equivalent
of the population of Bristol s being kept aloft by Rolls-Royce engines
That 1s considerably more than double the number of people we were
flying a decade ago

We have become much more than a cvil aerospace company The
revenues from our marine, defence aerospace and energy businesses
have grown from £2 1 bilfion in 1999 to £5 6 billlon 1in 2009 (n 2009,
revenues from outside our civil aerospace business accounted for more
than half of Group revenues

We are becoming less dependent on our tradivonal markets of Europe and
North America These geographies which accounted for around 70 per cent
of our revenues In 1999, represent around 66 per cent of our revenues now
and that trend 15 set to continue, as mare than half our current order book
comes from Asia, South Amenca and the Middle East

Araund half our revenues come from services today compared 10
40 per cent a decade ago This represents an annual compound
growth I1n services of ten per cent

Throughout this perniod we have maintained our focus on costs

and :mproving operatonal efficiency Every year for the past ten

years, revenue per employee has increased, showing a 16 per cent
improverment in the year to £271,000 in 2009 We are now selling more
than twice as much as we were ten years ago, with 2,000 fewer pecple

Taken together, the pipeline of arders we have aleady signed our
ncreased market share, the growth and scale of our services business
and our focus on costs, underpin our confidence that we wili double
our annual revenues in the decade ahead by organic growth zlone

The Company 1s proposing 1o pay an intenm dividend of £550 million
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___Chief Execunive’s review - continued

A consistent strategy

The disciplined application of a consistent strategy over many years
has delivered a strong, resilient company, which 1s well positioned for
the long-term growth we expect

Qur sirategy has five elements and 2009 saw us make progress against
each of these

1 Addressing four global markets

Rolls-Royce has become a vuly global Group, providing ‘mission critical’
power and propulsion systems to a wide range of customers in over

120 countries The scale of the progress that has been made 1s illustrated
by the fact that the size of our order book in Asia and the Middle East
today 1s around doubte the Group's enure order bock in 1999

During 2009 we won new customers In Asia, Africa, Europe, the
Middle East and North and South America

Our global reach, coupled with the fact that very few companies offer
the highly sophisticated range of products and services that we do,
positions us well to take advantage of opportunities in early recovering
and emerging econcrmies

2 Investing In technology, Infrastructure and capability

We have managed our balance sheet cautiousty and for the long termn
50 that we can continue to invest in manufactunng capability and
technology These investments are targeted specifically to support
anucipated growth and meet our customners future needs

Technalogy 1s a critical differentiator in our four markets, all of which
demand increased fuel efficiency, reduced environmental impact and
higher levels of reliability and durability We have invested £7 billion in
R&D over the past ten years to maintain our technological advantage,
with a particular emphasis on collaboratwe research involving a
network of universities around the world

This focus continued in 2009, as we championed the development
of a network of Advanced Manufacturing Research Centres — four in
the UK and one each in the US and Singapore - bringing business
and academia together to undertake research relevant to industry

In 2009, the Group announced a £300 million investment in four new
factories in the UK a casting facility for single crystal turbine blades,

an advanced disc facility, a wide-chord fan blade facility for defence
engines and, a civil nuclear facility to assemble and test components
This represents the latest phase in a programme of capital replacement
which has seen Rolls-Royce invest £1 8 billion in UK infrastructure over
the past decade, creating world-class manufactunng facilives in multple
locations and providing skilled jobs in state-of-the-art environments

To address our global market opporturities, in 2009 we began work on a
manufacturing and assembly facility at Crosspointe in the United States
We also confirmed a large engine assembly plant and announced a new
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wide-chord fan blade factory in Seletar, Singapore, our first outside the
UK This will bring the total investment in the Seletar campus to around
£300 million by the time 1t 1s completed in 2012

We now manufacture in 20 countries and have service centres in over 50

3 Developing a competitive portfolio of products and services
We invest continually in developing proprietary technology which
will meet our customers' present and future needs We currently
have 39 ‘live’ major engineering programmes, compared to 25 a
decade ago

2009 was a remarkable year in which we celebrated the first flight of

six of our customers’ aircraft the Boeing 787, Gulfstream G650, Arbus
A400M, Embraer Legacy 650, the BAE Systems Manus UAY and the
AgustaWestland Lynx Wildcat helicopter Early in 2010, the short take-off
and vertical landing (STOVL) version of the F-35 Joint Strike Fighter
deployed the unique Rolls-Royce LiftSystem® for the first time

These are unprecedented achievements, with more entuely new arcraft
taking to the skies in a period of three months than in the previous five
years The capability to meet these requirements 1s the direct
consequence of a decade of iInvestment and Innovation

(n the marnine market in 2009, we saw the US Navy's Littoral Combat
Ship go on active duty, the first sailing of the Royal Navy's Astute
¢lass submanne and the commussioning of the Royal Navy's first
Type 45 Cestroyer, HMS Danng

All these aircraft and vessels are powered by Rolls-Royce and will enter
active service In the next two to three years The lives of each of these
programmes 15 expected to span 40 years or more, giving us exceptional
clarity of future onginal equipment and service revenues

4 Growing market share and our installed product base
We have successfully grown our market share 1n each of our businesses,
generating revenues today and establishing a platiorm for future growth

QOur share of the civil aerospace market has expanded from 27 per cent
In 1999 to 34 per cent today and our future order book will ensure that
our market share continues 1o grow, driven by the strong position
Rolls-Royce has established an the new generaticn of wide-bodied
arcraft On the new Boeing 787 and the Arrbus A350 XWB families,
Rolls-Royce has achieved a market share of 64 per cent

In the defence aerospace sector we are the world's number two and
Europe’s number one producer of aero engines, with an extensive
engine portfolio for all key sectors of the market

Revenues in our marine business have more than doubled since 2005
We now design, supply and support power and propulsicn systems for
naval and commercial applications, with over 30,000 vessels worldwde
usINg our equipment
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In 2009, our energy business recorded its highest ever underlying
revenue and profit We serve energy custamers in over 120 countries
Qur position In providing power for the ol and gas sector remains stiong
and the industrial Trent engine continues to estabhish its presence in the
power generation market

5 Adding value for customers through product-related services
We have unrivalled knowledge of the complex technologies within our
products and a deep understanding of our customers’ needs We have
used these to develop services that improve our customers' operations

Our aerospace operations centres are a geod illustration of this capability
In dedicated facikuies serving airline, corporate and defence customers,
these Rolls-Royce centres collect real-ume data from our engines as

they are operating arcund the world, 24 hours a day, 365 days a year

By analysing, sharing and acting upon this information we can epumise
the performance of our engines in service The centres are a focal pont
for service delivery, assessing the condition of the fleet and directing
logistics and field maintenance

We have transferred service best practice across ali our businesses so that
each now offers a through-life service capability We cantinue to strengthen
our global services netwaork and in the past year opened, or expanded,
marne services facilities in Niteron in Brazil, Galveston and Seattle in the US
and Newfoundland in Canada We opened an On-Wing Care facility for
corporate and regional arrcraft in indianapols, in the US, and continue 1o
invest in our civil aerospace averhaul bases in Hong Kong and Singapore

Our people

To execute this strategy effectively and on a worldwide basis, the skills,
diversity and dedication of our people are key The global nature of

our customers and our operatcns means that cur people have ¢ be
capable of teamwaork across geographies They need to be flexible and
open minded, to have world-class capabilities and shared values Of the
38,500 people we employ, 45 per cent are now based outside the UK

Today we run a civil aerospace husiness from the UK with emerging
capabuliues in Germany and the US The Presidents of both our defence
and energy businesses are based in North America The US 1s our biggest
defence market and in our energy business, gas turbines are produced
in Canada and packaged in the US We have transferred our manne
headquarters 1o Singapore, reflecting the significance of the Asia region
for shipbuilding

Effective communication that enables the organisation to work well
across ume zones and borders 1s crucial We invest time and effort in
communication, using a combination of modern technology and
traditional formats to help us to stay connected In 2009, we shared our
strategy storyboard with every employee The programme was conducted
in groups of around ten with a presenter and a record keeper This
amounts to more than 4,000 presentations over 6,000 hours, with a record
of the conversation kept to make sure that we benefit from local insights

In 2009, Rolls-Royce recruited more than 250 new apprentices and

334 graduates, more than ever before, young men and women of over
30 nationalities who have the potential to become leaders of the future

ARGl eport g

We are able to attract exceptional people because of the range of
world-¢lass skills we require to delver high value-added manufactunng
and services These range from expertise In marketing and law, through
to specialist engineering and togistics, all of which need to be practised
internatonally and at the highest level

While we have continued to invest economic conditicns have forced us
to take some difficult decisions as well We have had to reduce our staff
In parts of the business where demand has been weak, leading to a net
recuction in headcount across the Group of around 500 pecple in the
past year

Taking these difficult decisions early, investing where the business case
15 strong and continually looking for ways to improve, have enabled us
to respond to the difficult economic envirgnment Our employees
have again demonstrated ther capability and commitment and
Iwould fike to thank them for playing an integral part in our Groups
continuINg success

Prospects

{ have described how Rolis-Royce has transformed itself in the past ten
years and how, in deoing 50, it has established a platform for the doubling
of revenues in the decade ahead

In 1999, Rolls-Royce had an order book of £13 2 bilhon Today our order
book stands at £58 3 billion, with a record number of major global
programmes balanced across our four business sectors These include the
Trent XWB, which 15 ngt due to enter service until 2013, yet has already
achieved more than 1,000 orders - a powerful demonstration of the
confidence our customers have in our ability to delver

The market share we have gained, the investments in new products we
have made and the balance of the business we have achieved, affords

us access to a global market for products and services we assess 1o be
worth more than USS$2 trllion over the next 20 years, made up of
US51,400 biflion for civil aerospace, US$450 billion for defence aerospace,
US$320 bilhon for manne and US5120 billion for energy

In the short term, the Group expects the trading environment to remain
difficult, with the implications of delayed arrframe programmes and
launch costs adding t¢ demand and operational uncertainty The
Group expects underlying revenues and profits in the current year to
be broadly similar 1o those achieved 1n 2009 We anticipate a modest
cash outflow in 2010 with average cash balances remainuing above

£500 milhon

Qur resihence, coupled with the inherent strengths of our business
model will enable us to manage these short-term difficulties and deliver
future growth

Sir John Rose
Chief Executive
February 10 2010
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__Reliable power is ‘mission critical’
for our customers

The power systems we deliver are
critical to the operations of our
customers. On land, at sea and in the arr
we deploy the world's most advanced
technologies for those who depend
upon us

Civil aerospace

Airlines and their customers rely on Rolls-Royce We recognise the
responsibility that 1s placed on us to produce the most reliable engines
with the highest engineering integnty

1,000,000

Aurcraft powered by Rolls Royce fiy
one millign miles every hour, keeping
society and the global ecanomy on
the move

67,000

Airlines look to us to deliver safe,
rehable power on behalf of ther
customers - to ensure this, we monitor
67000 hours of engine data every day
nreal time

650

650 airine freight and lease customers
are Rolls-Royce powered and they fly
the equivalent of six million fights
around the world each year

Rolls-Royce is a global company
producing ‘mission critical’ power
solutions for customers in aerospace,
marine and energy markets

Marine

There are 30,000 commercial and naval vessels operating with Rolls-Royce
equipment, ensuring that sea trade of all types keeps on the move and
that coasts, natonal and international waters are safe for all Rolis-Royce
has a wider range of manne products than any other single supplier

The fatest Rolls-Royce nuclear plant,
that powers the Royal Navy's Astute
class submarnnes, can CIrcumnavigale
the globe without surfacing and will
never need to be refuelled in its life

3,000

Qur design of specialist vessels can
secure an offshore platform at depths
of up to 3,000 metres with pinpant
accuracy - helping access the world s
deep water oll and gas reserves

40

The Littoral Combat Ship

US5 Freedom, 15 one of the fastest
warships afloat Powered by two
Rolls Royce MT30 gas turbines it has
a top speed of well over 40 knots

Defence aerospace

Pilots of 160 armed forces need to know that they can depend on the
power from Rolls-Royce engines instantly, whenever they call for it
Qur engines are employed In all the key sectors of this market

Energy

Society's energy dernands continue to grow We are providing essential
power for the ol and gas industnes to meet these needs and increasingly
our clean and efficient gas turbines are providing local electncty Rolls-Royce
s also at the forefront of low carbon and renewable energy products

103

Ralls-Royce products provide
the defence power systems for
103 countries

15

Rells-Royce 15 powenng 15 different
ancraft types in Afghanistan,
supporting cembat transport,
medical evacuation, tactical and
survelllance operations

85

Ralls-Royce powers 85 percent of

the UK MoD's awrcraftin fronthne
operations The UX military on average
performs over 2000 search and rescue
missions annually, many are powered
by Rolls-Royce

AT N IOt 28

500 60

Over 500 of aur gas turbines are Qver 60 major pipehines in
operating In hostile weather 26 countries depend cn Rolls-Royce
environments, offshore of 25 countries, gas turbines o transport ol and
delivering the critical power needed gas — essentizl artenes in the world s
on oil and gas platforms energy network

16

Qur new Trent 60 gas turbine has been
soldd to 16 countries and the fleet can
generate encugh power for three
millilon homes
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___Our strategy

__Our consistent strategy

—

Our consistent strategy 1s based
on five key elements

Address four global markets

We are a leading producer of missicn critical,
integrated, power systems for the cml and
defence aerospace, marine and energy markets

Invest in technology, infrastructure
and capability

Qver the past five years, we have invested
£4 bilion in R&D We invest substantially in
employee development and invest around
£300 million a year in capital projects

Develop a competitive portfolio of
products and services

We have 39 major engineerning programmes
and we are involved in many of the future
projects in the markets we serve These key
projects will define the power systerns market
for many years

Grow market share and installed

product base

Across the Group, the installed base of engines
In service 1s expected 10 generate attractive
returns over many decades

Add value for our customers through the
provision of product-related services

We seek 1o add value for our customers with
aftermarket services that will enhance the
performance and reliability of our products

AL epurt £O0%

- —

-

Underpinned by
core characteristics

Closeness to our customers
We recognise that our customers determine
our strategy and organisation

Domain knowledge

A deep understanding of our customers
and the way in which our products and
services are used

Integrated systems
Integrating our praducts Into systems that
delwer increased value for our customers

Technological superionty
Gaining competitive advantage through
continuous Investment In technology

Operational excellence
Working constantly to meet and exceed
customer expectations

Organisational capability
Attracting and retaining the best
people globally

Brand

Recognised globally, our brand embodies
qualities that create a common focus for
all our people worldwide

Across four key markets

Cwvil aerospace
Broadest engine range 1n the world

£4,481m

Underlying revenue 2009

Defence aerospace
Eurcpe's biggest engine maker

£2,010m

Underlying revenue 2009

Marine
World-leading systems provider
and integrator

£2,589m

Underying revenue 2009

Energy
World leader in ol and gas and a growing
power generation presence

£1,028m

Underlying revenue 2009
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An increasing contribution from
services

A commitment to R&D creating
high barriers to entry

Delivering a 20-year track
record of continued growth

Theincreasing contribution from services
We have grown our service revenues ten

per cent compound over the past ten years
Services now account for around 50 per cent
of total underlying revenue

A strong record of investment in research
and development

We invest In werld-class, cost-effective
technology In order to develop products
that add value for our customers, Imprave
efficiency and reduce erwvironmental impact

Underlying services revenue 2009

£4,927m

Investment in research and
development during 2009

£864m

_Fo'l-Ayce oic —AnnLa' report X9

Organic growth

Our bread product range and expanding
service provision have delivered growth
globally

Partnerships

We increasingly develop products with rnisk
and revenue sharing partners and through
strategic long-term relationships

Acquisition
Major acquisitions such as Allison and Vickers
have enabled growth in key sectors

Our growth during the
past 20 years has been
achieved organically and
through partnershups
and acquisitions
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__Market outlook

The Group operates In four long-term global
markets — civil and defence aerospace, marine
and energy These markets create a total
opportunity worth in excess of USS2 trillion
over the next 20 years and

* have very high barriers to entry,

offer the opportunity for rganic growth,

feature extraordinanly fong programme lives, usually measured

in decades,

can only be addressed through significant investments in technology
nfrastructure and capabiity, and

create a significant opportunity for extended customer relationships,
with revenues from aftermarket services similar in size to oniginal
eguipment revenues

The size of these markets 15 generally related tc world Gross Domestic
Product (GDP) growth, or in the case of the defence markets, global
security and the scale of defence budgets

Civil aerospace

The Group publishes a 20-yvear glabal market outlook, which covers
passenger and cargo Jets, corporate and regional aireraft We predict that
over the next 20 years 141,000 engines, worth aver U55800 billion, will
be required for more than 65,000 commercial aircraft and business jets
The forecast predicts faster growth rates for long-haul markets and those
markets to, from and within Asia These markets will continue to benefit
from more liberal air sernce agreements, which boost demand Factors
affecting demand include GDP growth, aircraft productivity, operating
casts, environmental 1ssues and the number of aircraft retrements While
the market can be temporarily distupted by external events, such as war,
acts of terrorism, or economic downturns, it has, In the past, always
returned 1o 1ts long-term growth trend In addition 16 the demand for
engines, the Group forecasts a market opportunity worth US$600 biilion
for the provision of product-related aftermarket services

Defence aerospace

The Greup forecasts that dermand for military engines will be worth
US$170 bidlion over the next 20 years The largest single market 15
expected to be the US, followed by Europe and the Far East Within Asia,
demand wilt be dominated by Japan, South Korea and Incha Trends are
driven by the scale of defence budgets and geopolitical developments
areund the world

_ A Nl ppurt (002

As In the Group's other business sectars, programme lives are long and
there 1s a significant opportunity 10 suppert equipment with aftermarket
services estimated at US$280 bilhon over the same period Customers’
budget constraints and ther need to Increase the value they derwe from
therr assets have accelerated the move in this direction

Marine

The Groug forecasts a demand for marine power and propulsion
systems valued at more than US5200 billicn over the next 20 years
Demand will be greatest 1n the commercial sector, where the shipping
of raw materials, inished goods and people, In addition to ail and gas
exploration and production activity, play crucial roles in the world
economy These activities require large fleets of specialised and
increasingly sophisticated ships, which have to be conunually
renewed and supported to remain eperationally efficent

Merchant and offshore markets are rarely at the same stage of the
business cycle which helps to reduce overall volatility Whilst naval
markets are driven by different considerations, customers are similarly
seeking to get more frorm their budgets, leading to increasing demand
for integrated systems and through-life support arrangements As in
the Group's other markets, manne aftermarket services are expected
to generate significant opportunities, with demand forecasted at
US5120 billion over the next 20 years

Energy

The international Energy Agency has forecast that over the next 20 years
the worldwtde demand for o1l will grow by more than 20 per cent, for
gas by 35 per cent and for power generation by more than 60 per cent
To satisfy this demand, there will be a growing requirement for aero
derrvative gas turbines

The Group’s 20-year forecast values the total aero-derivative gas wrbine
sales in the o1l and gas and power generation sectors at mare than
US570 billion Over this period, demand for associated aftermarket
services is expected 1o be around US$50 billion

While the cil and gas market is large and growing, demand for
aero-derivative gas turbines in the power generation segment Is
twice that of oll and gas

Note Along term conversicn rate has been used where necessary In order 1o present all
figuras in US5
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__Key performance indicators

The Board uses a range of financial and Key performance indicators

non-financial indicators to monitor Group
and segmental performance in hine with
the strategy described on pages 6-7 These * Cash flow

indicators are chosen to monitor both current | 7 P j;i:g;f;’ent
performance and the success of iInvestments charge

that will sustain and enhance future
performance Key performance indicators
are included in the appropriate sections of

the business review and are as follows

* Underlying revenue
* Underlying profit before financing

* Gross research and development
expenditure

* Net research and development
expenditure as a proportton of
underlying revenue

= Capital expenditure

= Order book

+ Training and development

» Employee engagement

+ Underlying revenue per
employee

* Product cost index

= Engine deliveries

* Installed thrust - cwvil aerospace

* Percentage of cvil fleet
under management

» Underlying services revenue
* Ermussions

Underlylng revenue

Monitoring of revenues provides a measure of business growth
Underlying revenues are used in order to eliminate the effect of the
deaision not to edopt hedge accounting and to provide a clearer
year-on-year measure The Group measures foreign currency sales
at the acwal exchange rate achieved as a result of settling foreign
exchange contracts from forward cover

Underlying profit before financing

Underlying profit before finanang 15 presented on a basis that shows

the economic substance of the Graup’s hedging strategies in respect

of the rransactional exchange rate and commodity price movements

In partcular {a)revenues and costs denominated in US dollars and euros
are presented on the basis of the exchange rates achieved during the year,
(b) simtar adjustments are rmade in respect of commodity denvatves, and
{€) consequential adjustments are made 1o reflect the iImpact of exchange
rates on trading assets and labilities and long-term contractson a
consistent basis The denvauon of underlying profit before financing 1s
shown in note 2 on page 68 of the conselidated financial statements

— Rolls-Royce ple —Arnugl repoir 2009
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Cash flow

In a business requinng significant investment, the Board monitors
cash flow to ensure that profitability 15 converted into cash
generation, both for future investment and as a reward for
shareholders The Group measures cash flow as the movementin
net funds/debt during the year, after taking into account the value
of dervatives held to hedge the value of balances denominated in
foreign currencies The figure in 2007 includes a £500 million special
contribution to the Group's UK pensions schemes, as part of the
restructurnng of s pension schemes

Return on capstal employed

Return on capital employed 15 calculated as the after-tax underlying
profit, divided by the average net assets duning the year, adjusted for
net cash, net post-reurement deficit and gocdwill previously written
off It represents a measure of the return the Group 1s making on

15 Investments

Net research and development charge

Investment in research and development underpins all the elements
of the Group's strategy Programme expenditure 1s monitored in
conjunction with a gated review process on each programme and
progress s reviewed at key milestanes

Gross research and development expenditure

The Group's research and development activities comprise both
self-funded and customer funded programmes Gross expenditure
measures total research and development activity and 1s an indicator
of the effecuveness of the acticns taken to enhance the Group's
intellectual property

—Ralis B ceple A e pLort S0P
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__ Key performance indicators - continued

Net research and development expenditure as a proportion
of underlying revenue

Research and development 1s measured as the self-funded
axpenditure before both amounts capitalised (n the year and
amortisation of previously capralised balances The Group expects
1o spend approximately five per cent of revenues on research and
development although this proportion will fluctuate annually
depending on the stage of development of current programmes
This measure reflects the need to generate current returns as well
as to invest for the future

Capital expenditure

To deliver on its commitments 1o customers, the Group invests
significant amounts In 1ts infrastructure Al investments are subject
10 ngorous review o ensure that they are consistent with forecast
actwity and will provide value for money Annual capital expenditure
1s measured as the cost of property, plant and equipment acquired
during the period

__Rols Royee pic

Order book

The order book provides an indicater of future business [t s measured

at constant exchange rates and list prices and includes both firm and
anncunced ordess in ovil asrospace, it 1s commmien for a customer to
take options for future orders m addition o irm orders placed Such
optons are excluded from the order book In defence aerospace,
long-term programmes are often ordered for only cne year ata time
In such crcumstances, even though there may be no alternative

engine choice available 1o the customer, only the contracted business

1s incfuded in the crder bock Only the first seven years'revenue of
long-term aftermarket contracts is included

Training and development
£24 million investment in 2009

Training 1s a core element of the Group’s investment In its

capability and 15 measured as the expenditure on the training
and development of employees, customers and suppliers
Effectiveness 1s ensured by using a range of external and
internal sources and by gathering user feedback

A Nua repoi 1S

£24m

Employee engagement

18,500 employees in 2009

Regular surveys are undertaken to dentify and address
emerging issues A full employes engagement survey 1s run
every two years with smaller pulse-check surveys in between
Training and employee engagement surveys are discussed
further in the corporate responsibility section of this review

38,500
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Underlying revenue per employee

A measure of personnel producimity, this indicator measures
underlying revenue generated per employee on a three-year
rolling basis The basis of calculation has been amended to avoid
short-term distoruions caused by fluctuations in exchange rates

Product cost index

Unit costs are a key determinant of the Group's abilny to deliver
1ts commitments cn a profitable basis The Group monitors the
year-on-year change in the average unit product cost of its gas
turbine operations and seeks over time to improve productivity
in all owned facilities and those of its suppliers

Engine dehiveries

The Groups installed engine base represents an opportunity to
generate future aftermarket business This 1s measured as the
number of Group praducts delivered during the year within each
business except for marine, as its products do not lend themselves
1o this measure due to therr diversity

Installed thrust - civil aerospace

Installed thrust is the indicator of the amount of product in use
by our customers and therefore the scale of oppartunity this
presents for our services business

— Rells Rt plc — Arniaal report 2003




—— Directors’ report —_ Key performance indicators - cantinued

Percentage of civil fleet under management

Long-term contracts are an important way of generating value for
customers The percentage of fleet under management gives a
measure of the proportion of the installed base where the future
aftermarket arrangements are agreed under long-term contracts

The corresponding indicators for the other segments are shown
in the respective sections of the business review of operations

Underlying services revenue

Underlying services revenue shows the amount of business during
the year that has been generated from the Installed engine base
This 1s measured as the revenue derived from spare parts, averhau
services and long-term service arrangements

Emissions

Much of the research and development expenditure 1s focused on
reducing emissions of the Group's products The Group measures both
the emissions of its products and the emisstons of its manufacturing
operations These measures are described in detail in the environment
report, 'Powering a better world, which is available on the Group's
website at www rolls-royce com/cr/reports

—Ro Is-Royce ol —Annaal repor 009
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— . Principal nsks and uncertainties

__Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group continues to be exposed to a
number of risks and has an established,
structured approach to identifying, assessing
and managing these

The risk committee has accountability for the system of risk management
and reports regularly to the Board on the key nisks facing the business
and the miigatng actions taken in order to manage them The Groups
consistent strategy and long-term programmes require that key sources
of sk are Wdentfied and are kept under continuous review

Risk profile

Over the past year the nsk profile of the Group, iIn commen with many
other large companies, has changed 1o reflect the underlying global
ecanomic uncertainties The Group continues to exgerience the
negative effects of the recent economic downturn through a dechine
in the civil aviation sector, shipbuilding and other capital-intensive
industries, which are prime markets for its products and services

In the absence of a sustained and general return to growth, uncertainty
remains across financial and industnal markets This is reflected in the
Group's nsk profile

The risks descnbed below are among those that may have an impact
on the Group's performance This 1s notwithstanding other risks and
uncertainties that are currently unknown to the Group, or which the
Group does not presently consider to be matenial The principal risks
reflect the global nature of the business and the competitive and
challenging business enviranment in which it operates Risks,
including those to the Group's reputation, are considered under
four broad headings

» Business environment risks

» Strategic nsks

» Financial nisks

» Operational risks

Business environment risks

Cyclical downturn — global recession

The Group's largest market, cwvil aerospace, 1s cychical by nature,
although services actvity and revenue, which now represents
5% per cent of annual revenue, have historically been less volatle
in economic slowdowns and are considered more predictable
and robust than the sales of engines for new arrcraft

—Rofs R oo ph A Mual Lpurt 2807

The willingness of passengers to travel by air 1s influenced by a
range of factors, nctuding economic conditions, as well as health
and securnity ssues Any prolonged reduction in ar travel would
impact arhnes' revenues and cash flows and potentially reduce
their need for new engines, spare parts or aftermarket

support services

The strategy of growing revenues i other sectors with steady and
substantial long-term growth, will help offset this nsk Access to global
markets with greater diversification by sector, customer and geography
and an improved balance between onginal equipment and services
revenue are expected to help mitigate the effects of the slowing global
econgmy In any one Sector

Tight control of the underlying cost base, the cost of managing
operations and the unit cost of products, 1s essential to protect
margins and maintain profitability Even as the economy begins

to recover there will be continued pressure to reduce costs and
improve the use of resources The Group is focusing on identifying
the principal drivers of unit costs and identifying actions 1o achieve
sustainable cost reductions

Environmental impact of products and operations

The Group recognises that its products and business operations have
an impact on the environment, particularly in relation to <hmate
change Rolls-Royce 1s determined to be part of the solution tc these
environmental challenges and continues to make significant investment
ininnevative solutions for the aviation, manne and energy markets
The challenge 1s being addressed through the enhancement of
current product ranges and affordable research and development
into low carbon technologies such as nuclear power, fuel cells and
tdal energy The Group continues to work closely with its customers,
industry partners and other stakeholders to implement these
development opportunities

A robust governance structure headed by the Environment Councl
directs and monitors improvements in the environmental performance
of the Group's products, and the Environmental Advisory Baard reviews
and makes recommendations on the environmental aspects of the
Group's products and business cperations
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Strategic risks

Competitive pressures

The markets in which Rolis-Royce operates are highly competitive and
this competitiveness 1s Increasing as a result of the global economic
uncertainties The majority of product programmes are long tarm in
nature and access to key customer platforms 1s critical to the success

of the business This reguires sustained investment in technology,
capability and infrastructure by the Group, all creating high barriers

to entry However, these factors alone do not protect the Group from
competition such as pncing and technical advances made by competitors

The Group has developed a balanced business portfolio and continues
to maintain a steady focus on improvement in operational performance,
for example through the modernisation of 1ts faclies and an increased
focus on managing the costs of operations and products Sustained
investment in technology acquisition and robust protection of
intellectual property, together with the establishment of long-term
customer relatienships, atllow the Group to differentiate its products

and services and protect margins in the face of competiuve pressures

Export controls
Rolls-Royce designs and supplies a number of products and services
for the defence market Many countries in which the Group conducts
its business have legislation controlling the export of specified goods
and technology intended or adaptable for military apphcation The
Group 15 committed to complying with the requirements of national
governments in all jurisdictions when exporting goods, parts,
technelogies or informatien, although globalisation of the Group's

*  operations brings with it complexities of concurrent but differing
national export control legislation Non-compliance with export controls
15 recognised as a principal nisk to both pregramme performance and
the Group’s reputation

The experts committee, chaired by the Chuef Operating Officer, directs
the Group's strategy and policy on exports Export control managers

are embedded throughout the business and export controls awareness
training 15 provided to employees The Group will continue to implement
any necessary changes to ensure that i maintains the capability to
monitor and comply with requirements

—RalsPrye olc __Arnea repart 200

Financial nsks

Principal nisks are

« movements in foreign currency exchange rates,
= Interest rates,

* commodity prices,

» counterparty cred risk, and

» regulatory developrments

A description of these nsks and details of the Group's nsk mitigation
actions in this area are provided in the Finance Director’s review

Operational risks

Performance of supply chain

The Group's products and services are delivered through the effective
operation of its faciities and key capabilities, including 1ts supply chain
The Group's success In strengthening its market positicn and its presence
on a number of high profile civil and defence aerospace programmes
places increased demands on the performance of the supply chain

The Group manufactures aporoximately 30 per cent by value of its gas
turbine products, the remainder being provided through external
suppliers, including risk and revenue sharing partners Meeting delivery
commitments on schedule, cost and quality are cnitical to the achievement
of business goals investment in developing world-class manufacturing
processes IS continuing In Asia, North Armernica and Furope

Global supply chains are complex with multiple inter-relationships across
awide network of organisations While the Group's strategy 1s to improve
integration and simplify the internal and external elements of its supply
chain by bullding 'ong-term strategic links with fewer, stronger suppliers,
it remains at nisk of disruption from financial or physical causes such as
bankruptey, natural disaster, armed conflict or pandemic A significant
disruption in any of these elements could adversely affect the Group's
ability to deliver 1ts operational commitments and would have the
potential to affect financial returns

The ptanning for, and management of, any such interruption 1s addressed
through the Group's business continuity management process, which is
well established and focused on critical facilines, activities, processes,
skills and suppliers The Group's crisis management plan and framework
were significantly revised and exercised in 2009 In addition to the
Group’s comprehensive programme of business interruption insurance,
significant investment 1s being undertaken to establish, where possible,
dual sourcing of key components or processes Increased focus 15 also
being applied to understanding and addressing sources of risk arising
in the external supply chain, particularly those associated with financial
instability Procedures are in place to monitor, assess and respend to
such risks
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IT secunty

The centinuing glcbalisation of the business and advances in technology
have resuited in more data being transmitted internationally, posing an
increased security risk There is also the possibility of umintentional ioss of
controlled data by authonsed users In either case, adverse impacts upon
operational effectiveness, the value of intellectual property, legislanve
complhance or the reputation of the Group mught anse The active shanng
of information through industry and government forums, commitment
of additonat specialist resources and the contnual upgrading of secunty
equiprnent and software mitigate these risks

Ethics

The Group recognises the benefit that is derived from conducting
business in an ethical and socially responsible manner This approach
extends from the sourcing of raw materials and components (o

the manufaciure and delivery of products and serwices in all of its
global locations and markets It applies to the provision of a safe and
healthy place of werk and investrnent in technologies to reduce the
environmental impact of the Groups preducts and operations
Shortcomings 1n any of these areas could damage the Group's
reputation, expose it to financial penalties and disrupt its business

The Group 15 committed to maintaining high ethical standards A Global
Code of Business Ethics, available in 16 fanguages, has been 1ssued 1o
all employees supported by a training and engagement programme to
improve awareness of the Group's values A programme of technicat
training for specialist roles 1s underway The Group's ethical standards
are also communicated to the Groug's first-tier supply base through a
suppher code of conduct Concerns regarding potentially unethical
behaviours can be reported i confidence via dedicated global
telephone and internet channels All such reporis are followed up

and are monored by the ethics commitiee

Programme nsk

The Group manages complex product programmes with demanding
technical requirements against stringent, and sometimes fluctuating
customer schedules This requires co-ordination of the engineenng
function, manufactunng aperations, the external supply chain and other
partners Falure to achieve programeme goals would have sigmificant
financial and reputational implications for the Group These implications
include the risk of impairment of the carrying value of the Group’s
intangible assets and the impact of potential imgation Impairment s
discussed further in the Finance Director’s review on page 41

The Group seeks continucus improvement of all its processes and
employs project management controls 1o ensure that both technical
and business abjectives are achieved All major programmes are subject
to Board approval and are reviewed regularly by the Beard with a
particular focus on the nature and potenual impact of emerging risks
and the effective mitigation of previcusly identified threats

— FRalls Remyvee phc —AnnLal eport 2009
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___Review of operations

__Review of operations
— Overview

Rolls-Royce 15 a technology leader with a
global customer base We are developing our
presence across the world to meet increasing
demand for the advanced products and
services that we take to market

__Civil aerospace

The cvil aerospace business powers over 30
types of commercial aircraft and has a strong
position In all sectors of the market wide-
body, narrow-body and corporate and regional
aircraft Over 13,000 engines are currently in
service with 650 airlines, freight operators and
lessors and 4,000 corporate operators

Despite a decline in arr traffic, the market 1s beginning to recover, albeit
slowly 2010 traffic will see a return to growth but from suppressed levels
We remain cautious but opumistic of seeing the historic traffic growth
level of approximately five per cent per annum achieved over

a 20 year pericd

The economic situation also saw the retirement across the industry

of some 500 aircraft, notably older models The Rolls-Royce powered
fleet 1, by contrast, relatively young and more fuel efficient The better
performance and increased aftermarket potential in this younger fleet
underhined the value of our balanced services and products business
model The corporate and regicnal aircraft market has been sensitive
in the downturn but the twin-aiste, large airliner market, has been
maore robust

Qrder intake was reduced due to the poor market conditions but

there were some significant orders, notably from AirAsia X, Air China

and United Airhnes New orders also included first-time customers for
theTrent family Turkish Airfines, Ethsopian Arrhnes and, the US lessor
Aviation Capital Group Trent engines continue 1o win business across
the range of wade-body arrcraft and now hold a 50 per cent market share

—_Ro'l-PoyLe plc —AnnLal report 2009

As well as introducing new technologies

we also place emphasis on continuously
developing the through-life performance of
our products for the benefit of customers

£4,481Tm

Underlying revenue

US$1,400bn

Market opportunity over 20 years

Highlights

« Record year for Trent delivery with 224 engines shipped

= Trent 700 and Trent XW8 each exceeded orders for 1000 engines
« Trent 1000 powered the Boaing 787 Dreambiner first fight

* BR725 powered the Guifstream G650 long range business jet
first fight

Key financial data
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Underlying revenue £m 3406 3,907 4038 4,502 4,481
+11% +15% +3% +11% 0%
Underlying profit before 441 523 564 566 493
financing £fm +112% +19% +8% 0% -13%
Net assets £m 1315 1,889 2,260 246 2,733

L
Other key performance indicators

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Order book £bn 199 200 359 435 470
+17% +5%|  +80% +21% +8%
Engine delivenies as1 856 851 087 844
Underlying services
revenues Em 2016 2310 2,554 2726 2,626
Underlying services
revenues % 59 59 63 61 59
Percentage of fleet under
management 45 48 55 57 59
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The fizst fight of the Boeing 787 in December 2009, powered by
Rolls-Royce Trent 1000 engines, was a significant and important
milestone for this programme The majority of the Boeing 787 flight
test and certfication programme planned to be completed in 2010
will use Trent 1000 engines

The Trent family philosophy continues to demonstrate significant
advantages with the introduction of new technclogy for established
engines Upgrades for the Trent 700 have enhanced its performance
and fuel efficiency and a similar package 1s planned for the Trent $00
Technolegy being developed for new engines such as the Trent 1000
and Trent XWB will continue to provide operational, performance and
environmental advantages across our product range Orders for the
Trent 700 and the Trent XWB now exceed 1,000 engines for each
programme For the Trent XWB this marks a significant demaonstration
of customer confidence as the programme 1s still three years away from
entry into service

In the narrow-body market the V2500 engine, produced by International
Aero Engines (AE) in which Rolls-Royce 1s a major partner, continues

to win orders |AE delivered 347 engines in 2009 |AE also gained
sigrificant contract awards from Air China, Qatar Arrlines and Dubai
Aeraspace These are now more than 4,000 V2500 engines flying with
190 customers worldwide

In the carporate and regionat market, the latest additien to the Group's
corporate engme family 15 the BR725 engine It flew for the first ime on
the Gulfstream G650 ultra-long-range business jet in November 2009,
and remains on schedule for entry into service in 2012 In September
2009, the first flight of an Embraer Legacy 650, powered by the new

AE 3007A2 engine, ook place The AE 300742 will dehwer significant
performance and relability improvements over previous engine marks
It 15 currentiy undergeing flight testing ahead of certification and entry
into service in the second half of 2010

The majornity of orders in the civil aerospace business are now
contracted under TotalCare* or CorporateCare® long-term support
contracts These overarching service contracts provide an important
and sustainable revenue stream for the business They also allow cur
custorners 1o plan their business more effectively both financially and in
the use of engine assets Services revenue has been affected by the
current economic environment with fewer flying hours and airlines
deferring non-essential maintenance As more engines enter service in
line with order commitments we expect to see flying hours increase
The TotalCare service structure has been particularly robust and the
maodel we have in place 1s designed to be respansive 1o this change
and match the market and customer demand Hours flown under
TotalCare agreements continue to grow

—_Rolls Rewee i — Anriual report 2009
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Defence aerospace

Rolls-Royce 1s a global provider of defence
aero-engine products and services, with
18,000 engines in service for 160 customers
In 103 countries Qur engines power aircraft
In all key defence market sectors transport,
combat, reconnaissance, training, helicopters
and unmanned aeral vehicles

The downturn in the global econcmy has put pressure on public
spending in our key markets in Europe and the US However, our
position on new and estabhshed programmes continues to provide
growth opportunities in these markets In addition, we are well
positioned to secure growth from emerging econemies in Asia,

the Middle East and South America

During 2008, key orders were secured in both the combat and transport
sectars and we saw new programmes emerge In the helicopter and
unmanrned aenal vehicles (UAVs) sectors

The US Government approved 2018 funding for development of
the F136 engine for the F-35 Joint Strike Fighter This engine, being
developed jointly by Rolls-Royce and General Electric, 1s designed
o power all variants of the F-35 arrcraft

We also receved the second contract, worth US$171 multion, for the
production of the LiftSystem for the short take-off and vertical landing
{STOVL) or ‘B'version of the F-35 Joint Strike Fighter This programme
reached a significant milestone in early 2010, when the Rolls-Royce
designed LiftSystem was engaged successfully in flight for the first ime

Tranche three of the Eurofighter Typhoon arcraft was ordered, which
provided Rolls-Royce with a 37 per cent production share of 241 Eurojet
engines The EJ200's reliabiiity and support effectiveness was highlighted
during the year, with a Royal Air Force engine reaching 1,200 flying hours
with no requirement for unscheduled maintenance

At the end of the year the Airbus A400M arrlifier, powered by the TP400
turboprop engine, flaw for the first time Rolls-Royce 1s a major partner
in the European consortium producing the TP400 There 1s continuing
uncertainty about the A400M programme However, the TP400 engine
has made good progress, with engme fight testing to date being
encouraging We believe that our estimated ¢osts to completion
adequately consider the remaining testing and delivery phases

There were four additional successful Rolls-Royce powered first flights
duning 2009 in the defence sector the AgustaWestland Lynx AH Mk 94,
the AgustaWestland AW159 Wildcat, and the AgustaWestland T129
Attack Helicopter, all powered by the CTS800 engine The BAE Systems
Manus UAY powered by the Model 250 engine, also flew and
demenstrated our capability to design and deliver an integrated
power system

__Pals Poyee e —ATnug repaant 2008

US$450bn

Market cpportunity over 20 years

£2,010m

Underlying revenue

Highlhghts

s £325 mm\lllon contract secdre;:i for E5200 éngme prno—duc-t\or;

« US$200 million production contract for AE 1107C V-22 engines
+ F136 engine development funded for 2010

« US$184 million worth of US Army helicopter contracts secured for
the Model 250 fleet

« £865 million contract secured for long-term £1200 engine support
+ USS5500 million MissionCare contract signed for AE 1107C fleet

0 s o
Key financial data

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Underlying revenue £m 1420 1,601 1,673 1686 2,010
+3%|  +13% +49% +1% +1%%

Underlying profit before 175 195 199 223 253
financing £m 2% +11% +2% +12% |  +13%
Net assets £m (56) {83) (247) {228) (329)

L
Other key performance indicators

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Order bock £bn 33 32 4.4 55 65
% -3% +38% +25% +18%

Engine deliveries 565 514 495 517 662
Underdying services |
revenues £m 787 853 877 947 1,046
Underying services
reverues % 55 53 52 56 52
Percentage of fleet under
management 8 1 11 12 16
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Conversion work began on the first Airbus A330 arrcraft for the
Future Strategic Tanker Arrcraft programme The A330M mulu-role
tanker is powered by the Trent 700 engine and 1s expecied ta enter
service in 2012

Service business under long-term contraci programmes, such as
MissionCare™, continues 1o be attractive 1o defence customers The

US Department of Defense awarded us a US59C million contract 10
support the engines for the US Navy's T-45 trainer aircraft We agreed a
US5200 million production contract and a US5500 million service contract,
through to 2014, with the LS Marine Corps 1o provide support for the
AE 1107C Liberty engine in the Bell-Boeing V-22 Osprey vertical ift aircraft

An £865 million contract to service the EJ200 engines for the UK
Eurofighter Typhoon fleet through to 2019 was also secured Rolls-Royce
is @ major pariner in the Eurgiet consortiurm which produces the EJ200

Over £1 biliion worth of orders for services were signed in 2009,
presenting significant opportunities for Rolls-Royce to leverage its
Innovative service solutions

The defence sector has conunued 1o Invest successfully in new
technology as demonstrated by the Phase 2 award of the US Arr Force
ADVENT technology programme Phase 2 will include the integration of
a variety of advanced technologies compoenent testing and culminates
with the development of a new technology demonstrator engine

The demaonstrator s designed to reduce fuel consumption significantly,
enabling extended mussion ranges and loter umes This advanced
engine is targeted for future US military aerospace platforms In the UK,
we signed a jointly funded research and technology contract for ENTAPS
(Engine Technologies for Awrcraft Persistence and Survivability) with the
UK Ministry of Defence

—Ro ls Sovge plo — ALl sport 2009
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__Marine

Rolls-Royce has a world-class range of
capabilities and expertise in the design,
supply and support of power and propulsion
systems for offshore oil and gas, merchant
and naval vessels Our marine business has
more than 2,000 customers and equipment
installed on over 30,000 vessels worldwide,
including those of 70 navies

The manne business has enjoyed another year of strong growth, despite
macroeconomic challenges and a slowdown in crders Although the
demand for original equipment has reduced, service oppertunities have
increased as a result of the Jarge number of shups introduced to the
market In recent years As a systems integrator, Rolls-Royce has an
advantage 1n being able to provide a wide range of services for the
sophisticated vessels that utlise our systems

Since 2005, our revenues have more than doubled and increased by

17 per cent on 2008, driven primarily by the continued growth in our
offshore business Marine profit increased 44 per cent in 2009 as a result
of strong revenue growth, the increasing importance of support services
and improved operational pesformance

The offshore sector has been central 1o our continued strong
performance, based on the success of our specialist UT-Oesign and
integrated systems capability 2009 saw the launch of the Rolls-Royce
designed Far Samson, the world's most powerful offshore vessel, and
the introduction of an innovative wave-plercing design that improves
stabiiity and crew safety while minimising environmental impact

Durning 2009, we acquired a 33 per cent holding in ODIM ASA, a leading
provider of specialist manine handling systems This investment increases
our already strong presence in the offshore ol and gas sector

Qur naval business had a good year, with significant activity in the

UK, the US, France, India and Korea We began delivering power and
prepulsion equipment for the UK's new, Queen Elizabeth class, arcraft
carmers Stabilisers have already been delivered for the first carrier and
our MT30 gas turbine has successfully completed tnals MT30 gas
turbines installed in the US Navy Littoral Combat Ship, USS Freedom,
also completed sea trials during the year

As our installed base of equipment continues to grow, we are actively
expanding our suppart capacity and capability to realise the significant
opportunity that this represents Six marine service CENtres across

North America, South America, Europe and the Middle East were
opened in 2009 Marine customers seek {0 have therr ships serviced
close to where they primarily operate and we are continuing to develop
our extensive, global network to meet customer requirements

- Annual iepott 2009

US$320bn

Market opportunity over 20 years

£2,589m

Underlying revenue

Highlights
» Continued strong growth despite challenging market envirenment

» Far Samson, the world's most powerful offshore vessel,
entered service

+ Service capabilities expanded across North America, South America,
Europe and Middle East

» Queen Elizabeth class arcraft camer equipment deliveries commenced

]
Key financial data

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Undertyving revenue £Em 1097 1299 1548 2204 2,589
+14%| +18% +19% +42% +17%

Undertying profit before 87 102 113 183 263
financing £m +12%|  +17% +11% | +62%| +44%
Net assets £m 595 543 508 453 561

L
Other key performance indicators

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Crder book £bn 17 24 47 52 35
+21% +41% +96% +11% -33%
Underlying services
revenues tm 435 487 545 712 785
Underlying services
revenues % 40 37 35 iz 30
Percentage of fleet under
management 3 3 33 15 26

2
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A significant and growing proportion of our customers, manufacturing
capabiity and supply chain are based in the Asia region As a resuli, and
recognising the impertance of being closer to where more of our actvity
15 located, we established the global headguarters of our marine
business in Singapore

We continue to 1nvest In technology that can address the need for more
efficient and environmentally sustainable power and propulsion systems
This 1s primanly through the reduction of exhaust gas emissions and
improverneants in ship design Our Bergen gas engines already surpass
International Maritime Qrganization hmits for NO, emissions, while research
in propulsor/hull interacuons deliver improvements in fuel consumption,
stability and general performance, as demanstrated by our Promas
integrated rudder/propelier system

Rolls-Royce and Royal Canbbean Cruises have settled the lawsuit
regarding the Mermaid podded-propulsion system, which experienced
technical issues that have now been resolved By working together,
Rolls-Royce and Royal Caribbean have been successful inimproving the
rehatulity of the design

As anticipated, there were some order cancellations in 2009 as customers
reviewed therr requirements given the economic downturn However,
our strong market-leading positon in the offshore sector and demand
for high-specification vessels in support of ol and gas exploration,
provide good visibility of revenues in 2010

— Refls Fovee phe —Annual repurt 2009
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__Energy

The energy business 1s a world-leading
supplier of power systems for onshore and
offshore ail and gas applications and has

a growing presence In the electric power
generation sector It has supplied products
to customers in over 120 countries

Energy had a strong performance in 2009, with revenues up by
36 per cent 1o over £1 billion for the first ime and profits growing
by £26 million

The number of orders secured by the business reduced by 16 per cent
compared to the previous year Despite the challenging market
conditions, the size of the order ook was broadly maintained in 2009
The year also saw high onginal equipment volume deliveries The
modest profit Increase in the year was achieved as a result of the
conuinued growth in demand for aftermarket products and services

In the main, il and gas customers took a long-term view from the outset
of the glohal recession and continued to invest, albert at a reduced levet
Market confidence has begun to return as a result of the strengthening
in oll prices, with both offshore and pipeline customers now persising
with previcus expansion plans

Pipeiine bid actwity continued 1n the year, with a total of 24 gas turbine
units ordered, compnising 11 urits for Kazakhstan, nine for China and
four for India In other o1l and gas markets, orders for five gas turbine
units were received for installation offshore of Azerbayan and Malaysia

The power generation market remained depressed due 10 the high cost
and restricted availability of finance, coupled with reduced demand for
electnicity However, market interest in the Trent 60 continued to grow
and contracted projects proceeded as planned Sales growth continued
to advance on the back of high order levels in recent years and the
increasing aftermarket business In the power generation marker,
successful commercial operatron of the Trent 60 began n the US, Israel,
Germany, China and Austraia Orders for 15 Trent 60 packages were
sacured in 2009

Demand for aftermarket products and services grew strongly with
another record year resulting 1n revenues of £470 million, an increase of
27 per cent The growth of the installed fleet has resulted in an increase
in demand for services and product upgrades which incorporare the
latest gas turbine technology Operators are benefiting from the
additional power and efficiency that these upgrades prowvide Units
under long-term service agreements increased to approximately

300 unus from 250 units the previous year

__Anral repon 2009

US$120bn

Market opportunity over 20 years

£1,028m

Underlying revenue

Highlights

» Order book maintained despie difficult market conditions
¢ Revenues increased 10 over £1 billon for the first time

+ Service business growth of 27 per cent to £470 million sales

» Cwvil nuclear business memerandum of understanding with
EDF Energy

Key financial data

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Underlying revenue £m 535 546 558 755 1,028
-1% +2% +2% +35% +36%
Underlying profit before 1] (18) 5 2} 24
financing £m +86% | -1700%| +128% 140% | +1300%
Met assets Em 353 355 346 377 542

Other key performance indicators

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Order book £bn 04 0s 09 13 11
0% +25% +80% +44% 0%
Engine delivenes 61 44 32 64 73
Underlying service
revenues £m 219 251 289 370 470
Underlying service
revenues % 4 46 52 49 45
Percentage of fleet under
management 5 6 7 9 10
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The energy business strategy to consolidate 1t gas turbine packaging
operations into the Mount Vernon, Ohwo, US faciiity progressed with the
latest site improvements becoming fully operational in the middle of
2009 While the enargy business currently centres its praduct portfalo
on the gas turbine, the skills and techrical knowledge within the Group
allow the business to Identify and explore new growth opportunities in
the energy market

During 2009 good progress was made on the establishment of the

new Rolls-Royce cwil nuctear business unit The business announced
plans to build a new factory in the UK to assemble and test systems and
components for nuclear power stations This facility wlt have strong
links with the UK Government-funded Nuclear Advanced Manufacturing
Research Centre, in which Rolls-Royce 15 a lead partner The Rolls-Royce
position in the nuclear market was further strengthened with the
sigring of a memorandum of understanding in 2009 with EDF Energy
to support the UK faciity

Rolls-Royce 15 already a global leader in the supply of digital
instrumentation and control systems for nuclear power plants, with
products installed in over 184 nuclear reactors worldwide

Investment in fuel cell development technology continued, although
at a reduced cost to the Group as planned Other energy research
ncluded udal power, where preparauans for sea tnals got undenway
during the year, following the Group taking full ownership of Tidal
Generation Limited

— Ratlls Sowvee plc — Arnuel oot 2009
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_ Engineering and technology

In 2009, Rolls-Royce invested a total of
£864 million in research and development,
of which £471 million was funded from
Group resources

The Group believes that its ongomng commitment o research and
development is fundamental to its future success, providing
technologies and intellectual property that allow us to compete on
a global basis in highly competitive markets

During 2009, we created a new advanced research centre in Singapore
to develop manufacturing, electrical systéms and high-power computing
capabiities Our new Mechanical Test Operations Centre in Dahlewitz,
Germany, neared complevon dunng the year This cantre will provde
mechanica! testing capability for all areas of the Group

Building on the success of our membershup of the Advanced
Manufacturning Research Centre, we have increased our focus on
advanced manufacturing In the UK, we announced our partnership 1n
the new Naticnal Composites Centre, the Advanced Fabncation
Research Centre, the Advanced Nuclear Research Centre and became
the inaugural industrial partner in the Manufactunng Technology Centre
Additonally, we became a partner of the US Commonwealth of Virginia
In two new centres studying advanced aéraspace propulsion systems
and advanced manufactunng

We continue to invest In our worldwide network of 27 Rolls-Royce
University Technology Centres, which undertake advanced research
for the Group across a range of specialist subject areas such as
matenals, noise, vibration and combustion During the year we
filed 440 patent applications

improving the environmenital performance of our products and
operanons continues 1o be a key driver for research and development
in Rolls-Royce We have completed the first build of the Erviranmentally
Friendly Engine and the second build of our mid-size technelogy
demonstrator engine These will begin testing in early 2010, delivering
technology for the next generation of civit gas turbine engines We

also continue to invest in several other large-scale demonstrator
programmes to reduce carbon ermissions, which focus both on future
gas turbine technology and advanced manufacturing

We completed wind tunnel testing of our open rotor aero-engine
concept This concept uses large unducted fan blades 1o secure a
significant reduction in fuel burn when compared with modern
turbofans Cur results demonstrated efficient performance and
low-noise charactenstics in hne with our expectations

—Rolls-Reyee olc —A-noal teport 009

£864m

Investrment

440

Patent applications

R
Highlights

« Award of the second phase of the ADVENT programme
« First fight of the Trent 1000-powered Boeing 787

» First flight of the BR725-powered Gulfstream G650

« First flight of the TP400-powered Airbus A400M

» First in-fight engagement of the F-35 LiftSystem

« Initial trials of the first Astute class submanne

——— AN S
Key performance indicators
2005 2006 2007 208 2009/
Gross research and
development expendiure fm 663 747 824 885 864
Net research and
development expenditure fm 339 385 454 490 LYl
Net research and
development charge £m 282 370 381 403 379
Net raseasch and development
expenditure % of
underlying revenue 52 54 58 54 47

Our work for the US Awr Force on the Adaptive Versatile Engine
Technology (ADVENT) programme has led to us being awarded the
second phase of funding, wihich will nclude the incorporauon of
Phase 1 technologies in a demonstrator engine ADVENT focuses on
the variable cycle and geometry to meet demanding US defence
requirements for the next generation of military engines

We achieved notable engineening successes in each of our key
business sectors

In the civil aerospace business, the Trent 1000 successfully completed

its Extended Twin Operauons (ETOPS) testing and, at the end of the

year, powered the Boeing 787 on 1ts first fight The BR725 engine was
certified and delivered on time and powered the new Gulfstream G650
corporate Jet on its maiden flight The AE 3007A2 engine for the Embraer
Legacy 650 completed the majority of its certification testing and staried
flight testung

— 25
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Our marnne business has designed a radical wave-piercing hull concept
for applicauens in the offshore marine market For the second year
runnuing Rolls-Royce won the coveted 'Ship of the year award;, this tme
for the ‘Far Samson’ = the most powerful offshore vessel ever built The
Littoral Combat Ship, USS Freedom, completed US Navy acceptance
trials in preparation for entering service The first Type 45 Destroyer,
HMS Daring, has entered serwice with the Royal Navy powered by the
WR-21 and work on her sister ships 1s progressing well The first Astute
class nuclear-powered attack submarine with the Rolls-Royce designed,
full-life, PWR2 power system has salled for initial trials

In defence aerospace, the Airbus A400M powered by the Europrop
TP400 wrboprop engine made a successful first fight in 2009 and the
BAE Systems Manus unmanned aenal vehicle, powered by Rolls-Royce,
also operated flawlessly during its fight trials In the F-35 Joint Strike
Fighter programme, the first development F136 engine was delivered
one month ahead of schedule The Rolls-Royce LifiSystem, for the short
take-off and vertical landing vanant, completed ground testung and
awrcraft taxi trials ahead of its first engagementin-flight which was
achieved early in 2010

In energy, the latest industnal Trent combustion system entered service
during the year and the design of the high efficiency RB211-H63 has
progressed significantly We continue our work on low carbon energy
solutions During 2009, we began installauon of 2 500kw udal power
generator in the waters off the coast of Scotland and the Group
continues to invest in engineenng capakihty to support its move INto
the civil nuclear energy market

—FRoll; Fovge ph _Arnual eport 2009
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_Operations

2009 proved to be a challenging year but
also one of notable achievement for our
operations We improved our revenue per
employee significantly from £211,000 in
2008 to £233,000 in 2009

The Group managed the disruptive effects of the recession and changes
to programmes, we reduced our inventory levels and, although gas
turbine product costs increased shghtly these were held at a level of
three per cent above those of 2008

Qur operational activity In 2009 centred around two prime objectives
managing our own activities and those of the supply chainin a weak
global economic climate, while at the same time continuing with our
programme of investment for the future

The Group's operations and its supply chain faced the challenges of
uncertain market condiuons, depressed financing markets and volazlity
In major programmes such as the Boeing 787 Dreamiiner, Airbus A380
arhner and the A400M mulitary arrlifter

Weaker demand in the corporate and regional jet market and for cvil
engine overhauls and spare parts in the large engine market, reduced
levels of activity and impacted on productmity and unit costs

QOur manne business had a record year, placing addinonal demand
on operations Although certain product areas saw a slowdown in
production, we also introduced an unprecedented number of new
products in this sector Nevertheless, the supply chain coped well by
using our production planning and managerment tools and we were
able 10 successfully match capacity to demand

Across the Group we sought 1o ensure that we maintained the correct
balance of employees to meet current and anticipated demand This did
involve same difficult decisions and, regrettably, some redundancies
Qur employees remain understanding, loyal and co-operative, working
with us 1o help miugate the effects wherever possible and | would like
to thank them for therr support

Qur process excellence and Improvement journeys continued
throughout 2009 Cur joint venture engine overhaul facilities, Hong Kong
Aero Engine Services Limited (HAESL) and Singapore Aero Engine
Services Limited (SAESL), were the latest to benefit from the rollout

of the enterprise resource planning and SAP process systems

Araund 500 engineers based at our engineerning support services
business in India, also became connected to our design network,

—Ro Is-Royee plc — A nugl report 2009

£291m

Capital expenditure

Highlights

« Recession 2nd delays to major programmes managed successfully
» Announced investment in Singapore facilities now at £300 million
« £300 million investment 1n UK faclities announced in 2009

» Building of new US facility commenced

« Globalintegration of people and systems continues

Key performance indicators

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Capital expenditure £m 232 303 304 283 291
Product cost index -
year-on-year
(increase)/decrease % - (5) 6] {4) [£)]
Underiying revenue
per employee £000 169 182 194 1 213

! Calculated on a three-year roling basts

Product Life-cycle Management, and are now able to work concurrently
on design models with colleagues around the world

Continuing with our investment plan 1s important, as the Group must
Increase its operational capabity in order to deliver the inevitable
growth over the next decade that we will expenence This growth is
as a result of the Group's improved market position and current order
book commuments

We announced further new investments in facilities in 2009 and

work commenced on facilines that had already been announced
Constructon of our new US-based disc manufactunng centre in
Crosspointe, Virginia, began during the year

Cur plans progressed on the buillding of the new assembly and test
facility for Trent engines at the Seletar Aerospace Park, Singapore We also
announced that we will build an addonal wide-chord fan blade facilny
on an adjacent site at Seletar, bringing the total investment on the site

to £300 milkon and creating 500 jobs over the next few years

4
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A further £300 million of significant capital investment in the UK was also
announced, creating or securing 800 jobs The Group 1s to build a new
single crystal turbine blade facility at a location yet to be determined and
in Sunderland we are 1o build a new discs facility We are also extending
our wide~chord fan blade facility at Barnoldswick te support our defence
business These gas turbine faciliues are addressing the planned increase
in the manufacturing of components that the Group sees as necessary
over the next five years and they will help provide improved productmvity
henefits on our current product range

In addition, we announced in 2009 our intention 1o create a new facility
in the UK to support cur emerging civi! nuclear business

Despite the planned increases in our own capability, the proportion of
parts that the Group buys, Including through cur partnerships, will also
continue to Increase as we move towards having fewer, larger and more
capable suppliers to support our global operations

The increasing globalisation of our own cperations and of cur supply
chain will, over time, bring together world-class capabibties while also
helping to reduce the Group's US dollar exposure

Our focus continues to be on operational excellence, strong partnerships
and technological superiority, as we manage the current economic
situation alongside continuing with our Investments to provide the
increased operational capacity we require for future growth

While we expect 2010 to be no less volatile, it s pleasing to reflect on
a year of strong progress Our operations have praven to be robust
and adaptable, giving us confdence in our ability to cope well with
challenges and changes as we maove ahead

_ Rofis Sorte pk __Annyel eport 2009
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__Services

Services activities provide around one half

of the Group’s revenues, having increased

ten per cent compound over the past ten
years As the original equipment manufacturer,
Rolls-Royce 1s best placed to provide ' mission
crnitical’ support, long-term product care and
well planned maintenance on behalf of
customers In each of the markets we serve

The Group's service business capabilives include field services, the

sale of spare parts, equipment overhaul services, component reparr,
data management, field support, equipment leasing and inventory
management These are typically sold as packages such as our TotalCare
suite We work closely with customers to align these service packages to
therr operational needs, helping to maximise the eficient operation of
the equipment on their behalf

In crvil aerospace, over 65 per cent of the total large-engine fleet and
nearly 90 per cent of the in-service Trent fleet 1s now managed under
TotalCare We also have aver 900 corporate and business et aircraft
enrotled in CorporateCare, the equivalent offening for this market sector
This year, significant TotalCare contracts were signed with arhines in
Asia, the Middle East and the US

Defence continued to develop its MissionCare provision worldwide and
its service presence on military bases A number of long-term engine
service agreements were signed with customers of the C-130) airl frer
worldwide and contracts were signed with the UK Minustey of Defence
1n support of frontline fighter aircraft engines The US Department of
Defense also signed major agreements for suppart of Rolls-Royce
engines In sefvice

Energy secured 12 long-term service agreements which, together with
the additional 35 new gas turbine units that will become operaticnal
duning 2010, will take the number of gas turbines under long-term
service agreement to over 300 In support of the Rolls-Royce fleet in
China, a 22-year maintenance, repair and overhaul agreement was
signed with PetroChina for the West to East Gas Pipeline Project

New service operations serving energy customers were opened in
Angola, India, Isrzel, Kazakhstan and Qatar

In the marine market our investment in capability and capacity
continued 10 deliver benefits, with ten per cent services revenue growth
in 2009 Manne customers require their service centres 1o be close to
their cperational base and therefore the expansion of our network to
serve therr needs continued Six new centres were opened durnng the
year in North Amernica, South America, Europe and the Middle East

We have also developed underwater intervention capabulity, enabling
Rotls-Royce to complete major propulsion overhauls without the need
for ume-consuming dry dockings

— Polls-Rowee plc — A nual € port 209
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US$1,050bn

Market opportunity over 20 years

£4,927m

Underlying revenue

Highhghts
 Service revenues ingreased by four per cent 10 £4 9 billion

* 65 per cent of the cwvil large engine fleet now under
TotalCare support

* QSy5 expands service diagnostic and predictive capabilities

* Major defence contracts secured for Typhoon and C-130)
arrlifter engines

+ New marine service ¢entres opened around the world
« Over 300 long-term service contracts now signed by energy

L ]
Key performance indicators

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Underlying services

revenue fm 1457 3090 4265 4755 4,927
Underlying services as

percentage of Group revenue 54 53 55 52 59

The Group invested over £10 million this year in developing and
restructuring our gas turbine repair and overhaul network, which
will deliver significant improverments in performance and customer
sansfacuon We also upgraded our service processes and continued
to make progress in standardising our IT systems for global services

Qur SAESL joint venture celebrated s 1,000th Trent engine overhaul and
a £25 milion facility extension was opened A similar investment in our
HAESL joint venture s planned to open in 2010 N3, our Germany-based
repair and overhaul joint venture with Lufthansa marked its 100th Trent
engine overhaul this year and 1s now fully capable for Trent 500 and 700
overhaul, with Trent 900 capability development underway 2009 also saw
the celebranion of 50 years of reparr and overhaul operations in Brazil
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Duning 2009, we opened our sixth On-Wing Care facility in Indianapolis,
US, and our field service capability supported over 4,000 aero engines
globally Good progress has been made 1in applying this capabshity across
all sectars Our facus on asset optimisauon was further reinforced by the
Opumzed Systems and Solutions Inc (OSyS) business, created in 2009
OSyS has further expanded our in-service diagnostic and predctive
capabilines and signed contracts this year with Qatar Airways and
easylet for its fuel management system, enabling them both to realise
substantial fuel savings OSyS also expanded the health monitoring
services and capabilities already applied successfully to arcraft engines
and energy systems

We expanded component repair coverage and capability across all
sectors and delivered savings to Rolls-Royce of £120 million durning 2009
Qur Imternationat Engine Component Overhaul Limited (IECO) joint
venture in Singapore completed its 11th year of aperation and the reparr
of its one millionth component Both SAESL and IECO were recognised
with several presugious awards, highlighting ther contribution to the
Asia Pacific region, process Innovation, new technology intreduction
and service delivery

— Rals Renvee ple — Anniar PROMT 2009
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_ The business case for corporate responsibility

Corporate responsibility 1s a fundamental
part of the Group’s business strategy It 1s not
conducted as a separate and self-contained
activity, but 1s integral to the business

We see corporate respeonsibility as making a key contnbution to the

success of Rolls-Royce We believe that conducting business in an

ethical and responsible manner creates competitive advantage by

enabling us to

* attract and retain the best people,

+ build goodwill and maintain successful working relationships
with customers, supphers and governments, and

« support the global communities in which our employees live
and work

The Group’s values of reliability, integrity and innovation are embedded
in our Global Code of Business Ethics This provides a framework for our
stakeholder relationships worldwide, the strength of which helps 1o
shape the Group's reputation

With around 38,500 employees 1in more than 50 countries, our strongest
contribution to society 1s the wealth generated by the thousands of
highly skilled jobs we provide worldwide

Governance

Each area of corporate responsibility has ts own governance process

or managing cominittee These include

* the ethics commuttee, consisting exclusively of independent
non-executive directors,

« the health, safety and environment committee, chaired by the
Chief Executive,

« the Envirenment Council, chaired by the Diector - Engineering and
Technology,

* the Environmental Advisory Board, chaired by a semior academic
from the Massachusets Institute of Technology,

* the Globhal Council, chaired by the Director - Human Resources,

+ the Global Diversity and Inclusion Steering Group, chared by the
Chief Operating Officer, and

* the Group community Investment and sponsorship commitieg,
chared by the Chief Executive

Indwidual subject matter expertise 1s reviewed by the Corporate
Responsibility Steering Group, which reports to the Board This group
comprises the Director - Human Resources, Director - Public Affairs,
Director of Risk and the General Counsel and Company Secretary

In addition, the corporate responsibility risk register uses the Group
nsk process 1o identify the potenual nsks and opportunities, as well
as mytigation plans to address these risks Additional mformation

can be found in the Principal nisks and uncertainties section on
pages 1410 16

—Ro is-Reyce olc — Annual repor 2009

External recognition

Rolls-Royce 1s ranked 1n @ number of external indices which
benchmark corporate respensibility performance, see below

Business in the Community Corporate Responsibilicy Index (BitC)
The BitC Index assesses the extent 10 which corporate strategy 1s
integrated into business practice throughout an organisation It
provides a benchmark for companies to evaluate their management
practices in key areas of corporate responsibility and performance
in a range of environmental and social impact areas In this year's
BitC Index, Rolls-Royce retained ts Gold status with an overall score
of 93 per cent

Dow Jones Sustainability World and European Indexes (DJSH
Rolis-Royce has retained its position in the DISI for the eighth
consecutive year, thereby achieving international recognition of being
amongst the best-in-class for addressing a range of sustainability
issues Qur overall score of 80 per cent represented an improvement
of one per cent on last year and we once again achieved first position
In the Aercspace and Defence sector The Group scored 100 per cent
for environmental reporting, product impact and operational
eco-efficiency and the best sectar score for both climate strategy

(91 per cent) and occupational health and safety (95 per cent)

Carbon Disclosure Project (COP)

The CDP 15 an independent not-for-profit organisation holding the
largest database of primary corporate chimate change information in
the world Thousands of organisatiens from across the world's major
economies measure and disclose their greenhouse gas emissions
and chmate change strategies through CDP

For the second cansecutive year, Rolls-Royce has been included
within COP's FTSE 350 Carbon Disclosure Leadership index, in which
the quality and depth of a company's respanse to the annual CDP
questionnaire 1s scored

Ralls-Royce has a long history of being a responsible busingss We are
committed to building on our track record and our obligation 1o
behave responsibly
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__Our approach

Our approach to corporate responsibility
Is concentrated on four areas of activity

Business ethics

Rolls-Royce has a long history of conducting business responsibly and
ethically Our commitment o act with integrity 1s at the heart of the way
we operate and we regard ethical behaviour as key to maintaining and
strengthening our reputation for being trusted to deliver excellence

Health, safety and the environment {HS&E)

With its heritage of technological and engineenng excellence,
Rolls-Royce 15 well placed 1o help society address the problems of
climate change and energy security We also believe that good HS&E
performance in our cperations 15 synonymous with good business
Qur objective 15 1o achieve world-class performance at every site and
to be widely recognised for the excellence of our HS&E performance

Employees

We aim to attract and retain the best pecple and create an inclusive

working environment in which creativity, capability and motivation |
flourish By continually improving levels of employee performance, |
we deliver on our commitments

Society

Rolls-Royce has a firm long-standing commitment 10 the communities

inwhich we operate Sustained investment in communities makes a |
positive difference and delwvers tangible benefits to our business
Corporate respensibility 1s also a key enabler in deliverning our global |
supply chain strategy \
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_. Business ethics

Rolls-Royce has a long history of conducting
business responsibly and ethically Our
commitment to act with integnty is at the
heart of the way we operate and we regard
ethical behaviour as key to maintaining and
strengthening our reputation

The Board strongly believes that the Group's business should be
conducted in a way that reflects the highest ethucal standards The ethics
committee was established in 2008 to oversee the implementation of
the Group's global ethics strategy and the management of ethical and
reputational nsk The commutiee consists exclusively of independent
non-executive directors and met four times in 2009

In 2009, as a demonstration of the Group's commitment to setting
industry-leading standards of ethical business conduct, Rolls-Royce
signed the statement of adherence 1o the Aerospace and Defence
Industries Association of Europe Common Industry Standards

Global Code of Business Ethics

In 2008, Rolls-Royce published an updated version of its Global Code

of Business Ethics {the Global Code) and 1ssued a personal copy to every
employee The revised Global Code sets out the principles for employees
1o follow when conducting business and provides practical guidance

10 help entfy, resolve and report any ethical 1ssues or dilemmas they
may face It sets standards of ethical behaviour for working together,
conducting business with customers, suppliers and joint ventures,
running our company, health safety and the environment, and working
within our communities Principles and guidance for managers and
employees are provided in key areas such as diversity, discriminatian
and harassment, bribery and corruption, conflicts of interest and safe
working The Global Code encourages employees to ask for help and
assures them that concerns can be raised without fear of reprisal 1tis
avallable in 16 languages and can be viewed on the Group's website

at www rolls-royce com/cr/ethics

Training and awareness programme

In 2009, the Group completed a programme of face-to-face training for

all employees to strengthen awareness of the Group's values and embed
the Global Code The training programime included facilitated half-day
leadership workshops for almost 4,600 managers across the Group The am
of these workshops was to set the tone at the top, make managers aware
of the content of the Global Code and equip them with the necessary tools
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10 deat with ethics-related ssues appropriately Employee briefings were
subsequently delivered by these managers to their teams using supporting
matenials Including briefing guides, Global Code wall ¢harts and a corporate
values and ethics video A tallored ethics e-learning course will be available
in 2010 to reinforce the face-to-face traning provided 1n 2009

Confidential reporting line

Anindependently operated and confidential ethics reporting facility is
avallable worldwide so employees can raise issues or concerns regarding
business conduct independently ¢f the normal management chain This
facility includes telephone lines and an external website Rolls-Royce
employees can call any one of over 30 telephone numbers in countrnies
across the world 1o report any concerns they may have with regard to
business conduct Calls are made in total confidence, being handled
independently by the partnership LRN - EthicsPoint Reports are
investigated by the business ethucs and compliance team with support
from the businesses, security, legal counsel and human resources as
required An ethics report steering group meets quarterly to review
cases, Identify trends and manage the asscciated ethical and reputational
risks The ethecs committee monitors cases reported, the management
of cases and the results for high risk invesugations undertaken
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__Health, safety and the environment
(HS&E)

Rolls-Royce 1s well placed to help society
address the problems of chimate change
and energy security

We also believe that good HS&E performance
1N Our operations Is synonymous with

good business Our objective 1s to achieve
world-class performance at every site

HS&E management

We belleve that all cases of work-related ill-health, injunes and
environmental Incidents are avoidable Our vision 15 to have world-class
levels of performance on every site and be recognised for the excelience
of our H5&E performance The Group's arrangements for HS&E
governance and management systems implementation are detailed

in our Policy & Management Arrangements booklet available on

www rolls-royce com/er Performance improvement is delivered through
the iImplementauon of a focused strategy, the core elements of which
cover leadership commitment and involvement, full implementation
of the company HS&E management systern and related standards, and
implementation of best practice and reducing risks through the removal
or minimisaticn of hazards in the workplace

An underlying theme of our strategy 1s to continue to develop a strong
HS&E culture A team of HS&E professionals supports ine management
at the corporate, business and site levels During 2009, we have made
further progress to strengthen the capabilities of the HS&E function

All the Group’s businesses have third-party certfication to the
enwronmental management system standard 150 14001 During 2009,
we consolidated all of our third-party cerufication and surveillance
activities into one provider ~ Bureau Veritas Certification This 1s aimed
atincreasing the efficiency and effectiveness of the global programme
This also supports our drive 10 provide consistent standards across the
Group and to focus our efforts on key issues In this way we will derve
greater benefit from the certfication process

The Group has recently committed 10 a programme of third-party
certificauion to OHSAS 18001, the standard for Occupational Health and
Safety management systems, across all businesses by 2012 This will
provide independent assessment across all of the elements of our
HS&E management system Both the 15O 14001 and the GHSAS 18001
international standards are supported within the Group by a
comprehensive range of Rolls-Royce standards and guidelines
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We operate three sites in the UK which together manufacture, test
and support nuclear reactor cores for the Royal Navy's submarines
The Nuclear Propulsion Assurance Committee regularly monitors the
performance of both the submarines and recently formed cvil nuclear
businesses and seeks evidence that the highest standards of HS&E are
maintained and that fit-for-purpose processes are followed

The Group’s contribution to developing best practice through
third-party collaboration continues We are taking a leading industry
role in Registration, Evaluation, Authonsation and restriction of Chemicals
(REACH), the latest EU chemicals regulation and continue to work with
other companies, trade bodies, sectors and regulators on implementation
Durning 2009, efforts have again focused on raising awareness within our
supply chain, such that appropnate arrangements for complance and
business continuity are introduced well ahead of deadlines We continue
to support the development of international standards within aviation,
for the phased declaration of substances supplhed to us to facilitate
future REACH compliance and, where required, industry-wide
subsutution programmes We also continue 10 consult widely with

the Eurcpean Chemicals Agency (ECHA) on pertinent matters relating

e implementation and comphance within our ectors

We conunue 1o partucipate in and meet our ongoing commitments
under various climate change agreements such as the EU Emisstons
Trading Scheme and the US Chicago Climate Exchange greenhouse
gas emissions trading scheme The Group 1s also preparing for the
latest carbon emissions reduction requiations in the UK under the
Carbon Reducton Commitrent Energy Efficiency Scheme Such
measures, alongside the underpinning science, are fully considered
when setting Group greenhouse gas reduction targets

Operational performance

Shaped by our HS&E strategy we continue to implement prionused
waork programmes across all our sites to meet the challenging objectives
and targets that have been set In the past year, we have made excellent
progress against these targets There were no fatalities in the Group
during 2009 and no prosecutions against the Group for HS&E offences
Comprehensive impravement programmes, with an enhanced level of
support from the Corporate HS&E team, were imated at the poorer
performing sites during 2009 A significant improvement in performance
has been achieved at these target sites

Durning 2009, we intreduced a web-based, global reporting system,
which now provides the faciity 1 collect and review HS&E performance
1N our operations on a monthly basis This provides iImproved tracking of
performance at site, business and Group fevels Our latest progress report
15 avallable on the Group's website at www rolls-royce com/cr/reports
Our data collection and reporting is subject 1o independent assurance
and recommendations for improvement by Deloitie LLP
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Our 2007-2009 objectives and targets were to

Protect health
Reduce the incident rate of occupational diseases and other
work-related ill health by ten per cent by the end of 2009

Prevent injury
Achieve a 15 per cent reduction in the lost-time injury rate
(over one day) by the end of 2009

Reduce environmental impact
Achieve a ten per cent reduction in energy consumed (normalised
by financial revenues) by the end of 2008

Achieve a ten per cent reduction in solid waste (normahised by
financial revenues) by the end of 2009

Achieve a 58 per cent recycle rate of salid waste by the end of 2009

Detaled results will be pubhshed during 2010 on the Group's

website at www ralls-royce com/cr/reports

L ___________________________________________]
A new set of objectives and targets for the period 2010-2012

have been agreed and are set out below:

Protect health
Reduce the Group incident rate of occupational diseases and other
work related (ll-health by ten per centby end 2012

Prevent injury
Reduce Company Total Reportable Injury (TRI) rate by 50 per cent
by end 2012

Reduce environmental impact
Five per cent reduction in company facility greenhouse gas
emissions by end 2012 (absolute)

Ten per ceni reduction in total Group greenhouse gas emissions by
end 2012 (normahsed by financial revenues)

Ten per cent reduction in total Group production waste {(sohd and
iquid) by end 2012 {(normahsed by financial revenues)

70 per cent Group recycle rate of sclid waste by end 2012

— A nuafreport 2309

Product environmental performance

Rolls-Royce 1s both committed and well placed 1o find solutions to the
substantizl challenges pased by climate ¢hange The Group believes that
technclogy must be applied on an industrial scale, through companies
such as Rolls-Royce with global reach, to achieve significant reductions
IN &missions

The Group closely monitors developmenis in the underpinning science
10 hetp steer the significant research and development programmes
undertaken across all product ranges Such knowledge, supplemented
by independent expert advice from the Group's Environmental Advisory
Board made up of disunguished academics who are leading authorities
in therr respective fields, 15 also vital to the overall business strategy and
design process

In vl aerospace we have used our technological expertise to reduce
significantly the fuel consumpuon of our products and conseqguently
carbon dioxide emissions, since the first jet arcraft entered service
For example, the Trent 1000 engine 1s 25 per cent more efficient than
the first RB211 engine The Trent 900 and 1000 engines, for the Arrbus
A380 and Boeing 787 respectively, and in future the Trent XWB for the
Arrbus A350 XWB, help us demanstrate progress towards meeting our
Advisory Council for Aercnautics Research in Europe (ACARE) goal of
a 15-20 per cent reduction in engine fuel burn by 2020 compared to
2000 levels The Group alsa conunues to drive for reductions In noise
and improvements in air quality

We are taking a leading role in research, including the Environmentally

Friendly Engine (EFE), a combined UK Government, industry and

unIversity programme, as part of our continuing drive to improve the

environmental performance of our aero engines As part of the Eurcpean

Comrrussion Clean Sky Joint Technology Initiative, we are leading a

€400 million engine research pregramme, where our efforts are focused

on demonstrators for low-weight advanced turbofans and ultra-low fuel

burn geared open roters Ralis-Royce 1s also leading other joint

Gavernment/industry programmes, including

* Strategic Investment in Low-carbon Engine Technotogy (SILOET),

» Strategic Affordable Manufactunng in the UK through Leading
Environmental Technelogies (SAMULET), and

s Envirgnmental Lightweight Fan (ELF)

Rolls-Royce 15 an active member of the UK Sustainable Aviation Councll,
which compnses manufacturers, arlines, airports and airr navigation
service providers and is an industry body committed to bullding a
sustainable future for aviation Its second progress report, published

in 2009, includes an emissions reduction ‘Roadmap’ detaiing that
significant abaternent s feasible in the UK by 2050
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Nuclear power 15 expected to represent an important component of
future low-carbon electneity generation Rolls-Royce has substantial
capabilities in this area gained through supplying power systems for
the UK nucilear-powered submanne fleet over many decades and, in
response to the formidable challenge posed by chimate change, has
formed a civil nuclear business unit

A new factory 1s planned to manufacture, assemble and test
components for new cvil nuclear power stations These include
pressure vessels, heat exchangers and other large and complex reactor
parts, manufactured to exacung nuclear standards The facility will
have strong links with the Nuclear Advanced Manufactunng Research
Centre, announced by the UK Government in July 2009, in which
Rolls-Royce will be the leading industnal partner

' SFC fuel consumption normalised for engine power
ACARE Adwisory Council for Aeronauncs Research in Europe

The awaton sector 15 closely examining the potenual of tig-fuels to
offer a sustainable lower-carbon alternative 10 kerosene Rolls-Royce
has supported a number of flight trials, whilst remaining conscious of
the wider sustainability issues Qur position 1s that, to be acceptable,
candidate alternative fuels must
* be technically suitable,
* be deployable on a scale sufficient to displace a significant quantity
of kerosene use,
» avoid harmful impacts on food availability and cost, water demand
and ecosystems and
« offer an overall lifecycle carben footprint significantly fower
than kerosene

Envirgnmental performance 1s fundamental across all of our businesses
For example, In the marine sector our market leading Azipull thrusters
use 16 per cent less energy than conventional thrusters, resulting in
lower ermissions We are also extending our range of marine reciprocating
engines capable of running on liquefied natural gas (LNG), which
compared with diesel fuel In conventional engines, prowide significantly
lower CO,, NO, and SO, emissions

The Groug continues to explore opportunities in low emission and
alternative energy products and is working in partnership with the UK
Energy Technologies Institute As part of this work programme, a
prototype tdat device has been developed and will be tested at the
European Marine Energy Centre, in Orkney, Scotland

— Roolls Aer e ple —Annual epurt 2007
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.. Employees

We aim to attract and retain the best people
and create an inclusive working environment
In which creativity, capability and motivation
flourish By continually improwving levels of
employee performance, we deliver on our
commitments

Engaging employees

At the end of 2009, Rolls-Royce employed 38,500 permanent staff in
over 50 countries The long lifecycle of the Group's products makes it
imperative that we have a skilled workforce that s committed to
delvenng excellence to customers over the long term To achieve this
and help improve performance, we aim to create an inclusive working
environment that attracts and retains the best people, enhances thewr
flexibility, capability and motivation and encourages them to be involved
in the ongoing success of the Group

In 2005, we formed a Global Council to iImprove our consultaton and
employee engagement The full council meets twice a year and involves
42 employee delegates and a selection of senor management
representatives from each business and function Employee delegates
are elected 1o represent both employees that are members of unions
and those who are not An executive committee of eight elected
delegates meets senior management an addinonal four times
throughout the year 1o ensure regular dizlogue and tmely consultation
between council meetings

In 2009, our global etection process saw 30 per cent of Global Councll
delegates take up the responsibility for the first ime Due 1o the
changing shape of our global workforce and the need for delegates to
have effective communication and interaction during and in between
Global Council meetings, we ran cultural awareness training for all
delegates in 2009

Since 2008, we have conducted an annual strategy storyboard, an
interactive Group-wide briefing on corperate direction and performance
The storyboard i1s delivered globally through small face-to-face briefings
and ensures all our employees have a good understanding of the Group's
key objectives and the contribution each individual can make towards
meeting them

Qur Employee Engagement Survey was redesigned at the end of

2008 to give clearer and more comprehensive feedback and was
incarporated into a two-year solling global engagement programme
The first improved global employee survey was conducted in January
2009 with a partucipation rate of 80 per cent, a marked increase from the
46 per cent participation 1n 2006 The new reporung format has allowed
us to develop improverment activities that are being implemented acrass
each business and function A pulse-check survey to gauge employees’
percepuons of progress will be undertaken in early 2010

—_Rols-Royce ple —AnnLa teport 2009

Rolls-Royce provides competitive pay and benefits in all its locations
and actively encourages share ownership by offering ShareSave plans
to all employees Our employees have currently committed around
£106 million 1o these plans In the UK, statutery arrangements enable
employees to receve part of therr annual benus in shares and to make
moenthly share purchases from therr salary

Encouraging diversity

The Group ts committed to developing a diverse workforce and equal
opportunities for all This Includes encouraging more women and
people from minornty backgrounds to pursue engineering careers
Qur global governance framewark for diversity mcludes a senior
executive Global Dwersity Steering Group that provides leadership
and shapes strategic direction

During 2009, we recruited MBA students from 11 nations, graduates for
our worldwide graduate programme from 34 nations, and apprentices
in the UK and Germany from five nations

In Asia, we ¢continue to make good progress in attracting the highest
quality leadership talent Several key management roles have provided
the opportunity to recruit new senior management locally As the need
for early career high potential talent strengthens in the region, we have
also engaged with several universities to encourage students to apply
for our graduate recruitment and development programmes

Launched 1n 2006, our UK Women's Network focuses an personal and
professional skills development as well as providing support through
networking and mentonng frameworks Participation continues to grow
and, duning 2009, we supported the launch of a Women's Network in
Incdianapohs, North Amenca, and we are currently supporting the launch
of a network in Germany

Qur palicy 1s 1o provide, wherever possible, employment traiming and
development opportunities for disabled pecple We are committed to
supporting employees who become disabled during employment and
10 helping disabled employees make the best possible use of their skills
and potential
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Learning and development

In Decembser 2008, we launched MyLearning, a global system providing
access for all employees to both instructor-led and online learning
Through this web-based system, emplayees are now able to view the
training available, book onto a course, undertake online learmng and
review their traiming history By the end of December 2009, employees
from 44 countries had accessed the system, with over 11,000 employees
undertaking more than 65,000 hours of online training

We have begun to roll out a programme of competency definitions
that will align generic jobs to behavioural and technical competencies
These competencies will allow all our employees to assess their skills
and knowledge against those required to carry out therr job successfully
Through MyLearning, employees can run a self-assessment and are
then offered training to ensure that they develop the skills needed to
meet the required competency levels

Duning 2009 our iearning and development team provided 9,000

days of leadership training and delivered learmng and development
programmes that supported capatility development for indwiduals

and the business We conutinue to use trained facihtators te deliver global
traiming programmes such as business ethics and our annual strategy
storyboard to all employees

About 1,000 employees have benefited from financial support and time
off work to attend further educanon programmes at local colleges and
universities and we provided £1 7 million to finance this type of learning

Overall we invested £24 million i the education, training and
professional development of employees duning the year

Resourcing and deployment

We continue o focus on the recruitment, development, and deployment
of leadership and professional capability across all of our functions
globally Leadership succession and indmidual career development is
managed through development meetings held on a regular basis with
senior leadership teams throughout the Group Discussions in these
forums are directly hinked to the development of resourcing plans
which identiiy the need for specialist, managenal MBA graduate and
apprentice employees Development meetings operate at four
different levels in the organisation, ensuring a balanced focus on the
development and advancement of employees including high potential
employees, technical specialists and senior executives This ulumately
enables effective deployment of people throughout the business

During 2009, we recruited 199 graduates onto Rolls-Royce graduate
programmes and 254 apprentices and technicians worldwide and an
additional 256 students were employed on short-term vraining projects
in the UK and North America We remain in the upper quartle of

The Times Top 100 Graduate Employers survey and are ranked i first
position for engineering companies

- RiYls Rovee plo —AnnLal 1 port 2009

Health and wellbeing

The Group 15 committed to promoting best practice in occupational
health and provides professional experuise through highly regarded
service providers The primary objective of the Group's occupational
health strategy remains a culture of preventon rather than cure

The strategy maintains four key areas of focus
» screening and survaillance,

* rehabilitation,

+ health promotion, and

 education

We continue to demonstrate good progress against our screening and
surveillance targets These are detailed in the Responsible Operauons
report, published in Apnl 2007 and subsequent updates available on
the Group's website at www rolls-royce com/cr/reports

The 'Know your body metrics health promotion campaign designed to
complement the Owners Handbook' on wellbeing rolled out in 2007
and 2008 has been continued in 2009 following popular demand

The proegramme 15 designed to raise awareness and understanding

of cardiovascular risk factors

An anonymous online guestionnaire found that the 'Owners Handbook'
and the'Know your body metncs’booklet were rated as'good to
excellent’ by more than 80 per cent of respondents Some 45 per cert
said they had made beneficial ifestyle changes as a result of the
information

A pilot programme 1in one of our business units tock place with the
Sainsbury Centre for Mental Health based on the successful Australian
programme entitled beyondblue’ Further training and awareness are
planned to help managers idenufy depression in the workplace
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Society

Rotls-Royce has a firm, long-standing
commitment to the communities in which
we operate around the world

Sustained investment in communities
makes a positive difference and delivers
tangible benefits to our business Corporate
responsibiity I1s also a key enabler in
delivenng our global supply chain strategy

Society

The Group continues 1o foster productive supglier relationships which
*» deliver mutual business benefits,

* minimise the environmental impact of business operations,

*+ encourage the highest standards of ethical behaviour, and

+ promote human rnghts

We alsc set and manage ngorous performance standards for suppliers
through our quality system, Suppher Advanced Business Relatonships
{SABRe} This includes a supplier code of conduct, which 1s
complemented by the Group's purchasing code of conduct to

ensure suppliers and employees work 1o the same standards

We are an active member of the UK MoD/Industry Sustainable
Procurement working group, and lock to proactively engage suppliers
in this topic In 2010, we aim to address the integration of Sustainable
Procurement into our sourcing decision process

Over the last few years Rolls-Royce has voluntanly and publicly
declared our carbon emissions by having our data analysed by the
Carbon Disclosure Project (COP} As part of our membership of the
CDP we were able to extend this analysis into our external supply
chain by inviting some of cur suppliers from around the world to
declare their carbon emissions Due 1o the success of this analysis,
we plan to extend this pilot programme in 2010

We are commutted to working with suppliers 1o eliminate waste
Success in recycling metals within our manufacturing faciiiies has been
extended to support suppliers in recycling their waste metals In 2009,
we further extended our rerit on metal recycling by engaging with
selected customers to ensure that ther time-expired engine parts
enter the recycling process Inaddition, in 2009 over 4,000 tonnes of
high-value metals were returned from Rolls-Royce factonies directly
back to our own supply chain for re-use

Local sourcing policies reflect government regulations, such as in the

US where particular rules towards working with small and disadvantaged
businesses apply

—ArnLa repol 2009

Community investment

The Group has a long-standing comrmitment to suppaort its local

commuruties Community Investment 1s an intrinsic part of the way we

do business, supporting the Group's strategy and future success,

particularly in the areas of

+ recruitment and retention of employees, espectally by investing in the
science skills we need,

+ employee engagement, by encouraging a sense of loyalty, pnide and
motivation in our organisation,

» development of professicnal and personal skills such as teamwork,
leadership, adapiability and ethical behaviour, and

* reputation, by building proactive and mutually beneficial relationships
in the communities tn which we operate

During 2008, we conducted our sixth global survey of community
and sponsarship contrnibutions, including cash, employee ume and
aifts in kind, using the London Benchmarking Group model

The Groups total contributions across all these areas amounted to
approximately £6 7 million

Donations and sponsorship

The Group's charitable donations pelicy 1s to directly support causes
primarily relating to educational, engineening and scienufic objectives,
as well as social objectives connected with the Group's business and
place in the wider community’

The Group's charitable donations amounted to £2 3 million, of which

£1 5 million were made in the UK These included support for
Community Foundations, Emmaus for homeless people, and the main
armed service benevolent funds Rolls-Royce made charitable donations
of US$800,000 in North America, €135,000 in Germany and £200,000 in
ather regions These donations included support for the work of United
Way in North America and for the vicums of natural disasters 1n Vietnam,
Inchia, Indonesia and Brazi!

A further £2 1 million was contributed 1n sponsorships and educational
programmmes, including the Smithsonian Mational Air and Space Museum
in North America, the Brandenburg Summer Festival in Germany and
sponsorship of The Big Bang fair for young scientists and engineers in
the UK

The Group has a stated policy of working closely with governments and
institutions to highlight the many career opportunities that science and
engineering can offer

Qur flagship education programme, the Rolls-Royce Science Prize,
recognises excellent and innovative science teaching in the UK This
year's winner, Keils Lane Primary School in Gateshead, England, receved
a total of £20,000 for nts project, tn which teachers developed a wind
tunnel to test pupil-designed wind turbines In all, £120,000 was
awarded, with the help of the UK Science Learning Centre network, to
59 schools to Improve science teaching and learning As part of the
Science Prize, the Group sponsors Project ENTHUSE which prowides free
professional development courses to teachers in the UK through the
National Science Learming Centre

3%
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Employee time

Employee time contrnibuted durning 2009 1s estimated at a value of at least
£1 5 milhon, with more than 5,000 employees participating in actmities
such as community projects and team-building activiiies with societal
benefits

Qver 200 employees in the UK, North America and Germany took part
in 20 projects during the year as part of ther personal develcpment
These projects are recogmsed at the Group's Global Learning and
Development Awards

Employee giving

In addimion to the Group's own contributions, Rolls-Royce finances the
admunistration of a Payroll Giving Scheme for UK employees, enabling
them to make tax-free donations to their chosen charities In the UK
duning 2009, employees gave almaost £430,000 to more than 350
charitable causes of their choice The scheme 1s recogrised as Gold
Award standard by the UK Government's Payroll Giving Quality Mark,
with approximately 14 per cent of UK employees participating in the
scheme In North Amenca, employees have contnbuted over U5$550,000
directly from payroll to good causes through the United Way scheme, a
percentage of which is matched by the Group

In-kind support

The Group also supports community and educational organisations with
in-kind donations, iIncluding places on Group training courses and the
loan of engines and components

— Reats Rovee o __Arnual rport 20009
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__Finance Director’s review

“In 2009, the Group delivered
INcreases in revenue and profit.
The order book also remained
resilient in difficult market
conditions!

The Group delivered another year of strong progress in the face of
significant challenges in 2009 The global recession, together vath
industry specific issues, provided substanuial challenges, including the
continued delay of a number of major new aerospace programmes
However, a resilient financial performance provides clear evidence

of the strength of the business and its ability to adjust quickly in a
volatile environment

Our businesses are being affected by the same economic factors as
many of our peers and compettiors However, the Group's breadth
both by sector and geographical mix, the age of our installed fleet of
products, the strong positions we hold on current and future major
programmes, together with the Group's services revenues, provide us
with significant advantages and have helped delver a resilient overall
result for the year

The financial performance in 2009 met the expectations of the Board
and the gurdance provided at the start of the year, delivenng an

11 per cent increase 'n underlying Group revenues with underlying
profit before taxes up four per cent to £915 mullicn

As anticipated there was a cash outflow in the year of £183 milhon
This was as a consequence of the global economic downturn and
programme delays impacting the working capital cycle which was
exacerbated by year-end revaluation effects

The published results were heawly influenced by the significant
movements in foreign exchange rates in 2009, especially the GBP/USD
and the GBP/EUR which are explained on pages 41 and 42

The Group has maintained a strong financial position throughout the
year and its parent company, Rolls-Royce Group plc, continues to hold
strong credit ratings from both Standard & Poor’s (A-, Stable) and
Moody's (A3, Stable) At the year end, the Group held gross cash balances
of £30 bulhion with £1 7 bilhon of outstanding debt commutments - a net
cash posiuen of £1 3 billion with the average net cash having also
increased to £635 million over 2009 The redemptions on the Group's
existing bond financing, at around £1 7 billien, are wel! spread with
around 4S5 187 million due in the second half of 2010 and a €750 mithon
Eurobond due in 2011 as shown in the chart opposite The Group had a
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further £450 million in term funding available to it that was undrawn at
the year end The Group has essentially completed the refinancing of the
2013 Eurobond via the successful £500 mulhion GBP bond 1ssued in the
first half of 2009, the proceeds of which are now held on term deposit
and will be avallable to settle the 2011 bond when 1t falls due There are
no other matenal matusties until 2013

The ¢hanges made to the Group’s UK pension schemes over the last few
years have enabled the deficit tc remain stable and modest and the
schemes ended the year with a net deficit of £380 million on an
accounting basis, as detaited in note 17 of the financial staternents on
page 94 The triennial actuanal valuation of the Rolis-Royce Pensicn Fund,
representing 64 per cent of future habiliies, was completed in the year
producing a pleasing result with no matenial changes in the scale of the
deficit or future funding levels The stability in ongoing funding ss a direct
result of changes made to the Group's pension schemes to reduce the
volatihty of the deficit, and to provide stabilizy and visibility of cash
funding requirerments over the next three years

Foreign exchange effects on published results

The pace and extent of currency movements have continued 10 have
a sigruficant effect on the Group's financial reporting in 2009, with

the GBP/USD and GBP/EUR rates having the biggest impact These
movements have influenced both the reported income statement and
the cash flow and closing net cash position {as set out n the cash flow
statement and note 2 in the financial statements) in the following ways

1 Income statement - the most impartant impact was the end of year
mark to market of outstanding financial instruments {foreign exchange
contracts, interest rate, commodity and jet fuel swaps) The principal
adjustments related to the GBP/USD hedge book
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The principal movements in 2009 were as follows

Open Close
GBP-USD £1-51438 £1-51615
GBP-EUR £1-€1034 £1-€1126
Cil-Spot Brent 5459/ $77/bl

The ympact of this mark to market is included in net financing in the
income statement and caused a net £1,835 million benefit, contrbuting
1o a pubhshed profit before tax of £2.957 million These adjustments are
non-cash, accounung adjustments required under IAS 39 Anancial
Instruments Recogrition and Measurement As a result, reported earnings
do not reflect the economic substance of derivatives that have been
settled in the financial year, but do include the unrealised gains and
losses on derivatives that will only affect cash flows when they are
settled at some point in the future to match trading cash flows

Underlying earnings are presented on a basis that shows the economic
substance of the Group's hedging strategies in respect of transactianal
exchange rates and commaodity price movements Further details and
information are included within the section on key performance
indicators on page 9 and in note 2 of the financial statements

Underlying profit before finance costs of £915 million benefited from
£71 milhon of foreign exchange benefits compared o 2008 The
achieved rate on selling US dollar income around ane and a half cents
better in 2009 than 2008, contributed £16 mullion of transactional
benefits In addiuon, the improvement in the average GBP-USD and
GBP-EUR exchange rates, 29 and 14 cents respectively, contnbuted
translation benefits totalling £55 million to underlying profit before
tax in the year

The achieved rate on selling net US dollar income 1s expected to improve
by six to mine cents in 2010 compared to 2009, as the Group 15 able to
benefit from forward contracts at better rates Revaluation effects, which
are measured at a point in ume, do net, therefore, represent addmonal
currency headwinds or benefits

2 Cash flow and balance sheet - the Group mantains a number of
currency cash balances which vary throughout the financial year Given
the significant movements in foreign exchange rates in 2009, a number
of these cash balances were reduced by the effects of retranstation at the
year end, causing a reduction of £141 millicn tn the 2009 cash flow and
hence the closing balance sheet cash positicn

Summary

The Group's revenues increased by 15 per cent in 2009 10 £10,414 miflion
with 86 per cent of revenues from customers autside the UK Underlying
revenues grew 11 per cent in 2009 with double-digit increases in defence
aerospace, marine and energy and stable revenues in civil aerospace
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+ Underlying revenues in the civil aerospace dwision were stable at
£4,481 million (2008 £4,502 mullion) with a four per cent decline In
service revenues being offset by a four per cent improvernent in
revenues from orrginal equipment Onginal equipment revenues were
supported by a record year for the Trent family, with 224 engines
delivered, helping to offset 2 39 per cent reduction in delivenes for the
corporate and regional sector Overall 844 engines were delivered in
the year, including 347 V2500 engmnes, and 273 engines for various
corporate and regional applications Revenues from services were held
back by reduced discretionary spares and service activity as customers
reduced overhaul activity given lower utilisation patterns on a number
of large arrcraft types

Underlying defence aerospace revenues grew by 19 per cent
supported by strong growth n delivenies for the military transpert
sector New equipment revenues grew 30 per cent and services
revenues increased by ten per cent over 2008

The marnne business continued 1o grow strongly in the year with
underlying revenues increasing 17 per cent from 2008 to £2,589
million Overall new equipment revenues increased by 21 per cent

to £1,804 million with services revenues increasing ten per cent to
£785 million supported by the expansion of the marnine services
network as six facilities were opened or expanded in the year

The energy business made strong prograss in the year with underlying
revenues up 36 per cent to £1,028 million, supported by good growth
in both onginal equipment and services activities

.

Overall underlying services revenues increased by four per cent in 2009
to £4,927 mullion and accounted for 49 per cent of Group revenues
for the year

Underlying profit margins before financing costs reduced shghtly from
100 per cent 1 2008 to 9 7 per cent in 2009 The reduction in margin
reflected an increased mix of onginal equipment and increased unit
costs Underlying financing costs increased by £29 million to £68 million
(2008 £39 millon) including an increase in the net interest charge of
£33 mullign as a consequence of the additonal £500 million bond 1ssue

in April 2009, and finance costs associated with financial risk and revenue

sharing partnerships

Restructuring charges in 2009 totalled £55 rmilhion (2008 £82 million) as
the Group continued its focus on operational iImprovements, including
the reduction in the number of people working in suppert funcuions
These costs are included within operating costs

The Company is proposing to pay an intenm dividend of £550 miliion
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Order book

The erder book at December 31, 2009, at constant exchange rates, has
remained resthent at £58 3 bilkon (2008 £55 5 billion) This included firm
business that had been announced but for which contracts had not yet
been signed of £6 8 billion (2008 £6 1 billicn)

In il aerospace, 1t 1s common for a customer to take opuions for future
orders in addition to firm orders placed Such options are excluded from
the order bogk

In defence aerospace, long-term programmes are often ordered for only
one year at a tme In such circumstances, even though there may be no
alternative engine choice avaitable to the customer, only the contracted
business 15 included in the order book

Aftermarket services agreements, including TotalCare packages,
represented 28 per cent of the order book, having increased by £2 billion
In the year These are long-term contracts where onfy the first seven
years' revenue)s included in the order book

Aftermarket services

The Group continues to be successful in developing its aftermarket
services activities These grew by four per cent on an underlying basis
in 2009 and accounted for 49 per cent of the Group revenues

In particular, TotalCare packages in the civil aerospace sector naw cover
59 per cent, by value, of the installed fleet TotalCare packages cover
long-term management of the maintenance and associated logistics for
our engines and systems, monitoring the equipment in service to deliver
the system availability our customers require with prediciable costs

The pricing of such contracts reflects their long-term nature Revenues
and costs are recognised based on the stage of completion of the
contract, generally measured by reference 1o flying hours The overall
net position of assets and habilities on the balance sheet for TotalCare
packages was an asset of £970 million (2008 £848 mullion)

Cash

There was a cash outflow in the year of £183 million (2008 £569 million
inflow) partly the consequence of revaluing year end non-G8P cash
balances of £141 million (2008 £439 millien inflow) but also reflecung
£94 million of Investments in acquisitions and joint ventures and
associates during the period

Working capital increased by £78 million during the year with increased
financial warking capital offsetting inventory which reduced by

£119 mllion Reduced inventory levels was a significant achievement
given the volatility caused by the economic downturn, ongoing delays
of major new programmes and the growth in the non-civil aercspace
segments durning 2009

Cash investments of £597 million (2008 £675 mililon) in property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets, and tax payments of £119 million
(2008 £117 milion) represented the major cash outflows in the penod

—Polls-Poye nic —Arn_a 1eporg A9

Despite a modest cash outflow 1n 2009, the average net cash was
£633 million (2008 £374 miullion) The net cash balance at the year end
was £1,273 mullion (2008 £1,456 million)

Taxation
The overall tax charge on the profit before tax was £740 million
(2008 £547 mullion credit), a rate of 250 per cent {2008 28 9 per cent)

The tax charge on underlying profitwas £187 milfion (2008 £217 million)
a rate of 204 per cent (2008 24 7 per cent)

The overall tax charge was reduced by £26 million in respect of the
expected benefit of the UK research and developrent tax credit In
addiwion, £35 mullion of prior years'tax provisions were released in the
year Ths was partly following setttement of a number of outstanding
taxssues and partly as a result of a change in UK tax law generally
exempting foreign dividends from UK taxation These temns also reduced
the underlying tax charge by the same amounts The underlying tax rate
15 expected 10 increase in 20i0 to around 24 per cent

The operation of most tax systems, including the availability of specific
tax deductions, means that there is often a delay between the Group
tax charge and the related tax payments, 1o the benefit of cash flow

The Group operates internationally and 1$ subject to tax in many differing
Jurisdictions As a consequence, the Group 15 routinely subyect to tax
audits and examinations which, by their nature, can take a considerable
penod to conclude Prowisian 1s made for known 1ssues based on
management’s Interpretation of country specific legistation and the Dkely
outcome of negotiation or liigation The Group believes that it has a
duty to shareholders 10 seek 1o minimise 1ts tax burden but todo soina
manner which is consistent with its commercial objectives and meets

its legal obligations and ethical standards While every effort s made to
maximise the tax efficiency of its business transactions, the Group does
not use artificial structures in its tax planning The Group has regard for
the intention of the legislation concerned rather than just the wording
wself The Group 1s committed to building open relationships with tax
authonties and to following a policy of full disclosure in order o effect
the timely settlement of its tax affairs and to remove uncertainty In

its business transactions Where appropriate, the Group enters inta
consultation with tax authonties 1o help shape proposed legsslation

and future tax policy

Transactions between Rolls-Royce subsidiaries and associates in different
Junsdictions are conducted on an arms-length basis and priced as if the
transacuions were between unrelated entives, in comphance with the
OECD Model Tax Convention and the laws of the relevant junisdicuons

Before entering into a transaction the Group makes every effort to
determine the tax effect of that transaction with as much certanty as
possible To the extent that advance rulings and clearances are available
from tax authoriuies, 1n areas of uncertainty, the Group will seek to obtain
them and adhere to their terms
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Pensions

The charges for pensions are calculated in accordance with the
requirements of |AS 19 Employee Benefits Dunng 2007 the Group's
principal UK defined benefit schemes adopted a lower risk investment
strategy in which the interest rate and inflation nisks were largely
hedged and the exposure 1o equities reduced to around 20 per cent
of scheme assets As reported last year the primary objecuve of the
revised Investment strategy was to reduce the volatility of the pension
schemes to enable greater stability in the funding requiremenits The
March 31, 2009 valuation of our largest pension fund has demonstrated
the success of these measures After increasing the allowance for ife
expectancy, the deficit has falten shghtly compared to the previous
valuation n 2006 This means that the deficit reduction contnibutions
which have beenin place since 2003 will continue at ther current level
but are now projected to end shightly earlier than previously envisaged

Further information and detalls of the pensions’ charge and the defined
benefit schemes’ assets and habilities are shown in note 17 to the
financial statements The net deficit, after taking account of deferred
tax, was £590 million {2008 £399 million restated) Changesin this net
position are affected by the assumpuons made in valuing the liabiities
and the market performance of the assets

Investments

The Group continues to subject all iInvestments to nigorous examination
of nisks and future cash flows to ensure that they create sharehclder
value All major investrments require Board approval

The Group has a portfolio of projects at different stages of therr
Iifecycles Discounted cash flow analysis of the remaining life of projects
1s performed on a regular basis Sales of engines in production are
assessed aganst critena in the onginal development programme o
ensure that overall value 1s enhanced

Gross research and development (R&D) investment amounted to

£864 milion (2008 £885 milhon) Net research and development charged
to the Income statement was £379 million {2008 £403 million) The level
of self-funded investrent in research and development is expected to
remain at approximately four to five per cent of Group revenues in the
future The impact of this investment on the Income statement will
reflect the mix and matunty of iIndividual development programmes
and will result in a modest increase n the level of net research and
development charged within the iIncome statement i 2010

The continued development and replacement of operational facilities
contributed to the total expenditure in property, plant and equipment
of £291 mullion (2008 £283 million) Investment in 2010 1s anticipated to
be slightly increased compared to the 2009 level as the investments in
new facihues in the US and Singapore commence

Investment In training was £24 million (2008 £30 million)
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Intangible assets

The Group carned forward £2472 mullion (2008 £2,286 million) of
intangible assets This comprised purchased goodwill of £984 million,
engine certification costs and participation fees of £454 million,
development expenditure of £546 million, recoverable engine costs

of £290 million and other intangible assets of £198 milllon Expenditure
on intangible assets 1s expected to increase modestly in 2010

The carrying values of the intangible assets are assessed for impairment
against the present value of forecast cash flows generated by the
intangible asset The principal risks remain reductions in assumed
market share, programme tymings, INCreases In unit cost assumptions
and adverseé movements in discount rates There have been no
impairments in 2009 Further details are given in note 7

Partnerships

The development of effective partnerships continues to be a key feature
of the Group’s long-term strategy Major partnerships are of two types
Jeintveniures and risk and revenue sharning partnerships

Joint ventures

Joint ventures are an integral part of our business They are involved in
engineering, manufacturing, repair and overhaul, and financial services
They are also common business structures for companies participating
ininternational coliaborative defence projects They share nisk and
investment, bring experuse and access 1o markets and provide external
objectivity Some of our joint ventures have become substantial
businesses A major proportion of the debt of the joint ventures is
secured on the assets of the respecuve comparies and 1s non-recourse
to the Group

Risk and revenue sharing partnerships (RRSPs)

RRSPs have enabled the Group to build a broad portfcilio of engines,
thereby reducing the exposure of the business 1o individual product
sk The primary financial benefit 1s a reducvion of the burden of R&D
expenditure on new programmes

The related R&D expenditure 1s expensed through the income statement
and the imtial programme receipts from pariners, which reimburse the
Group for past RRD expenditure, are also recorded in the income
staterment, as other operating ncome

RRSP agreements are a standard form of co-operation in the ¢vil
aero-engine industry They bring benefits to the engine manufacturer
and the partrer Specifically, for the engine manufacturer they bring
some or all of the following benefits addiwonal financial and engineening
resource, shanng of risk, and inival programme contribution As
appropnate, the partner also supples components and as consideration
for these components, receives a share of the long-term revenues
generated by the engine programme n proportion 16 its purchased
programme share
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The sharing of nsk 1s fundamental to RRSP agreements Partners share

financial Investment In the programme, typically through

e market risk as they recewve therr return from future sales,

* currency risk as their returns are denominated in US dollars,

« sales financing obligations,

» warranty costs, and

* where they are manufactuning or development partners, technical
and cost sk

Partners that do not undertake development work or supply
components are referred 10 as financial RRSPs and are accounted for as
financiat instruments as described in the accounting policies on page 61

In 2009, the Group received cther operating income of £8% million
(2008 £79 million)

Payments to RRSPs are recorded within cost of sales and increase as
the related programme sales increase These payments amounted to
£231 mulhon {2008 £268 million)

The classificaucn of financial RRSPs as financial instruments has resulted
in a lability of £363 mullion (2008 £455 million) being recerded in the
balance sheet and an associated underlying financing cost of £25 milhon
(2008 £26 million) recorded In the iIncome statement

In the past, the Group has also receved government launch investment
in respect of certain programmes The treatment of this investment is
similar to non-financial RRSPs

Risk management

The Board has an established, structured approach to nsk management
The nsk commttee has accountability for the system of nsk management
and reporting the key risks and associated mitigating actions The
Director of Risk reports to the Finance Director The Group's pelicy 1s to
preserve the resources upon which its continuing reputation, viability
and profitability are built, to enable the corporate objectives to be
achieved through the operation of the Rolls-Royce business processes
Risks are formally idenufied and recorded in a corporate nisk register and
its subsidiary registers within the businesses, which are reviewed and
updated on a regular basis, with nsk mitigation plans identified for

key risks

Financial risk

The Group uses various financial instruments in order to manage the
exposures that arise from its business operations as a result of movements
n financial markets All treasury activities are focused on the management
and hedging of nsk 1t 1s the Group’s policy not to trade financial
Instruments of to engage In speculative financial transactions There

have been no significant changes in the Group's policies in the last year
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The principal economic and market risks continue to be movements in
foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates and commaodity prices
The Board regularly reviews the Group's exposures and financial risk
management and a specialist committee also considers these in detall

All such exposures are managed by the Group Treasury function, which
reports 1o the Finance Director and which operates within written
policies approved by the Board and within the internal control
framework described on page 51

Counterparty credit risk

The Group has an established policy for managing counterparty credit
nsk A common framewark exists to measure, report and control
exposures 1o counterparties across the Group using value-at-risk and
farr-value techniques The Group assigns an internal credit rating to each
counterparty, which 1s assessed with reference to publicly available credit
infarmation, such as that provided by Moody's, Standard & Poor’s, and
other recognised market sources, and Is reviewed regularly

Financial instruments are only transacted with counterparues that have
a publicly assigned tong-term credit rauing from Standard & Poor’s of
‘A-'or better and from Moady's of A3‘or better

Funding and liquidity

The Group finances its operations through a mixture of shareholders’
funds, bank borrowings, bands, notes and finance leases The Group
borrows in the major global markets in a range of currencies and
employs denvatives where appropriate to generate the desired currency
and interest rate profile

The Group's cbjecuve 1s 1o hold financial investrments and maintain
undrawn committed facilities at a level sufficient to ensure that the
Group has available funds to meet its medium-term capital and funding
obligations and to meet any unforeseen obligations and opportunities
The Group holds cash and short-term investments which, together with
the undrawn commizted faciliues, enable it to manage 1ts hquidity fnisk

Short-term investments are generally held as bank deposits or in

'AAA rated money market funds The Group operates a conservative
investrent policy which limits investments to high quality instruments
with a short-term credit rating of ‘A-1'from Standard & Poar’s or better
and P-1'from Moody's Counterparty diversification 1s achieved with
suitable nisk-adjusted concentration imits Investment decssions are
refined through a system of monitoning real-ume equity and credat-
default swap {CDS}) price movements of potential investment
counterparties whch are compared to other relevant benchmark
indices and then nisk-weighted accordingly
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The Group's borrawing faciliiies increased dunng 2009 following

the successful placement of a £500 million ten-year bond As at
December 31, 2009 the Group had total committed borrowing faciliies
of £215 bilhon (2008 £1 65 bikion) Debt maturities in 2010 and 2011 are
£108 million and £501 million respectively The proceeds of the recent
£500 mullion bond 1ssue are anticipated to be used to pay down the
£501 million of debt matuniwes in 2011 The matunty profile of the
borrowing facilities 15 staggered to ensure that refinancing levels are
manageahble in the context of the business and market conditions

There are nQ rating triggers contained 1n any of the Groug’s facilities that
could require the Group 10 accelerate or repay any facility for a given
movement in the Group's credit rating

The Grougp's £250 midlion bank revolving credit facility contains a rating
price gnd, which determines the borrowing margin for a given credit
rattng The Group’s current borrowing margin would be 20 basis points
{bp) over sterhing LIBOR if drawn The borrowing margin on this facility
Increases by approximately Sbp per one notch rating downgrade, up
to a maximum borrowing margin of 55bp The facility was not drawn
during 2009

There are no rating price gnds contained in the Groug's other
borrowing facilities

The Group continues 1o have access to all the major global debt markets

Credit rating

The Groups parent company, Rolls-Royce Group plg, subscribes o both

Moody's Investors Service and Standard & Poor s for 1ts official pubhaised
credit raungs As at December 31, 2009 Rolls-Royce Group plc's assigned
long-term credit ratngs were

Rating agency Ratng Qutlook Caregory
Moody s A3 B Stable | lnvestment grade
Standard & Poor § A- Stable | Investment grade

As a long-term business, the Group attaches significant impertance to
maintaining this investment grade credit rating, which it views as
necessary for the business to operate effectively

The Group's objective 1s to maintain this A’ category invesiment grade
creditrating from both agencies
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Currency nisk

The Group 15 exposed to movements in exchange rates for both foreign
currency transactions and the translation of net assets and income
statemenits of foreign subsidiaries

The Group regards i1ts interests N overseas subsidiary comparnies as
long-term investments and manages s translational exposures
through the currency matching of assets and liabilities where applicable
The matching s reviewed regularly, with appropnate risk mitigation
performed where material mismatches arise

The Group has exposure 10 a number of foreign currencies The most
significant transactional currency exposures are USD to GBP and
USD to EUR

The Group manages Its exposure 10 movements in exchange rates at
wo levels
Revenues and costs are currency matched where 1t1s economic to do so
The Group actively seeks to source suppliers with the relevant currency
cost base to avord the risk or to flow down the risk ta those suppliers that
are capable of managing it Currency nisk s also a prime consideration
when deciding where to locate new facilives US dollar income converted
into sterling represented 23 per cent of Group revenues in 2009
{2008 26 per cent) US dollar income converted into euros represented
two per cent of Group revenues in 2009 (2008 four per cent)
1) Residual currency exposure 15 hedged via the financial markets
The Group operates a hedging policy using a vanety of financial
instruments with the objective of mimimising the impact of
fluctuauons in exchange rates on future transactions and cash flows

Market exchange rates

2008 2009
USD per GBP

- Year-end spot rate 1438 1615
- Average spot e ] T T BT T T 1ses
EURperGB® i T T T
- Year-end spot rate 1034 1126
- Average spot rate 1258 1123

The permitted range of the amount of cover taken 1s determined by
the written policies set by the Board, based on known and forecast
income levels
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The forward cover 1s managed within the parameters of these policies
In order to achieve the Group's objectives, having regard to the Group's
view of long-term exchange rates Forward cover 1sin the form of
standard foreign exchange contracts and instruments on which the
exchange rates achieved are dependent on future interest rates

The Group may also write cusrency options aganst a portion of the
unhedged dollar income at a rate which 1s consistent with the Group's
long-term target rate At the end of 2009 the Group had US$18 8 billion
of forward cover (2008 US$17 1 bilion)

The consequence of this policy has been ta mamtain relatively stable
long-term foreign exchange rates Note 15 to the financial statements
includes the impact of revaluing forward currency contracts at market
values on December 31, 2009, showing a negatve value of £144 million
(2008 negatve value of £2,181 million) which will fluctuate with
exchange rates over time The Group has entered into these forward
coniracts as part of the hedging policy, descnbed above, in order to
rmitigate the Impact of volatile exchange rates

Interest rate risk

The Group uses fixed rate bonds and floating rate debt as funding
sources The Group's policy 15 to maintain a proportion of its debt at fixed
rates of interest having regard to the prevailing interest rate outlook

To implement this policy the Group may utilise a combination of interest-
rate swaps, forward-rate agreements and interest-rate caps to manage
the exposure

Commaodity risk

The Group has an ongoing exposure to the price of jet fuel and base
metzls arising from business operations The Group's objective 15 to
mirimise the impact of price fluctuations The exposure 15 hedged,

on a similar basis to that adopted for currency nisks, n accordance with
parameters contained in wrtten policies set by the Board

Sales financing

In connection with the sale of its products, the Group will, on some
occasions, provide financing suppart for 1ts customers This may involve
the Group guaranteaing financing for customers providing asset-value
guarantees (AVGs) on arrcraft for a proportion of their expected future
value, or entering Into leasing transactions

The Group manages and monitors its sales inance related exposures
to customers and products within written policies approved by the
Board and within the internal framework described in the corporate
governance section The contingent liabilities represent the maximum
discounted aggregate gross and net exposure that the Group has in
respect of delivered aircrafs, regardless of the pointin time at which
such exposures may arise
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The Group uses Ascend Worldwide Limited as an independent appraiser
1o value its sequnity portfolio at both the half year and year end Ascend
provides specific values {both current and forecast future values) for each
asset in the secunity portfolio These values are then used to assess the
Group’s net exposure

The permitted levels of gross and net exposure are imited in aggregate,
by counterparty, by product type and by calendar year The Group's gross
exposures were divided approximately 55 45 between AVGs and credn
guarantees 1in 2009 (2008 55 45) They are spread over many years and
relate to a number of customers and a broad product portfolio

The Board regularly teviews the Group's sales finance related exposures
and risk management activities Each financing commitment 1s subject
10 a credit and asset review process and prior approval In accordance
with Board delegations of authority

The Group operates a scphisticated nisk-pricing model to assess risk
and exposure

Costs and exposures associated with providing financing support are
Incorporated (n any decision 10 secure new business

The Group seeks te mimimise the level of exposure from sales finance

commitments by

* the use of third-party non-recourse debt where appropniate,

= the transfer, sale, ar reinsurance of risks, and

+ ensuring the proportionate flow down of nsk and exposure
relevant RRSPs

Each of the above forms an active part of the Group's exposure
management process

Where exposures arise, the strategy has been, and continuesto be, to
assume where possible iquid forms of inancing commitment that may
be sold or transferred to third parties when the opportunity arises

Note 21 to the financial statements describes the Groups contingent
liabiities There were no matenat changes to the Group’s gross and net
contingent habikues duning 2009
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Accounting standards

The censolidated financial statements have been prepared In
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS),

as adopted by the EU In 2009, the changes that have had the most
sigmificant effect on the Group's financial staternents are

* Amendments 1o |AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements this relates
to presentation only and there 1s no impact on the reported results
The amendments require (1} a statement of comprehensive income

in place of the statement of recognised income and expense, (1) a
balance sheet at the beginning of the comparative penod when there
has been a change n accounting pohicy, and (1) the staternent of
changes in equity to be presented as a primary statement

IFRIC 14 1AS 19 The Limit of a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirernents and therr Interaction this interpretation applies where
regulatory funding requirements for pension schemes will result (n an
unrecogrusable surplus ansing in the future It has been adopted with
effect from January 1, 2008 An additional lability of £491 milion was
recognised at that date Further details are shown in note 17

IFRS 8 Cperating Segments this standard amends the requirements for
disclosure of segmental performance and does not have any effect on
the Group's overall reported results Note 2 s presented n accordance
with the new requirements The key change s that the basis for
reporting the segmental results 1s the same as that used internally,
which s equivalent to the underlying results, reported as additional
informatien in pror years

*

A summary of other less significant changes, and those which have not
been adopted in 2009, 15 included within the accounting pohicies in
note 1 to the financial statements

Regulatory developments

In response to the iinancial cnsis, governments and regulators around the
world are considering vanious regulatory reforms to the financial markets

with the aim of improving transparency and reducing systemic nisk While
the propesed reforms are predeminantly directed at financial institutions,
some of them may have implications for non-financial iInstitutions

In particular proposals by both US and European regulators to reform
the Qver-the-Counter (OTC) dernvatives market could have implications
for the Group 1n terms of future funding requirements and increased
cash flow volatibity, if parties to future OTC dervative transactions are
required to post collateral to reduce counterparty risk

Andrew Shilston

Finance Director
February 10,2010

— Rl Free o AL et 2003
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__Board of directors

Simon Robertson

Non-executive Chairman

Chatrman of the nominahions commuttee

Simon Robertson was appointed to the Board in 2004 He 1s the
founder member of Simon Robertson Assoctates LLP and a non-
executive director of HSBC Heldings ple, Berry Bros & Rudd Limited, and
The Economist Newspaper Limited He s a director of The Royal Opera
House Covent Garden LUimited and a Trustee of The Eden Project and
the Royal Opera House Endowment Fund He is the former President
of Goldman Sachs Europe Limited Age 68

Sir John Rose

Chief Executive

A member of the nominations committee

Sir John Rose was appointed to the Board in 1992, having joined
Rolls-Royce in 1984 He has been Chief Executive since 1996

He 15 a Trustee of The Eden Project Age 57

Helen Alexander CBE

Naon-executive director

Chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of the ethics
and nominations committees

Helen Alexander CBE was appointed to the Beard in 2007 She s
President of the CBl and Chairman cf the Port of Loendon Authority
and of Incisive Media She 1s a non-executive directar and chair of the
remuneration committee at Centnica plc and senior adviser to Bain
Capral She was CEC of the Econarrust Group from 1997 to 2008
Helen 1s also senior trustee of the Tate Gal'ery and & trustee of the
World Wide Web Foundation Age 53

Peter Byrom BSc, FCA

Non-executive director

A member of the remuneration, ethics and norminations cormmittees

Peter Byrom was appointed to the Board in 1997 He1s Chairman of
Doming Printing Sciences plc and a nan-executive director of AMEC plc
He 15 a Fellow of the Royal Aeronautical Society He was a director of
NM Rothschild & Sons Lirnted from 1977 to 1996 Age 65

lain Conn

Non-executive director, Seruor Independent Director

A member of the audit and nom:niations commuttees

lain Conn was appeinted to the Board in 2005 He 1s an executive director
of BP pl¢ having held a range of executive positions within

the BP Group worldwide He s Charman of the Advisory Beard of

The Imperial College Business School Age 47
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Professor Peter Gregson

Non-executive director

A member of the remuneration and nominations committees

Peter Gregson was appointed to the Board in 2007 He 15 President and
Vice-Chancellor of Queen’s University Belfast and serves on the Northern
{reland Economic Cevelopment Forum, the Council of CBl Northern
Ireland and the Steenng Group of the US-lreland Research and
Development Partnership He Is a Fellow of the Roya! Academy of
Engineenng, a Member of the Royal Insh Academy, and Deputy
Lieutenant of Belfast He was formerly Professor of Aergspace Materials
and Deputy Vice-Chancellor of the University of Southampton and has
served on the Councils of the Royal Academy of Engineenng and the
Central Laboratory of the Research Councils Age 52

James Guyette BSc

President and Chief Executive Officer of Roils-Royce North Amenca Inc
Jim Guyette was appointed to the Board in 1998 having joined
Rolls-Royce in 1997 He s a director of the PrivateBank and Trust
Company of Chicago, llinais and of priceline com Inc Untl 1995

he was Executive Vice Fresident, Marketing and Planning of United
Airlines Age 64

Dr John McAdam

Non-executive director

A member of the remuneration and nommations committees

John McAdam was appointed to the Board in 2008 He s Chairman

of United Unliuies Group PLC and of Rentokil Initial ple, the Senior
Independent Director of § Sainsbury plc and a non-executve director
of Sara Lee Corperation He was the Chief Executive of IC] plc unul ICI's
acquisition by Akzo Nobel Age 61

John Neill CBE

Non-executive director

A member of the audit and nominations committees

John Neill was appointed to the Board in 2008 He 15 the Chief Executve
of the Unipart Group of Companies He 1s a member of the Councit and
Board of Business in the Commuunity and 15 a non-executive director of
Charter International plc He 1s Vice President of the Society of Moter
Manufacturers and Traders, BEN, the automotive industry charity and
The Institute of the Motor Industry Age 62

John Rishton

Non-executive director

Charrman of the audit comrmitteg and a member of the ethics and
NomINGLons committees

John Rishton was appointed to the Board in 2007 He is Chief Executive
Officer of Royal Ahold He began his career in 1579 at Ford Motor
Company and held a variety of positions both in the UK and in Europe

In 1994 he joined Briish Airways Plc where he was Chief Financial Officer
from 2001 to 2005 He 1s a former non-executive director of Allied
Domecq Age 51
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Andrew Shilston MA, ACA, MCT

Finance Director

Andrew Shidsion was apponted 1o the Board in 2003 having joined
Rolls-Royce in 2002 He was a non-executive dizector of Cairn Energy PLC
until May 2008 and he was Finance Director of Enterpnse Ol plc from
1993 unyl 2002 Age 54

Colin Smuth BSc Hons, FREng, FRAeS, FIMechE

Director - Engineering and Technology

Cobn Smith was appointed 1o the Board in 2005 having joined
Rolls-Royce in 1974 He has held a variety of key positons within
Engineening including Director — Research and Technology and Director
of Engineering and Technology - Cvil Aerospace He is a Fellow of the
Royal Academy of Engineering the Royal Aeronautical Society and the
Institution of Mechanical Engineers Age 54

lan Strachan

Non-executive director

Chairman of the ethics committee and a member of the audit and
normiNations commutlees

lan Strachan was appointed to the Board in 2003 He is a non-executive
director of Xstrata pic, Transocean Inc and Caithness Petroleum Lirmited
He 15 the former Chief Executive of BTR plc, former Deputy Chief
Executive (1991 to 1995) and Chief Financial Officer (1987 10 1991) of
Rio Tinto plc, former non-executive Chairman of Instnet Group In¢ and
former non-executive director of Johnson Matthey plc, Commercial
Union and Reuters Group plc Age 66

Mike Terrett

Chief Operating Officer

Mike Terrett was appointed to the Board in 2007, having joned
Rolls-Royce in 1978 He has held a vanety of senior positions in the
development of new aero-engine programmes, including Managing
Director of Airlines and President and Chief Executive Officer of
International Aero Engines (IAE}), based in the United States Prior 1o
his appointment as Chief Operating Officer he was President — Cwvil
Aerospace He 1s a Member of the Institute of Mechanical Engineers
and a Fellow of the Royal Aeronautical Society Age 53

Tim Rayner

General Counsel and Company Secretary

Tim Rayner joined Rolls-Royce in 2007 having previously been General
Counsel and Company Seczetary at United Utiliues PLC Age 49

At December 31, 2009, all the directors were also directors of Rolls-Royce
Group plc, the ultimate parent company As directors of the ultimate
parent company, there 1s no requirement to disclose therr indwviduat
remuneration or therr interests in the shares of Rolls-Rayce group
companies In this Annual report, as they are included 1n the Annual
report of Rolls-Royce Group plc

— Redfis R pic —Arnual ppurt 2009
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Internal control and risk management

The Board - system of internal control and its effectiveness

The Board 1 responsible for the Group's system of internal control and for
maintaining and reviewing 1ts effectiveness from both a financial and an
operational perspective The system of internal control 15 designed to
manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business
obyjectives and to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss The Group’s approach to internal contrel s
based on the underlying principle of line management’s accountability
for control

In reviewmng the effectiveness of the system of internal contro), the Board
has taken account of the results of the work carnied out to audit and
review the activities of the Group

Financial reporting

The Group has a comprehensive budgeting system with an annual
budget approved by the Board Revised ferecasts for the year are
reported at least quarterly Actual results, at both a business and Group
level, are reported monthly against budget and varances reviewed
Financial managers are required to acknowledge in writing that their
routine financial reporting 1s based an reliable data and that their results
are properly stated in accordance with Group requirements In addition,
for annual reporting, business presidents and finance directors are
required to acknowledge that therr business has complied with the
Group Finance Manual

The audit committee - reviewing internal controls

The audit cammittee keeps under review the Group's internal contrals
and systems for assessing and mitigating financial and non-financial risk
In addiiion, the commuttee reviews the Group's procedures for detecting,
monitoring and managing the risk of fraud

The committee reviews and approves the business assurance work
programmes and ensures that this function is adequately resourced and
co-ordinated with the work of the external auditors Twice a year, the
committeg receves a report on the reviews conducted throughout the
Group by business assurance and a report from semior execuiives on the
key risks and risk systems in selected customer facing businesses and
key functions

The business assurance function, werking closely with external auditors,
undertakes a programme of financial and cperational audits or reviews
agreed by the audit committee and covenng all Group activities The
programme includes independent reviews of the systems of internal

— Ro'is-Royce ple ~Annual gpory 29

contral, sefected on the basis of risks material to the Group The findings
and status of corrective actions taken to address these are reported 10
the audit committee

The risk committee — implementation of the Board’s policies

The risk committee has accountability for the systern of risk management
and for reporting the principal risks and associated mitigating actions,
including those rnisks potentially affectung the Group's reputation It has
responsibility for implementing the Board's policies on risk and internal
control and reviews the results of the nsk management process, which
operates at all levels in the Group The risk committee has developed

a nsk policy which states that risk management is a part of every
manager’s respansibiity and that nisk management Is to be embedded
within the day-to-day management activity The committee reports
annually to the Board on the paticy, process and operation of the risk
management system and the principal risks facing the Group, dentified
through the risk management system

Specific committees have accountability for reviewing certain categories
of risk The financial nsk committee reviews credit, market or liquidity
risks The ethics committee reviews those risks with a significant ethical
dimension, often idenufied as threats to reputation

Risk management process - how risks are managed throughout
the Group

Risks are defined as threats to the achievement of business objectives or
to the conunuing reputation of the Group As part of the business cycle
each part of the Group 1s required formally to identfy and document key
risks together with appropriate mitigating activities

— 5
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The process provides methods for escalation and delegation 1o the
appropriate levels within the organisation and ensures that actions are
owned, defined, resourced and effective

Risks may arise from a variety of internal and external sources They
may be associated with regulations, custamer requiremeants, €CoNOMIC
conditions or competitor actions They could result from the capability
of the processes used 10 execute the business or from external causes,
such as war, terronist activity of pandemics

Management has conunued to perform comprehensive nisk reviews for
all major programmes, including business change plans Independent
gated reviews are conducted where key nisks and mitigating actions
are identified and reported to management for iIncorparation into
programme plans The nsk management process places significant
emphasis on learning from and sharing prior experience

Risks are documented in a framework of risk registers and are subject to
regular review by management The top-level corporate nsk register is
updated and reviewed by the nisk committee twice per year and the
Board also considers these risks in the context of the Group's business
strategy This ongoing process has been in place during 2009, up to
and including the date of approval of the Annual report

Implementation of the process

Development, implementation and maintenance of the standard global
process are the responsibility of a dedicated enterprise nsk management
team This team s part of the Department of Risk, which reports to the
Finance Director The team has created a comprehensive framework for
the assessment of nsk management process maturity that enables
focused improvement actions and drives consistent apphcation of the
nsk management process throughout the Group

An integrated range of tools and training underpins the risk process
Implementation of an enterprise-wide software application enables
the recording, analysis, communication and management of risks
across the Group

—Arfiugl et 2009

A global network of nsk champions, mentors and facilitators drive the
application of the standard process in their parts of the business and
help to develop, embed and share best practice throughout the Group

The rnisk management process 1$ subyet 1o CoNUINUOUS IMprovement
In 2009, training has been enhanced and a comprehensive curriculum
of sk, reputation and ethics raiming has been developed for delivery
at alt levels of the crganisation

Shareholders and share capital

Share capital

Throughout 2009, the Company's authosised share capital was

£400 mullion, comprising 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 20p On
December 31, 2009, there were 1,630,996,508 orginary shares in 1ssue
The ordinary shares are not listed

Dmvidends
The directors have recommended an intenim dividend of £550 million
payable on February 11, 2010

Other statutory information

Poltical donations
In line with 1ts established policy, the Group made no political donations
durning 2009

During the year, one of our US subsidianes made a contnbution towards
the running expenses of a political action committee (PAC) organised by
1s empioyees in an amount of US$24,636 (2008 US523,700} PACs are a
common feature of the US poliucal system and are governed by the
Federal Election Campaign Act The Rolls-Royce PAC 1s independent of
the Company and iIndependent of any political party Its funds are
contributed voluntanly by employees and the Company cannot affect
how they are applied Such contnibutions do not reguire authorisation
by shareholders under the Companies Act 2006

Payment to suppliers

The Company s guided by the Supply Chain Relationships in
Aerospace (SCRIA) iniative it seeks the best possible terms from
suppliers and, when entering into binding purchasing contracts, gives
consideration 10 qualty, delivery, price and the terms of the payment
In the event of disputes efforts are made to resolve them quickly

The Company had the equivalent of 62 days’ purchases outstanding at
December 31, 2008, based on the average daily amount invoiced by
suppliers dunng the year

Auditors
A resclution o reappoint the auditors, KPMG Audit Plc, and to authorise

the directors to determine therr remuneration, will also be proposed at
the AGM
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Indemnity

The Company has entered into separate Deeds of Indermnity in favaur
of its directors The deeds provide substantially the same protection as
that already provided to directors under the indemnity 1 Article 170
of the Company’s Articles of Association The Company has also
arranged appropnate insurance cover for any legal action taken
against ts directors and officers

Annual report and the financial statements

Statement of directors’ respansibilities in respect of the

Annual report and the financial statements

The diectors are responsible for preparing the Annual report and the
Group and parent company financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and requlatons

Company law requires the directors to prepare Group and parent
company financial statements for each financial year Under that law
they are required to prepare the Group financial statements in
accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU and applicable law and
have elected io prepare the parent company financial statements

in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and apphicable law
(UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial

statements uniess they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view

of the state of affaus of the Group and parent company and of therr

prafit or loss for that period In preparing each of the Group and parent

company financial statements, the directors are required to

» select suitable accounung policies and then apply them consistently,

« make Judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

«» for the Group financial statements, state whether they have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

» for the parent company financiat staternents state whether applicable
UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explained in the parent company financial
statements, and

* prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless itis
inapproprate 1o presume that the Group and the parent company will
continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records
that ase sufficient to show and explain the parent company’s ransactions
and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any ume the financial position
of the parent company and enable them to ensure that its financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They have general
responsibihity for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to
safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and
other iregulanties

Going concern

The Group's business activities, together with the factors likely to affect
its future development, performance and position are set out on pages
1 t0 30 of the business review The financial pesition of the Group, its

— Rauls-Rps it —Annca report 2000
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cash flows, hquidity postion, borrowing facihiies and financial risks

are described in pages 41 to 48 of the business review In addizion,
notes 1, 12,13 and 15 of the consolidated financial statements incfude
the Group's objectives, policies and processes for financial risk
management, details of its cash and cash equivalents, indebtedness
and borrowing facihties and 1ts financial instruments, hedging activities
and its exposure to counterparty credit nsk, bquidhty nsk, currency risk,
interest rate risk and commodity pricing risk

As described on page 45, the Group meets its funding requirements
through a mixture of shareholders'funds, bank borrowings, bonds, notes
and finance leases The chart on page 41 shows the maturay profile of
the Group’s outstanding debt facilities, a total of £108 milkion 1s due to
expire in 2010 The Group has a further £450 million of term funding
available that i1s currently undrawn

The Greup's forecasts and projections, taking into account reasonably
possible changes in trading performance, show that the Group has
sufficient financial resources As a consequence the directors have a
reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group are well placed
to manage their business nsks and 1o continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future, despite the current uncertain global economic
outlook Accordingly, the directors continue to adopt the going concern
basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements

Disclosure of information to auditors

Each of the persons who 1s a director at the date of approval of this

report confirms that

1} so far as the director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant informauon of which
the Company's auditors are unaware,

1y the director has taken all steps that he or she ought to have taken asa
director in order 1o make himself or herself aware of any relevant audit
information and to estakhish that the Company’s auditors are aware of
that information

Crectors eport

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance
with the provisions of Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006

Responsibility statement

Each of the persons who 1s a director at the date of approval of this

report confirms that to the best of his or her knowledge

1} each of the Group and parent company financial statements, prepared
in accordance with IFRS and UK Accounting Standards respecively,
gives a true and far view of the assets, liabilities, inancial pesition and
profit or loss of the 1ssuer and the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole, and

iy the Directors' report on pages 110 53 includes a farr review of the
development and performance of the business and the positon of
the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation
taken as a whole, together with a description of the pnincipal nisks
and uncertamnties that they face

Finanuat “tatements

By order of the Board

Tim Rayner
General Counsel and Company Secretary
February 10,2010
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Fnncal statement,

__Independent Auditors'report

_ Independent Auditors’ report

We have audited the financial statements of Rolls-Royce plc for the year
ended December 31, 2009 set out on pages 55 to 129 The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the
group financial statements 1s applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU The Financial
reporuing framework that has been apphed in the preparaton of the
parent company financial statements 1s applicable law and UK
Accounting Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made sofely to the Company's membaers, as a bedy, in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006

Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them
N an auditors’ report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume respensibility to anyone
other than the Company and the Company’s members, as a body, for
our audit work, for this repart, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’responsibilities statement set out
on page 53, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being sausfied that they give a true and farr
view Our responsibility 1s 10 audit the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and !nternational Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland) Those standards require us 1o comply with the Auditing
Practices Board'’s (APB) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A descrniption of the scope of an audit of financial statements 15 provided
on the APB's web-site at www frc org uk/apb/scope/UKNP

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion

the financial statements give a true and fair view of the sate of the
Group's and of the parent company s affairs as at December 31, 2009
and of the Groups profit for the year then ended,

the Group inancial statement have been properly prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared
in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,

the financial statements have been prepared In accordance with the
requirements of the Companmes Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the informauon griven in the Directors report for the
financial year for which the financial statements are prepared 1s
consistent with the financial statements

—Ralls Rovee ple __Ar naal Repont 2009

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where

the Companies ACt 2006 requires us to report 1o you If, In our opinion

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent
company, or returns adequate for cur audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us, or

* the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with
the accountung records and returns, or

« certain dis¢losures of directars’ remuneration specified by law are not
made, or

* we have not receved all the information and explanations we require
for our audit

A J Sykes
Senior Statutory Auditor
for and on behalf of KPMG Audrt Plg, Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants
8 Salisbury Square
London

EC4Y 8BB

February 10 2010
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Consolidated financial statements

__Consolidated income statement

For the year ended December 31, 2009

Restated
2009 2008
Noites im £m
Revenue 2 10,414 9,082
Cost of sales (8,303} {7,278)
Gross profit 1 1,804
Other cperating income 89 79
Commercial and admiristrative Costs (740} (699N
Research and development COsts 379) {403}
Share of profit of joint ventures and associaies 9 93 74
Operating profit 1,174 B55
{Loss)/profit on sale or termination of businesses 23 {2) 7
Profit before financing 2 1172 862
Financing income 3 2,276 435
FINancing Costs 3 (491) (3 186)]
Net financing 1,785 (2751)
Profit/{loss) before taxation 2,957 (1889)
Taxation 4 {740) 547
Profit/(loss) for the year 2,217 (1,342),
Attributable to
Fquity holders of the parent 21 {1,337}
Minonty interests (4 (5)
Profit/{loss) for the year 2,217 {1 342)
* Duning the year the Group has reviewed the allocation of costs As a result costs of £33m classified as cost of salesin 2008 have been reclassified as commercial and administranve costs
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended December 31, 2009
Restated®
2009 2008
Noles im £m
Profit/{loss) for the year 2,217 (1,342)
Other comprehensive income
Foreign exchange translation differences on foreign operations (158) 603
Net actuanal (losses)/gains 17 {1,148} 944
Moverment in unrecogrised post-reurement surplus 17 707 928)
Movement 1n post-retirernent rinimum funding hability 17 40 86
Transfers from transiion hedging reserve (27) {30}
Net movements on cash flow hedging reserve In respect of joint ventures and associates 9 22 {41)]
Movemeny in fair value of avadable for sale assets - 8)
Related tax movements 4 141 (4)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year 1,794 {790)
Attributable to
Equity holders of the parent 1,799 (787)
Minority Interests (S) (3)
Total comprehensive Income/{expense} for the year 1,794 790}

* 2008 figures have been restated to reflect the adoption of IFRIC ¥4 with effect frorm January 1 2008 — see note 17
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__Consolidated balance sheet

At December 31, 2009
Restated"
December 31 Janwary |
2009 2008 2008
Notes £m fm £m
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 7 2,472 2286 1,761
Property, plant and equipment 8 2,009 1995 1,813
Investiments — joint ventures and associates 9 437 345 284
Other investrments g 58 53 85
Other financial assets 15 637 366 343
Deferred tax assets 4 360 304 132
Post-retirement scheme surpluses 17 75 453 210
6,048 6302 4,632
Current assets
Inventory 10 2,432 2600 2,203
Trade and other recervables 1 3948 3629 2585
Taxation recoverable 12 9 7
Other financial assets 15 80 24 171
Short term investments 2 1 40
Cash and cash equivalents 12 2,960 2469 1,805
Assets held for sale 9 12 7
9,443 9,044 6909
Total assets 15,491 15,346 11541
LIABILITIES
Current habilitles
Borrowings 13 {126) (23} 134)
Other financial habilities 15 {168) 316} (17)
Trade and other payables 14 (5.628) (5900 (4,736)
Current tax habiies B 167 (184) (188)
Provisions 16 {210} {181} {121)
(6,299} (6604) {5 056)
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 13 (1,787} {1,325) {1,030)
Other inancial habxlives 15 {868} {2,525) {355)
Trade and other payables 14 {1,145} {1318) {965}
Non-current tax hatihities - (1) -
Deferred tax liabilities 4 (366) (307) {258)
Provisions 16 (232) (188 (180)
Post-retirement scheme deficits 17 (930) (1020) (824)
(5,328) (6,684) (3612)
Total lizbilities {11,627} (13 288) (8 708)
Net assets 3,864 2058 2833
EQUITY
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 18 326 326 326
Share premium account 631 631 631
Hedging reserves {19 (22} 7
Translation reserve 503 660 59
Retained earnings 2,423 454 1,728
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 3,864 2049 2,821
Minority interests - 9 12
Total equity 3,864 2058 2833

* 2008 figures have been restated to reflect the adoption of IFRIC 14 with effect from January 1 2008 {see note 17) and the adopuion of Amendments 10 185 | Presenianon of Financial Siaterments relaung tothe
classificauortigernative financialinstruments as current or non current {see note 15)

Andrew Shilston Finance Director

NE S —
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__Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended December 31, 2009

2009 2008
Notes £m fm
Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities
Profitv{toss) before taxation 2,957 (1.889)
Share of profit of joint ventures and associates 9 (93) (74)
Loss/(profit) on sale or tlermination of businesses 23 2 )
Profit on sale of property plant and equipment {40} {14
Net financing 3 (1,785) 2751
Taxation paid (119) (117)
Amortisation of intangible assets 7 121 107
Depreciation and impairment of property plant and equipment 8 194 208
Increase In provisions 81 39
Decrease/(increase) In inventones 119 (208)
Increase In trade and other recevables (85) {1,072}
(Decrease)/increase n trade and other payables {364) 1,051
{Increase)/decrease in other financial assets and liabihities (303) 149
Additional cash funding of post-retirement schemes {159) 17
Share-based payments charge 19 3 40
Transfers of hedge reserves to income statement 15 {27} (80)
Dridends receved frem joint ventures and associates 9 77 58
Net cash inflow from operating activities 607 224
Cash flows from investing activities
Additions of unbisted investments (2) m
Disposals of unhisted investments - 6
Additions of intangible assets (339) (389)
Disposals of intangible assets 2 -
Purchases of property plant and equipmeant (258) (286)!
Disposals of property, plant and equipment 8z 68
Acguisitions of businesses 23 7 47)
Disposals of businesses 23 3 6
Investments (n joint ventures and associates (87) (32)
Disposals of joint ventures and associates - 30
Additions 10 parent company shares - 1)
Net cash outflow from investing activities {606) (6B6)
Cash flows from financing activities
Current borrowings - repayment of loans {10) ()
Non-current borrowings - repayment of loans - (22)
- Increase In loans 693 -
Capital element of finance lease payments {3) (4)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from increasef(decrease) n borrowangs 680 (27
Interest receved 24 52
Interest pad {66) (53)
Interest element of Ainance lease payments (1} (1)
(Increasel/decrease in government secunines and corporate bonds (1} 39
Net cash inflow from financing activities 636 10
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 637 148
Cash and cash equivalents at January 1 2,460 1871
Foreign exchange (141) 441
Cash and cash equivalents at December 31 2,956 2460
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__Consolidated cash flow statement (conunued)
For the year ended December 31, 2009

2009 2008
£m fm
Reconciliation of movements [n cash and cash equivalents to movements 1n net funds

Increase in cash and cash equwvalents _ . 637 148
Net cash (inflow)/outflow from {increase)/decrease in borrowings {680) 27
Cash outflow/(inflow} from increase/(decrease) In government securnties and corporate bonds 1 (39)
Change n net funds resulting from cash flows {42} 136
Net funds {excluding cash and cash equivalents) of businesses acquired - &)
Exchange adjustments (141} 439
Fair value adjustments 110 (319)
Movement In net funds {73) 250
Net funds at January 1 excluding the farr value of swaps 1,122 872
Net funds at December 31 excluding the farr value of swaps B 1,049 1,122
Fair value of swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings 224 334
Net funds at December 31 1,273 1456

The movement in net funds (defined by the Group as including the iterns shown below) 1s as follows
At At
January 1, Funds Exchange Fair value Redassifi- | December3,
2009 flow  adjustments  adjustmants catlons 2009
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Cash ai bank and in hand 938 358 {58} - - 1,238
Overdrafts 9 5 - - - 4
Short-term deposits 1,531 274 {83} - - 1,722
Cash and cash equivalents 2,460 637 {141) - - 2,956
Investments 1 1 - - - 2
Other gurrent borrowings {11) 10 - - {121) (122)
Non current borrowings {1,324} (693) - 110 121 (1,786)
Finance leases 4 3 - - - (1}
1,122 (42) (141)" 110 - 1,049
Fair value of swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings 334 1o 224
1,456 (42) (141} - - 1,273

—PRanls-Royce ple
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For the year ended December 31, 2009

_.Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Attributabdle to equity holders of the parent

Share Share Hedging Transtatlon Retained Minorlty Total
capital premium reserves' reserves earnings Total interests equity
Nores £m £m £m £m £m £m im £m
At January 1 2008 326 631 77 5% 2081 3174 12 3,186
Adopuion of IFRIC 14 (note 17) - - - - {353) (353) - {353
At January 1, 2008 restated 326 631 77 59 1,728 2,821 12 2,833
Loss for the year - - - - (1337) (1337 (5) (1,342)
Forekyn exchange translauon differences on foraign operaticns - - - 601 - 601 2 603
Net actuarial gains - - - ~ 944 944 - 944
Movement in unrecognised post-retirement surplus - - - - (928) {928) - {528}
Movemeni in post-retirement minimum funding habifity - - - - 66 66 - 66
Transfers from transiion hedging reserve . - - - (80) - - 80 - {80)
Transfers to cash flow hedging reserve - ) - 41) - - 41) - Ty
Movernent in fair value of available for sale assets - - - - (8 (8) ~ ()
Related 1ax movements - deferred tax - - 22 - (26} (4) - (4)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (99) &0 (1,289 (787} {3) {790)
Share-based payments adjustment? - - - - 26 26 - 26
Related tax movements - deferred tax 4 - - - - 111} {11) ~ {11}
Other changes in equity in the year - - - - 15 15 - 15
At January 1, 2009 326 631 (22) 660 454 2,049 9 2,058
Profit for the year - - - - 2221 2221 (4) 2,217
Foreign exchange translation differences on foreign operations - - - (157) - (157) {n (158)
Net actuanial losses - - - - (1148) (1148) - (1,148)
Movement in unrecognised post-retirement susplus - - - - 707 707 - 707
Movement in post retirement rminimum funding habiity - - - - 40 40 - 40
Transfers from transiton hedging reserve - - (27 - - (27) - (27)
Transfers to cash flow hedging reserve - - 22 - - 22 - 22
Related 1ax movements — deferred tax - - 8 - 133 141 - 141
‘Total comprehensive income for the year - - 3 {157) 1,953 1,799 {5} 1,794
Share-based payments acjustment? - - - ~ 15 15 - 15
Transacuons with mincrty interests - - - - - (4) (4
Related tax movements - deferred tax 4 - - - — 1 1 - 1
Other changes in equity in the year - - - - 16 16 4 12
At December 31, 2009 326 631 {19) 503 2,423 3,864 - 3,864

' See accounung pohcies note 1 - hedge accounting Hedging reserves include £nil (2008 £19mY.n respect of the tansion hedging reserve and £(19)m (2008 £(41)m) in respect of the cash flow hedging

resene

? The share based payment adjustment 15 the net of the credit to equity in respect of the share based payrment charge (o the income statermeni and the actual cost 1o the Group
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__Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Significant accounting policies

The Company

Rolls-Royce ple (the Company?) 15 a company domialed in the United Kingdom The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended December 31, 2009 compnise the Company and 1ts subsidianes (together referred to as the ‘Group’) and the Group's Interest in jointly
controlled and associated entities The financial staterents were authonsed for 1ssue by the directors on February 1C, 2010

Basis of preparation and statement of comphance

In accordance with European Union (EU) regulations, these financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), as adopted for use in the EU effective at December 31,
2009 {(Adopted IFRS} The Company has elected to prepare its parent company accounts under UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practices (GAAP)

The financial statements have been prepared on the histoncal cost basis except where Adopted IFRS reguires the revaluation of financial instruments
to farr value and certain other assets and habilites on an alternative basis — most significantly post-retirement scheme habilivies are valued on the
basis required by 1AS 19 Employee Benefits

The Group's significant accounting policies are set out below These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all pertods presented in
these conschdated financial statements and by all Group entities

The preparauion of financial statements in conformity with Adopted IFRS requires the use of ceriain cntical accounting estimates and judgements
The directors consider the potential key areas of jJudgements required to be made in applying the Group's accounting policies o be

* Alarge proportion of the Group's actvities relate to long-term aftermarket contracts The determination of appropnate accountng policies for
recognising revenue and costs In respect of these contracts requires judgement, in particular (i} whether an aftermarket contract 1s linked, for
accounting purposes, to the related sale of onginal equipment and (1) the appropriate measure of stage of completion of the contract

+ Where the Group participates in the financing of oniginal equipment, jJudgement 1s required to determine whether revenue should be recogrused
or whether the transaction results in the consolidation of a special purpose financing entity

* As set out In note 7, the Group has significant ntangible assets The decision as to when to commence capitalisation of develcpment costs and
whether sales of onginal equipment give rise 1o recognisable recoverable engine costs is a key Judgement

* As set out In note 21, the Group has contingent habilities 1n respect of financing support provided to customers Judgement 1s required to assess
the lkelihood of these crystallising, in order to assess whether a provision should be recogrised

Key sources of estimation uncertainty in applying the Group's accounting policies are described on page 66
Basis of consolidation
The Group financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and all of its subsidiary undertakings made up to December 31,

together with the Group's share of the results of joint ventures and associates up to December 31

A subsidiary 15 an entity controlled by the Company Conirol exists when the Company has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial
and operating policies of the entity 50 as to derive benefits from its activiuies

A Joint venture 15 2n entity In which the Group holds a tong-term interest and which is jointly controlled by the Group and one or more other
venturers under a contractual arrangement An associate 1s an entity, being neither a subsidiary nor a yjomnt venture, in which the Group holds a
long-term interest and where the Group has a significant influence The results of joint ventures and associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting

Any subsidiary undertakings, jomnt ventures or associates sold or acquired durnng the year are included up to, or from, the dates of change of control

All Intza-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are ehmenated on consolidation Adjustrnents are made to eliminate the profit or loss
ansing on transactions with joint ventures and associates to the extent of the Group's interest in the entity
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62 ___ Notes to the consohdated financial statements - continued

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Significant accounting policies

Revenue recognition
Revenues comprise sales to outside customers after discounts, excluding value added tax

Sales of products are recognised when the significant nisks and rewards of ownership of the gcods are transferred to the customer, the sales price
agreed and the receipt of payment can be assured On occasion, the Group may participate in the financing of engines in conjunction with arrframe
manufacturers, most commonly by the provision of guarantees as descnbed in note 21 In such circumstances, the contingent obiigations arising
under these arrangements are taken into account In assessing whether significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
customer Where 1t is judged that sufficient nisks and rewards are not transferred, the transaction 1s treated as a leasing transaction, resulting in an
operating lease between the Group and the customer No deliveries of engines were treated as operating feases during 2009 Depending on the
specific arcumstances, where applhicable, the financing arrangements may result in the consolidation of the entity established to facintate the
financing Such special purpose entities will be consolidated as required by Adopted IFRS No such entities were consolidated at Cecember 31, 2009

Sales of services are recognised by reference to the stage of completion based on services performed to date The assessment of the stage of
completion 1s dependent on the nature of the contract, but will generally be based on costs incurred to the extent these relate to services performed
up to the reporting date, achievement of contractual milestones where appropriate, or flying hours or equivalent for long-term aftermarket
arrangements

Linked sales of products and services are treated as a single contract where these components have been negotiated as a single commercial package
and are so closely interrelated that they do not operate independently of each other and are considered to form a single project with an everall profit
margin Revenue 15 recognised on the same basis as for other sales of products and services as described above

Provided that the outcome of construction contracts can be assessed with reasonable certainty, the revenues and costs on such coniracts are
recognised based on stage of completon and the overall contract profitability

Full prevision s made for any estimated losses to completion of contracts having regard 1o the overall substance of the arrangements

Progress payments receved, when greater than recorded revenue, are deducted from the value of work in progress except to the extent that
payments on account exceed the value of work in progress on any contract where the excess I1s included in trade and other payables The amount
by which recorded revenue of long-term contracts is in excess of payments on account 1s classified as amounts recoverable on contracts and 1s
separately disclosed within trade and other receivables

Risk and revenue sharing partnerships (RRSPs}

From time to time, the Group enters into arrangements with partners who, in return for a share in future prograrmme revenues or profits, make cash
payments that are not refundable (except under certain remote circumstances) Cash sums receved, which reimburse the Group for past expenditure,
are credited to other operating income The arrangements also require partners ¢ undertake deveiopment work ang/or supply componenis for

use In the programme at therr own expense No accounting entnes are recorded where partners undertake such development work or where
programme compaonents are supplied by partners because no obligation anses unless and untl programme sales are made, instead, payments to
partners for their share in the programme are charged to cost of sales as programme revenues arise

The Group has arrangements with partners who do not undertake development work or supply parts Such arrangements are considered to be
financial instrurments as defined by IAS 32 Ainancial instruments Presentation and are accounted for using the amorused cost method

Government investment

Where a government or similar body has previously invested in a development programme, the Group treats payments to that body as royalty
payments, which are matched to related sales

Government grants
Government grants are recognised in the income statement so as to match them with the related expenses that they are intended to compensate

Where grants are receved in advance of the related expenses, they are included in the balance sheet as deferred income Non-monetary grants are
recognised at fair value

Interest
Interest recevable/payable i1s credited/charged to the income statement using the effective interest method Where borrowing costs are attributable
to the acquisttion, construction or production of a qualifying asset, such costs are capitahsed as part of the specific asset
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___Notes to the consolidated financial statements - continued

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation

The tax charge on the profit or loss for the year compnises current and deferred tax Current tax is the expected tax payable for the year, using
tax rates enacted or substanuvely enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years

Deferred tax 1s provided using the balance sheet labilty method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of the assets
and habilities for financial reporung purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes

Deferred tax labilities are recogmsed for taxable temporary differences arising on invesiments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, except
where the Group 1s able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and 1t 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future Deferred tax s not recognised on taxable temporary differences ansing on the intial recognition of goodwill or for temporary
differences ansing from the initial recognition of assets and habilites in a transactian that 1s not a business combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit

Deferred tax 15 calculated using the enacted or substantively enacted rates that are expected to apply when the asset or hability 1s settled Deferred
tax 15 charged or credited in the income staterment or other camprehensive Income {OCI) as appropriate, except when 1t relates to items credited or
charged directly to equity in which case the deferred tax 1s also dealt with in equity

Deferred tax assets are recognised only 1o the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profits wifl be available against which the assets can be utlised

Foreign currency translation
Transactions In overseas currencies are translated nto local currency at the exchange rates ruling on the date of the transaction Monetary assets and
habilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into local currency at the rate ruling at the year-end Exchange differences ansing an

foreign exchange transactions and the retransiation of assets and liabihnes into sterling at the rate ruling at the year-end are taken into account in
determining profit before taxation

The trading results of overseas undertakings are transtated at the average exchange rates for the year The assets and habilities of overseas
undertakings, ncluding goodwill and fair value adjustments ansing on acquisition, are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the year end

Exchange adjustments ansing from the retranslation of the opening net investments, and from the translation of the profits or losses at average rates,
are taken to QCI

Financial Instruments

IAS 39 Anancial Instruments Recognition and Measurement requires the classification of financial instruments into separate categones for which the
accounting requirements are different The Group has classified its financial instruments as follows

* Fixed deposits, principally compnsing funds held with banks and other financial institutions, and trade receivables are classified as loans and
recevables

« Investments (ather than fixed deposits and interests 10 joint ventures and associates) and short-term deposits (other than fixed deposits} are
classified as available for sale

* Borrowings, rade payables and financial RRSPs are classified as other habilities

* Derwvatwves, comprising foreign exchange contracts, interest rate swaps and commodity swaps, are classified as held for trading

Financial instrumenits are recognised at the contract date and initizlly measured at fair value Therr subsequent measurement depends on ther classification

« Loans and recevables and other liabilines are held at amortsed cost and not revalued (except for changes in exchange rates which are included in
the income statement) unless they are included in a farr value hedge accounting relatonship Where such a relatonship exists, the instruments are
revalued in respect of the risk being hedged if instruments held at amortised cost are hedged, generally by interest rate swaps, and the hedges are
effective, the carrying values are adjusted for changes in fair value, which are included in the income statement

= Avallable for sale assets are held at farr value Changes in fair value ansing from changes in exchange rates are included n the income statement
All other changes in fair value are recognised in QC! On disposal, the accumulated changes in value recorded in OCl are inctuded in the gain or loss
recorded in the income statement

* Held for trading instruments are held at farr value Changes in farr value are included 1n the income siatement unless the instrument 15 included n a
cash flow hedge If the instruments are included in a cash flow hedging relanonship, which 1s effective, changes in value are recognised in OCt
When the hedged forecast transaction occurs, amounts previously recogrused in OCl are recognised In the income statement

Financial instruments are derecognised on expiry or when all contractual nghts and obligauons are transferred
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64 __ Notes to the consolidated financial statements - continued

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Hedge accounting

The Group does not apply hedge acceunuing in respect of forward foreign exchange contracts held to manage the cash flow exposures of forecast
transactions denominated in foreign currencies

The Group does not apply hedge accounting in respect of commaedity swaps held to manage the cash flow exposures of forecast transactions in
those commodities

The Group applies hedge accounting in respect of transactions entered Inte 1o manage the fair value and cash flow exposures of its borrowings
Forward foreign exchange contracts are held to manage the fair value exposures of borrowings denominated in foreign currencies and are
designated as farr value hedges Interest rate swaps are held to manage the interest rate exposures and are designated as farr value or cash flow
hedges of fixed and floating rate borrowings respectively In 2009 and 2008, cash flow hedging was undertaken only by joint ventures

Changes In the fair values of derivatives designated as fair value hedges and changes in farr value of the related hedged tem are recogrused directly
in the income statement

Changes n the fair values of dervatives that are designated as cash flow hedges and are effective are recogrised in OCI Any ineffectiveness in the
hedging relationships is included in the Income statement The amounts deferred in OC) are recognised in the income statement to match the
recognition of the hedged item

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or 15 sold, terminated, exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting
At that time, for cash flow hedges and if the forecast transaction remains probable, any cumulative gain or lgss on the hedging instrument recogrised
in OChis retained in equity unul the forecast transaction cccurs [f a hedged transaction is ne longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl s transferred to the income statement

The portion of a gain or loss on an instrument used to hedge a net Investment in a foreign operation that 1s determined 1o be an effective hedge 1s
recogrised in OC) The ineffective pertion 1s recognised immediately in the income statement

Until December 31, 2004, and as allowed by IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of international Financial Reporting Standards, the Group appled hedge
accounting for forecast foreign exchange transactions and commaod ity exposures in accerdance with UK GAAP On January 1, 2005, the farr values of
derwvatives used for hedging these exposures were included 1n the transttion hedging reserve This reserve 15 released to the income statement based
on the designation of the hedges on January 1, 2005

Purchased goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the fair vaiue of the purchase consideration for shares in subsidiary undertakings, joint ventures and associates over
the fair value to the Group of the net of the identifiable assets acquired and the habiliues assumed

) To December 31, 1997 Goodwill was written off to reserves in the year of acquisition
i) From January 1, 1598 Goodwill was recognised within intangible assets in the year in which it arose and amortised on a straight ine basis over
its useful economic life, up to a maximum of 20 years

my From January 1, 2004, in accordance with IFRS 3 Business Combinations, goodwill 1s recognised as per (1) above but s no longer amortised

Certification costs and participation fees

Costs incurred in respect of meeung regulatory certification requirements for new civil aero-engine/ancraft combinations and payments made to
airframe manufacturers for this, and participation fees, are carried forward in intangible assets to the extent that they can be recovered out of future
sales and are charged 1o the income statement over the programme lfe, up to a maximum of 15 years from the entry Into service of the product

Research and development
In accordance with 1AS 38 Intangible Assets, expenditure incurred on research and development, excluding known recoverable amounts on contracts,
and contnbutions to shared engineering programmes, 1s distinguished as relating either to a research phase or to a development phase

All research phase expenditure 15 charged te the income statement For development expenditure, this is capitalised as an internally generated
intangible asset only If it meets strict criteria, relating in particular to technical feasibility and generation of future economic benefits

Expenditure that cannot e classified into these two categories 15 treated as being incurred in the research phase The Group considers that, due to
the complex nature of new equipment programmes, it 1s not possible to distinguish reliably between research and development activities untl
relatively late in the programme

Expenditure capitalised 1s amortised over its useful economic Iife, up to a maximum of 15 years from the entry inta service of the product
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___ Notes to the consolidated finanaial statements - continued 65

1 Significant accounting polictes (continued)

Recoverable engine costs

On occasion, the Group may sell onginal equipment to customers at a price below 1ts cost, on the basis that this deficit wall be recovered from future
aftermarket sales to the oniginal customer Where the Group has a contractual nght to supply aftermarket parts to the custorer and its intellectual
rights, warranty arrangements and statutery airwerthiness requirements provide reasonable control over this supply, these arrangements are
considered to meet the definiion of an intangible asset Such intangible assets are recognised to the extent of the deficit and amortised on a
straight-ine basis over the expected penod of utlisation by the original customer

Software

The cost of acquiring software that 1s not specific to an item of property, plant and equipment 1s classified as an intang ble asset and amortised over
its useful economic ife, up 1o @ maximum of five years

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any provision for imparments in value

Deprecration 1s provided en a straight-hne basis to write off the cost, less the estimated residual value, of property, plant and equipment over ther
estimated useful lives No depreciation 15 provided on assets in the course of construction Estimated useful fives are as follows

1) Land and buldings, as adwised by the Group's professional advisors
a} Freehold buldings — five 10 45 years (average 23 years)
b) Leasehold buildings - lower of adwvisor’s estimates or period of lease
¢) Nedepreciation s provided on freehold land

1y Plant and equipment - five to 25 years (average 14 years)

) Awrcraft and engires - five to 20 years (average 16 years)

Leases

i} Aslessee
Assets financed by leasing agreements that give rights approximating to ownership {finance leases) are capitalised at their farr value and
depreciation 1s provided on the basis of the Group depreciation policy The capital elements of future obligations under finance leases are
included as habilities in the balance sheet and the current year's interest element, having been allocated to accounting periods to give a constant
periodic rate of charge on the outstanding lability, 1s charged to the income statement The annual payments under all other lease arrangements,
known as operating leases, are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis

0y As lessor
Amounts receivable under finance leases are included within recevables and represent the total amount cutstanding under the lease
agreements, less unearned income Finance lease income, having been allocated to accounting periods to give a constant periodic rate of return
on the net investment, 1s ncluded n revenue Rentals receivable under operating leases are included in revenue on a straight-line basis

Impairment of non-current assets
Imparrment of non-current assets s considered 1n accordance with IAS 36 impairment of Assets Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are
independent of other assets, impairment is considered for the cash-generating unit 1o which the asset belongs

Goodwill and intangible assets not yet avallable for use are tested for impairment annually Other non-current assets are assessed for any indications
of impairment annually If any indication of impairment (s identfied, an impairment test 15 performed to estimate the recoverable amount

Recoverable amount s the higher of value in use or farr value less costs to seli if this is readily available The value In use 15 the present value of future
cash flows using a pre-tax discount rate that reflacts the tme value of money and the risk specific to the asset

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) 1s estmated to be belew the carrying value, the carrying value 15 reduced to the
recoverable amount and the impairment loss recogrised as an expense

Inventory

Inventory and work in progress are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value on a first-in, first-out basis Cost comprises direct materials and,
where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads, including depreciation of property, plant and equipment, that have been incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition Net realisable value represents the estimated selling prices less all esumated costs
of completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distributicn
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66 ___ Notes to the consclidated finanoal statements - continued

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and 1n hand and short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less on inception The Group
considers overdrafts (repayable on demand) to be an integral part of its cash management activities and these are included in cash and cash
equivalents for the purposes of the cash flow statement

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of & past event, and 1t 1s probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation Provisions are measured at the directors’best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the abligation at the balance sheet
date, and are discounted to present value where the effectis matenal

Post-retirement benefits

Pensions and similar benefits (principally healthcare) are accounted for under 1AS 19 Employee Benefits For defined benefit plans, obligations are
measured at discounted present value whilst plan assets are recorded at fair value The service and financing costs of such plans are recognised
separately In the Income statement, current service costs are spread systematically over the lives of employees and financing costs are recognised in
the periods In which they arise Actuanial gains and losses are recognised immediately in OCl

Surpluses in schemes are recognised as assets only if they represent economic benefits available 1o the Group in the future A hability 1s recognised to
the extent that the minimum funding requirements in respect of past service will give rise to an unrecogrisable surplus Movements in unrecognised
surpluses and minimum funding labilities are recognised in OCI

Payments to defined contribution schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due

Share-based payments

The Group on behalf of 1t parent company, provides share-based payment arrangements to certain employees These are principally equity-settled
arrangements and are measured at fair value (excluding the effect of non-market based vesung conditions) at the date of grant The fair value 1s
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period The amount recognised as an expense 1s adjusted to reflect the actual number of shares or
options that will vest, except where additional shares vest as a result of the TSR performance condition in the Performance Share Plan The costs of
these share-based payments are treated as a capital contrbution from the parent company Any payments made by the Group to its parent company
in respect of these arrangements are treated as a return of this capital contribution

Cash-settled share options (grants in the International ShareSave plan) are measured at fair value at the balance sheet date The Group recognises a
hability at the balance sheet date based on these fair values, taking into account the estumated number of options that will actually vest and the
relative completion of the vesting period Changes in the value of this hability are recognised in the income statement for the year

The farr values of the share-based payment arrangements are measured as follows

) ShareSave plans — using the binomia! pricing model,

1) Performance Share Plan - using a pricing model adjusted to reflect non-entitlement to dividends {or equivalent) and the TSR market-based
performance condiion,

m Annual Performance Related Award plan deferred shares and free shares under the Share Incentive Plan - share price on the date of the award
See note 19 for a further description of the share-based payment plans

Contingent Labiities

In connection with the sale of its products, the Group will, on occasion, provide financing support for its customers These arrangements fall into two
categories, credit-based guarantees and asset value guarantees |n accordance with the requirements of IAS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and
Measurement and IFRS 4 insurance Contracts, credit-based guarantees are treated as insurance contracts The Group considers asset value guarantees
to be non-financial iabilities and accordingly these are alsc treated as insurance contracts Provision s made as descnibed above

The Group's contingent hiabilities relating to inancing arangements are spread over many years and relate to a number of customers and a broad
product portfolio, and are reported on a discounted basis

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In appiying the above accounting policies, management has made appropriate estimates in many areas, and the actual cutcorme may differ from
those calculated The key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant nisk of causing matenial adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and habilities within the next financial year are set out on page 103 The estimation of the relevant assets and habilities
involves the combmation of a number of assumptions Where appropriate and practicable, sensitivities are disclosed in the relevant notes
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Current economic environment

The current economic environment could smpact a number of estimates necessary to prepare the financiai statements, in particular, the recoverable
amount of assets and contngent habihues The Group has taken these factors Into account In assessing the estimates set out below These matters
are discussed in more detal in the Finance Cirector's review

Forecasts and discount rates
The carrying value of a number of tems on the balance sheet are dependent on the estimates of future cash flows ansing from the Group's operations

+ The assessment whether there are any indications of impairment of development, participation, certification and recoverable engine costs
recognised as intangible assets are dependent on forecasts of cash flows generated by the relevant assets (Carrying values at December 31, 2009
£1,290m, December 31, 2008 £1,072m)

* The financial habiities anising from financial risk and revenue shaning partnerships are valued at each reporuing date using the amortised cost
method {Carrying values at December 31, 2009 £363m, December 31, 2008 £455m ) This inveolves calculating the present value of the forecast
cash flows of the arrangement using the internal rate of return at the inception of the arrangement as the discount rate

» The realisation of the deferred tax assets (carrying value at December 31, 2009 £360m, December 31, 2008 £804m restated) recognised 1s
dependent on the generation of sufficient future taxable profits The Group recognises deferred tax assets where 1t 1s more likely than not that
the benefit will be realised

Assessment of long-term contractual arrangements

The Group has long-term contracts that fall inte different accounting pencds In assessing the allocation of revenues and <osts to indvidual
accounting periods, and the consequential assets and liaklities, the Group estimates the total revenues and costs forecast to anse in respect of the
contract and the stage of completion based on an appropriate measure of performance as described under revenue recognition above

Post-retirement benefits

The Group's defined benefit pension schemes and similar arrangements are assessed annually in accordance with 1AS 15 The accounting valuation,
which was based on assumptions determined with iIndependent actuanial advice, resulted in a net deficit of £855m before deferred taxation being
recognised on the balance sheet at December 37, 2009 {December 31, 2008 £567m restated) The size of the net deficit 5 sensitive to the market
value of the assets held by the schemes and to actuanal assumptions, which include price inflation, pension and salary increases, the discount rate
used 1n assessing actuarial habilities, mortality and other demographic assumptions and the levels of contnibutions Further detalls are included in
note 17

Provisions

As described In the accounting policy above, the Group measures provisions (carrying value at December 31, 2009 £442m, December 31, 2008
£369m) at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to setile the cbligation at the balance sheet date These estimates take account
of Information availlable and different possible cutcomes

Taxation

The tax payable on profits 1s determined based on tax laws and regulations that apply In each of the numerous junsdictions in which the Group
operates Where the precise impact of these laws and regulations 1s unclear then reasonable esumates may be used 1o determine the tax charge
included in the financial statements If the tax eventually payable or reclaimable differs from the amounts originally esumated then the difference
will be charged or credited 1n the financial statements for the year in which it 1s determined

Revisions to Adopted IFRS 1n 2009
The following revisions have been adopted in the Group's financial statements in 2009

» Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Einancial Statements — these amendments revise requirements for the presentation of the financial statements
and do not affect the Group's overall reported results

* Improvements to IFRSs (2008) - the amendments to 1AS 1 clanfy the classification of denvative financial instruments as current of non-current
Previously the Group has classified all derivative financial instruments within the 1AS 39 category held for trading'as current As a result of these
amendments, they have now been classified according to their maturity dates The impact is shown in note 15

» Amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based Payments Vesting Conditions and Cancelfations - these amendments concern certain aspects of the valuation
of share-based payments and the impact of 2 cancellation by a grantee These amendments have not had a significant Impact on the charges
recognised to date for share-based payments >

* Amendments to IFRS 7 financial instruments Disclosure - these amendments require additional disclosure of the basis of fair value measurements
and liquidrty risks Note 15 reflects these additional disclosure requirements

+ IFRS 8 Operating Segments - this standard amends the requirements for disclosure of segmental performance and does not have any effect on the
Group's overall reported results Note 2 reflects the new requirements
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68 ___ Notes to the consohdated financial statements - continued

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

* Amendment 1o [AS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment generally eliminates the option 1o expense borrowing costs attnibutable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset as incurred, and instead requues the capitalisation of ehgible borrewing costs as part
of the cost of the specific asset There (s no significant Impact, as the Group generally funds qualifying assets from gress cash resources and
consequently does not have significant eligible borrowing costs

* IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements — this interpretation 1s applicable to the Group's investments in the joint ventures operating the Future
Strategic Tanker Aircraft contract with the UK Ministry of Defence This contract commenced in 2008 and the adoption of IFRIC 12 does not have
any materal transitional impact

* [FRIC 14 /AS 19 The Limit of a Defined Beneht Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and therr interaction — this interpretation apphies where regulatory
funding requirements will result in an unrecogrisable surplus ansing in the future 1t has been adopted with effect from January 1, 2008 The impact
of the adoption of this interpretation 15 set out in note 17

Revisions to IFRS not applicable in 2009

Standards and interpretations issued by the |ASB are only applicable if endorsed by the EU The following rewisions to IFRS will be applicable in future
periads, subject 1o endorsement where applicable

* Revised IFRS 3 Business Combinations and amendments to 1AS 27 Consobdated and Separate Finanaiai Statements are apphcable for 2010 These
standards will affect the future accounting for acquisitions and transactions with non-conwrolling interests There will be no retrospective Impact

* IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers is applicable for 2010 This interpretatien confirms the Group's existing pohcies for the recognimon of
assets recewed from customers and will not have a significant impact

* Amendments to IFRS 2 Group Cash-settied Share-based Payment Transactions are applicable from 2010 If endorsed, these amendments will apply 1o
the International ShareSave Scheme, but the impact is not anticipated to be significant

« |FRS 8 Financial instruments 1s applicable from 2013 If endorsed, this standard will simplify the classification of financial assets for measurement
purposes, but 1s not anticipated to have a significant impact on the financial statements

The Group does not consider that any other standards, amendments or interpretations 1ssued by the 1ASB, but not yet applicable, will have a
significant iImpact on the financial statements

2 Segmental analysis

The analysis by business segment i1s presented in accordance with the basis set out in IFRS 8 Operating segments, on the basis of those segments
whose operating resuits are regularly reviewed by the Board (the Chief Operating Decision Maker as defined by IFRS 8), as fallows

Civil aerospace — development, manufacture, marketing and sales of commercial aero engines and aftermarket services

Defence aerospace —development, manufacture, marketing and sales of military aero engines and aftermarket services

Marne - development, manufacture, marketing and sales of marine propulsion systems and aftermarket services

Energy - development, manufacture, marketing and sales of power systems for the oit and gas industry and electrncal power

generatcn and aftermarket services
Engineering and Technolagy, Operations and Services discussed In the business review, operate on a Group-wide basis across all the above segments
The operating results are prepared on an underlying basis that excludes izems considered to be nor-underlying in nature The principles adepted are
Underlying revenues ~ Where revenues are dencminated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Group undertaking, these exclude
the release of the foreign exchange transition hedging reserve and reflect the achieved exchange rates arnsing on settled derivative contracts There 15
no Inter-segment trading and hence all revenues are from external customers
Underlying profit before financing ~ Where transactions are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Group undertaking,

this excludes the release of the foreign exchange transition hedging reserve and reflects the transactions at the achieved exchange rates on settled
dervative contracts
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___ Notes to the consolidated financlal statements - continued

2 Segmental analysis (continued)

Underlying profit before taxation - in addition to those adjustments in underlying profit before financing

achieved from future settlement of dervative contracts, and

of financial RRSP contracts ansing from changes in forecast payments and the net impact of financing costs related to post-retirement

scheme benefits

includes amounts realised from setiled dervative contracts and revaluation of relevant assets and liabilities to exchange rates forecast 1o be

excludes unrealised amounts ansing from revaluations required by 1AS 39 Financaf Instruments Recognitiors and Measurement, changes in value

This analysis also includes a reconciliation of the underlying results to those reported in the consolidated income statement The analysis for 2008 has

been restated on a consistent basis

Total
Chvil Defence repottable
aerospace 2e105pace Marine Energy segments
Year ended December 31, 2009 Em £m £m £m £m
Underlying revenue from sate of onginal equipment 1,855 9654 1,804 558 5,181
Underlying revenue from services 2,626 1,046 785 470 4,927
Total underlying revenue 4,481 2,010 2,589 1.028 10,108
Underlying operating profit excluding share of profit of joint ventures and associates 409 247 263 23 942
Share of profit of joint ventures and assoCiates 82 [ - 5 93
Profit/(Ioss on sale of busingsses 2 - - {4) (2)
Underlying profit before financing and taxation 493 253 263 24 1,033
Segment assets 7,369 118 2,31 1.007 11,878
Investments in jint ventures and associates 271 62 77 27 437
Segment habilities {4,907} (1,572) {1,737} (492) (8,708)
Net assets/{habiliues) 2,733 (329) 661 542 3,607
Investment in intangible assets, property plant and equipment, joint ventures and associates 522 56 122 20 720
Depreciaton and amortisation 209 34 46 26 315
Year ended December 31 2008
Undertying revenue from sale of onginal equipment 1,776 739 1,452 385 4,392
Underlying revenue from services 2726 947 712 370 4755
Total underlying revenue 4502 1,686 2,204 755 5147
Underlying operating profit excluding share of profit of joint ventures 503 215 185 (10) 833
Share of profit of joint ventures 55 8 2) 9 70
Profit/{loss) on sale of businesses 8 - - (1) 7
Underlying profit/{loss) before financing and taxation 566 223 183 2) 970
Segment assets 7,223 1044 2334 807 11,408
Investments in joint ventures 320 7y 5 27 345
Segment babilities (7,297 (1,265) {1.886) 457 {10,905)
Net assets/(habilites) 246 (228) 453 377 848
Investrent in intangible assets, property plant and equipment and joint ventures 520 84 68 35 707
Depreciation and amortisaton 212 42 32 29 315
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70 ___ Notes to the consolidated financial statements - continued

2 Segmental analysis (continued)

Reconciliation to reported results

repor:aol;lael Underlying Total Undertying

segments  central ltems undertying | adjustments Group
Year ended December 31, 2009 £m £Em £m £m im
Revenue from sale of onginal equipment 5,181 - 5,181 128 5,309
Revenua from services 4,927 - 4,927 178 5,105
Total revenue 10,108 - 10,108 306 10,414
Operating profit excluding share of profit of joint ventures and associates 942 (50) 892 189 1,081
Share of profit of joint ventures and associates a3 - 93 - 93
Loss on sale of businesses (2} - {2) - {2
Profit before financing and taxation 1,033 (50} 983 189 1172
Net financing (68} {68) 1,853 1,785
Profit before taxation (118} 915 2,042 2,957
Taxation (187} (187) (553) (740)
Profit/{loss) for the year (305} 728 1,489 2,17
Year ended December 31 2008
Revenue from sale of ongimal equipment 4392 - 4392 (15 4377
Revenue from services 4755 4,755 150} 4705
Total revenue 9147 - 9,147 165) 2082
Operating profit excluding share of profit of joint ventures 893 {51y 842 1613 781
Share of profit of joint ventures 70 70 4 74
Profit on sale of businesses 7 - 7 - 7
Profit before finanaing and taxation 570 {51} 919 157} 862
Net financing {36) (36) (2715} {2751}
Profit/(loss) before taxation {87) 883 (2772} {1889)
Taxation 217) {217) 764 547
Profit/(loss) for the year (304) 666 (2008} (1342)
' Central corparate Costs
Underlying adjustments

2009 2008
Profit before Net _| Profit before Net
Revenue finanding fimanding Tanation Revenue finanzing frencing Taravon
£m £m £m £m £m im £m fm

Underlying performance 10,108 983 (68} (187) 9,147 219 (36} (217)
Release of transition hedging reserve 27 27 - - 80 80 -
Recognise revenue at exchange rate on date of ransaction 279 - - - (145) - - -
Realsed lesses/gans) on settled denvative contracts’ - 274 60 - - {185} (107} -
Net unreahsed fair value changes to dervabive contracts? - 14 1,835 - - 4 (2479) -
Effect of currency on contract accounting - [126) - - - 44 - -
Revaluation of trading assets and habihues - - 7 - - - 4 -
Financial RRSPs - foreign exchange differences and
changes in forecast payments - - 72 - - - (121} -
Net post-retirement scheme financing - - (97 - - - (22 -
Related tax effect - - - {553) - - - 764
Total underlying adjustments 306 189 1,853 1553) 165) {57) (2715) 764
Reported per consolidated income statement 10,414 1,172 1,785 (740) 9,082 862 (2751) 547

Realised (gains)/losses on settled denvative contracts included 1n profit before tax

—includes £15m of realised losses (2008 £nil) deferred from pnor years

- excludes £6m of gains (2008 losses of £24m) realised in the year on dervatve contracts settled in respect of trading cash flows that occurred after the year end

- excludes £14m of losses (2008 £ni) realised in respect of derivatives held in net investment heages

The adjustment for unrealised fair value changes included n profit before financing includes the reversal of £5m of unreahsed gains {2068 £4m) in respect of denvatve contracts held by joint ventures and
£9m (2008 £nil) of unreahsed tosses for which the related trading contracrs have been cancelled and consequently the fair value loss has been recognised immeduately in underlying profit

__PRe.ls 8o ce g —Ann gl eport 2009




____Notes to the consolidated financial statements - continued

2 Segmental analysis (continued)

Restated*
Oecember 31 January 1
2009 w08 2008
£m £m £m
Reportable segment assets 11,878 11,408 5391
Investments in joint ventures and associatas 437 345 284
Ehminations (457) (477} (461)
Cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments 2,962 2470 1936
Fair value of swaps hedging fixed rate borrewings 224 334 42
Income tax assets 372 813 139
Post retirement scheme surpluses 75 453 210
Total assets 15,491 15,346 11541
Reportable segment habilities {8,708) (10,905) {6,808)
Elminations 457 477 461
Baorrowings (1,913) {1348) (1,064)]
Fair value of swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings - - 27)
Income tax habilities (533) (492) (446)
Post-retirement scheme deficits {930) (1 020} {B24)
Total habilities {11,627} (13,288} (8 708)
Net assets 3,864 2058 2833
* Seenote 17
Geographical segments
The Group's revenue by destination 1s shown below
2009 2008
im £m
Urited Kingdom 1,458 1482
Rest of Eurgpe 2,273 1890
usa 2,865 2214
Canada 275 299
AsI3 2,856 2439
Africa 144 143
Australasia 230 255
Cther 283 380
10,414 5082

The carrying amounts of the Group's non-current assets, excluding financial instruments, deferred tax assets and post-employment beneft surpluses,

by the geographical area in which the assets are located, are as follows

2009 2008
£m £m

United Kingdom 2,764 2386
North America 457 463
Nordic countries 824 745
Germany 574 538
Other 289 293
4,918 4625
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72 ___ Notes to the consolidated financial statements - continued

3 Net financing

2009 2008
Per Per
consclidated consohdated
Income Underlying wicome Underlyng
statement financing' statement fingncng'
Note £m £m £m im
Financing mncome
Interest recevable 21 21 59 59
Fair value gains on foreign currency contracts? 15 1,783 - - -
Financial RRSPs - foreign exchange differences and changes in forecast payments 15 72 - - -
Fair value gains on cormnmadity denvatives? 15 52 - - -
Expected return on post-retirement scheme assets 17 305 - 373
Fair value adjustments relating to parent company shares helg under trust - - 3
Net foreign exchange gains 43 - - -
Other Ainancing income - - - -
2,276 21 435 62
Financing costs
Interest payable (64) {64) (6% (69)
Fair value losses on foreign currency contracts? 15 - - (2383) -
Financial RRSPs - foreign exchange differences and changes in forecast payments 15 - - az2n -
Financial charge relating to financial RRSPs 15 (25) (25} (26) (26)
Fair vatue losses on commaodity denvatives? 15 - - (96) -
Interest on post-retirement scheme habiities 17 {402} - (395 -
Net foreign exchange losses - - {(s1) -
Other financing charges - - {3 {3)
491) {89} (3186) (98)|
Net financing 1,785 (68) (2,751} (36
Analysed as
Net interest payable (43) (43 {10 oy
Net post retirement scherme financing {97) - 22 -
Net ather financing 1,925 {25) (2,719) (26)!
et financing 1,785 (68) {2751) (36)
!'See note 2
’ Net gain/{loss) on items held for trading 1,835 - {2,479) -
4 Taxation
UK Overseas Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 3008
£m tm £m im £m £m
Current tax
Current tax charge for the year 26 7 129 83 155 95
Less double tax relief (29) 7 - - {(29) (7))
3) - 129 88 126 88
Adjustments in respect of prior years 4 {9) (23) 14 {27) 5
{7 9) 106 102 99 93
Deferred tax
Deferred tax charge/{credt) for the year 628 (574) Fal (50 649 624)
Adjustments in respect of prior years 12} 2 4 (18} 8) 1e)
616 (572) 25 (68) 641 (640),
Recognised in the iIncome statement 609 {581) 131 34 740 (547)|

—Foils R pl A nial purt (09




____Notes to the consolidated financial statements - continued

4 Taxation (continued)

Othertax (charges)/credits

(s al} Equity
Restateq®
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m im
Deferrad tax
net actuanal losses/(gans) 342 (267} - -
mavernent in unrecognised surplus on post-retirement schemes (198) 260 - -
movement In minimum funding hiability {11} (i9) - -
release of hedge reserve 8 22 - -
share based payment plans - - 1 m)
Total in respect of the year 141 (4} 1 {1
* Seenore i7
Tax reconcihation
2009 2008
£m £m
Frofit/{loss) before taxation 2,957 {1859)
Less share of profits of joint ventures and associates {note 9) (93) (74)
Profit/floss) before taxaton excluding joint ventures end associates 2,864 {1963
Normunal tax charge/(credit) at UK corporation tax rate 28 (% {2008 28 5%) 802 (559)
UK R&D credit (26) (25)
Rate differences 7 16
Other permanent differences 5 14
Benefit to deferred tax from previously unrecognised tax losses and temporary differences (21) 13}
Tax losses in year not recognised in deferred 1ax 8 il
Adjustments In respect of prior years (35) g
740 (547)
Analysis of taxation charge
Underlying items {note 2) 187 217
Non-underlying items 553 (764)
740 {547)
Deferred taxation assets and liabihties
Restated®
2009 2008
m £m
At January 1 497 (326)
Amount (chargedi/credited to income statement (641} 640
Amount credited/{charged) 10 other comprehensive income M {4)
Amount credited/{charged) to eguity 1 {11)
On acquisition of business - 15)
Exchange movements |5 3
At December 31 {6) 497
Restated*
December 31 January 1
2009 2008 2008
Analysed as £m £m im
Ceferred tax assets 360 804 132
Deferred tax labvlites {366} (307) {258)
{6} 497 (126)

* Seenote 17
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74 ___ Notes to the consolidated financaial statements - continued

4 Taxation (continued}

The analysis of the deferred tax position 15 as follows

At Recognised At
January 1 int Recognised Recognised On Exchange | December 31,
2009 statemeant in 0| in equity acquisitton  movements 2009
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Intangible assets (200) (53} - - - 3 (250)
Property, plant and equipment (145) {17} - - - 3 (160)
Other temperary differences (31) 2 - (2) - 9 (22)
Amounts recoverable on contracts (195) 48) - - - - (243)
Pensions and other post-retlirement scheme benefts 168 17 133 - - (19) 265
Fareign exchange and commodity Fnancial assets and habilites 655 {609) 8 - - - 54
Losses 182 101 - 3 - - 286
Advance corporation tax 64 - - - - - 64
497 {641) 141 1 - (4) (6)
At
December 31 | Adoption of
2007 IFRIC 14 Al | Recogmsed At
as previcusty | recegnised in January 1 mincome  Recognised  Recognised On Exchange | December 31
reported OCl | 2008 restatec statement inOCl nequity  acquisitan movernents | 2008 restated
£m fm £m im £m £m £m £m fm
Intangible assets {140) - (140) {50} - - G &) (200)
Property, plant and equipment (143} B (143) 1 - - - (6) (146)
Other temporary differences 62 - 62 {40) - (20} - (33) (31)
Amounts recoverable on contracts (145) - {145} {50 - - - - (195)
Pensions and other post-retirement
scheme benefits 35 138 173 {26) 126) - (1} 48 168
Foreign exchange and commedity financial
assets and habilities (121) - (121) 754 22 - - - 655
Losses 124 - 124 49 - 9 - - 182
Advance corporation tax 64 - 64 - - - - - 64
(264} 138 (126) 640 (4) [ (5} 3 497
2009 2008
£m £m
Advance corporation tax 118 118
Losses and other unrecognised deferred 1ax assets 59 67
Deferred tax not recognised on unused tax losses and other items on the basis that future econemic benefit 1s uncertain 177 185

Unprovided temporary differences relating to investments in subsicdiaries and joint ventures are now £ril (2008 £946m) This 1s as a result of a recent
change in UK legislation, intended to exempt the great majority of overseas dividends from UK tax The 2008 comparative reflected undistributed
profits of the relevant entities which, if paid up by way of dwvidend, would have given rise to taxable income in the UK No deferred tax was provided in
respect of the resultant temporary differences because the timing of any reversals {by way of dvidend flow) could be controlled and 1t was considered
unhikely that dvidends would be paid if they resulted in additional UK taxable income
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___ Notes to the consolidated financial statements - continued

5 Employee information

2009 2008
Number Number
Average manthly number of Group employees during the year
United Kingdom 21,300 22500
QOverseas 17,200 16 500
38,500 39000
Civil aerospace 21,800 22700
Defence aeraspace 5,600 5700
Marne 8,600 8,100
Energy 2,500 2,500
38,500 35000
£m £m
Group employment costs'
Wages and salanes 1,715 1649
SoCial security Costs 194 180
Share-based payments (note 15} R 3 40
Pensions and other post-retrement scheme benefits (note 17) 63 218
2,213 2087
* Remuneranon of key management personnel is shawn in note 22
6 Auditors’ remuneration
Fees payable to the Company's auditors and its associates were as follows
2009 2008
£m £m
Fees payable to the Company s auditors for the audit of the Company's annual financia statements 16 16
Fees payable to the Company s auditors and its associates for the audit of the Company’s subsidiares pursuant 1o legislation 25 20
Total fees payable for audit services q1 36
Fees payable to the Company s auditors and its associates for other services
Other services pursuant 1 legislatugn 03 02
Other services relating 1o taxation 04 04
48 42
Fees payable in respect of the Groups pension schemes
Audit 02 o2
Other services relating to taxation 01 -
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76 ___ Notes to the consohdated financial statements -

7 Intangible assets

continued

Certification
costs and Recoverable
particlpation  Development engine Software
Goodwill fees  expenditure casts and other Totral
£m £Em £m im £m £m
Cost
At January 1 2008 801 504 514 366 109 2,294
Exchange adjustments 173 g 5 - 7 194
Additions - 55 13 97 128 393
On acquisitions of businesses 43 - - - 11 52
{On disposals of businesses (2) - - - - (2)
Disposals - - - - 4)] (1
At January 1, 2009 1,013 568 632 463 254 2,930
Exchange adjustments (28) (3) 2 - (2) (35}
Additions - 66 121 123 32 342
On acguisitions of businesses 6 - - - - &
Disposals - - - - (11) (11)
At December 31, 2009 991 631 751 586 273 3,232
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At January 1, 2008 - 150 150 204 29 533
Exchange adjustments ~ 3 - - 2 5
Provided durng the year' 5 12 26 46 18 107
Disposals - - - - n (1)
At January 1, 2009 5 165 176 250 43 644
Exchange adjustments - 1) - - (1 2)
Provided during the year' 2 13 29 46 3 121
Disposals - - - - 3) (3)
At December 31, 2009 7 177 205 296 75 750
Net book value at December 31, 2009 984 454 546 250 198 2,472
Net book value at December 31 2008 1008 403 456 213 206 2286
Net book value at January 1 2008 801 354 364 162 80 1761
! Charged to cost of sales except development ¢0sts which are charged 10 research and developrnent costs
Goodwill
In accordance with the requirernents of IAS 36 impairment of Assets, goodwill (s allocated to the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of
cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the business combination that gave rise 10 the goodwill as follows
Operating 2009 2008
Cash-generating unit (CGU) or group of CGUs segment £m fm
Rolls-Royce Deutschland Lid & Co KG Cwvl aerospace 244 266
Commercial marine — ansing from the acquisitions of Vinters plc and Scandinawian Electric Holdings AS Marine 645 641
Other Various 95 Il
984 1,008
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___ Notes to the consolidated financlal statements - continued 77

7 Intangible assets (continued)
Goodwill (continued)
Goodwill has been tested for imparrment during 2009 on the following basis

» The carrying value of goodwill has been assessed by reference to values in use These have been estimated using cash flows from the most recent
forecasts prepared by management, which are consistent with past experience and external sources of infermation on market condivons Given the
long term and established nature of many of the Group’s products {product lives are often measured 1N decades), these typically forecast the next
ten years Growth rates for the perod not covered by the forecasts are based on a range of growth rates that reflect the products, industnes and
countries in which the relevant CGU or group of CGUs operate

* The key assumptions on which the cash flow projections for the most recent forecast are based are discount rates, growth rates and the impact of
foreign exchange rates on the relationship between selling grices and costs

+ The pre-tax cash flow projections have been discounted at 12 75 per cent (2008 12 75 per cent), based on the Group's weighted average cost
of capital

The principal value in use assumptions for goodwill balances considered to be individually significant are

+ Rolls-Royce Deutschland Lid & Co KG - volume of engine deliveries, flying hours of installed fleet and cost escalation, these are based on current and
known future programmes, estimates of customers’ fleet requirements and long term economic forecasts For the purposes of the iImpairment test
only, cash flows beyond the ten-year forecasts are assumed to grow at 2 5 per cent (2008 2 5 per cent) The directors do not consider that any
reasonably possible change 1n the key assumpticns would cause the value in use of the goodwill to fall below its carrying value For example, the
overall level of business would need to reduce by more that 30 per cent to cause an impairment of this balance

+ vinters plc - volume of equipment delivenies, capture of aftermarket and cost escalation, these are based on current and known future programmes,
estimates of customers fleet requirernents and long term economic forecasts For the purposes of the impairment test only, cash flows beyond the
ten-year forecasts are assumed to grow at four per cent The directors do not consider that any reasonably possible change in the key assumpuons
would cause the value in use of the goodwill to fall below its carrying value For example, 1 would reguire a doubling of the discount rate to cause
an impairment of this balance

Other intangible assets

Certfication costs and participation fees, development costs and recoverable engine costs have been reviewed for impairment in accordance with the
requirements of 1AS 36 imparrment of Assets Where an impairment test was considered necessary, It has been performed on the fallowing basis

+ The carrying values have been assessed by reference to value in use These have been estimated using cash flows from the miost recent forecasts
prepared by management, which are consistent with past expenence and external sources of iInformanon on market canditions over the lives of the
respeciive programmes

* The key assumptions underlying cash flow projections are assumed market share, programme timings, unit cost assumptions, discount rates, and
foreign exchange rates

+ The pre-tax cash flow projections have been discounted at 1) per cent, based on the Group’s weighted average cost of capital

* No impairment 1s required on this basis However, a combination of changes in assumptions and adverse movements in vanables that are outside
the Group's control {discount rate, exchange rate and arrframe delays), could result in impairment In future years
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78 ___ Notes to the consolidated financial statements - continued

8 Property, plant and equipment

Land and Plant and Afrceraft and In course of
bulldings equipment engines  construction Tatal
£m im £m £m £m

Cost
At January 1 2008 699 2110 174 176 3159
Exchange adjustments 70 180 6 22 278
Additions 18 104 28 133 283
On acquisiticns of businesses 18 - - - 8
On disposals of businesses - (13) - - {13)
Reclassifications 17 6% - {86) -
Transferred 1o assets held for sale (32) 3 - - (35)
Disposals/wnte-offs (3) 97) (37) - {137}
At January 1, 2009 787 2,350 171 245 3,553
Exchange adjustments {17 43) 2 8) (70)
Additions 22 94 20 155 291
Reclassifications 30 78 5 113 -
Transferred to assets held for sale 02 - - - (12)
Disposals/write-offs (4) (92) (31) (3) (130)
At December 31, 2009 806 2,387 163 276 3,632
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At January 1 2008 180 1146 20 - 1346
Exchange adjustments 18 106 3 - 127
Provided during the year' 44 155 9 - 208
On disposals of businesses - an - - 0
Transferred 10 assets held for sale (22) (3) - - (25}
Disposals/write-offs 2 {85) - - 87)
At January 1, 2009 218 1,308 32 - 1,558
Exchange adjustments 2 {25} (1) - (28)
Provided during the year' 25 156 8 - 189
Impairment 4 1 - - 5
Transferred to assets held for sale (12 - - - (12)
Disposals/write-offs (2} 182) (5} - (39N
At December 31, 2009 231 1,358 34 - 1,623
Net book value at December 31, 2009 575 1,029 129 276 2,009
Net book value at December 31 2008 569 1042 139 245 1695
Net book value at January 1 2008 519 964 154 176 1813

! Deprecanon provided duning the year 1s charged to the incorme statement or included in the cost of Inventory as appropnate
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___Notes to the consolidated financial statements - continued

8 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Property, plant and equipment includes

.79

2009 2008
£m Im
Net bock value of finance leased assets
Land and builldings 9 9
Plant and equipment . 6 9
Alrcraft and engines - -
Assets held for use in opersating leases
Cost 133 14
Depreciation 3 (28)
et book value 102 [1E]
Non-depreciable land 98 13
Land and buildings at net book value compnse
Freehold 559 533
Long leasehold 10 12
Shoit leasehold ] 24
575 569
Capual expenditure commitments — contracted but not provided for 146 122
Cost of fully depreciated assets 473 475
9 Investments
Equity
Jolnt ventures Azsaclates’ d Other?
Share of post ‘Share of post
Sharesat  acquisition Sharesat  acquisition
cost reserves Loans Total [1:1 resgrves Total Total Unlisted
£m £m £m £m £m £Em £m £m £m
At January 1 2008 124 146 14 284 - - - 284 57
Exchange adjustments R 14 7 - a5 - - - 85 1
Additions 30 1 31 - - - 1 1
Taxation paid by the Group - - 3 - - - 3 -
Share of retained profit 15 -
Transferred to ‘Assets held for sale (2) -
Oisposals ; (30) 16
Transfer to cash flow hedging reserve? 41 -
At January 1, 2009 345 53
Exchange adjustments 6y -
Addiuons o o B __'t_z
__ Taxauon pad by the Group o 2 -
impawment _m A
Share of retaned profit . 7 -
Transfer to other nvesuments_ o I 4
Dsposals_ .. ™ -
Transfer from cash flow hedging reserve® 2| -
At December 31, 2009 437 58

T Dunng the year the Group acquied 33 per cent of ODIM ASA, hsted on the Dslo Stock Exchange The market value of the shares at December 31 2009 was £50m The value of the investment has been
assessed on 2 value in use basis and 15 not considered to be impaired

* These pnimanty compeise fioating raie convertible loan stock

! Certain of the Groups jont ventures hold interest rate and inflation swaps for which cash flow hedge accounuing has been adopted

——PFos-Fopee oc —_A~nashiepor 209




80 __ Notes to the consolidated financial statements - continued

9 I[nvestments {continued)

Investments i joint ventures and associates are represented by

Joint ventures Assoclates Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
£m fm £m £m £m £m
Share of aggregate assets
Non-current assets? 1,142 1041 69 - 1,212 1041
Current assets 812 940 33 850 940
Share of aggregate labilities®
Current habilities (709) 841) {20) (729) (841)
Non current habihities (883) (795) {13) - (896) (795)
363 345 74 - 437 345
* Non-current assets include goodwill of 5 10 a5 - 51 10
> Liabilities include borrowings of (816) (655} (5) - 821) (655)
Share of Income 132 104 - - 132 104
Share of net financing (26} {16} m - (27 (16}
Share of taxation {12) {14} - - (12) (4
Share of proht recogrised in the income statement 94 74 1 - a3 74
Dividends receved (77} {53 - - (77) {59)
Share of retained profit 17 15 [43] - 16 15

The tax charge on Joint venture profits represents an effective tax rate of 11 per cent (2008 16 per cent), a decrease of five per cent This results from a
change in profit mix between joint ventures taxed at different effective rates

The principal joint ventures and associates are listed on pages 128 to 129

10 Inventory

2009 2008
£m fm

Raw materals 358 328
Work in progress 820 1008
Long-term contracts work in progress 61 34
Finished goods 1,163 1152
Payments on account 30 38
2,432 2600

Inventories stated at net realisable value 138 144
Amount of Inventory write-down a3 81
Reversal of inventory winte down 5 15
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements - continued

11 Trade and other receivables

2009 2008
Em £m
Trade recevables 1,285 1421
Armounts reccverable on contracts' 1,524 1448
Amounts owed by joint ventures and associates 502 451
Amounts owed by parent undertaking 71 -
Other recervables 401 404
Prepayments and accrued income 165 205
3,948 3,929
Analysed as
Financial instrurents (note 15)
Trade receivables and similar items 1,837 1939
Other non-dernvative financial assets 382 369
Non-financial instruments 1,729 1621
3,948 3929
Trade and other recewvables expected to be recovered in more than one year
Trade recevables 9 24
Amounts recaverable on centracts 1,178 1,222
Amounts owed by joint ventures and associates 14 )
Amacunts owed by parent undertaking - -
Other recerables 35 59
Prepayments and accrued income 30 a8
1,266 1371

' The balance at Decernber 31 2009 n¢ludes a valuation allowance of £43m beng the directars best esumate of the loss that will aceur from the Groups contract with EPI Europrop International GmibH t©

participate i the development of the TP400 engine for the A400M military transport arcraft

12 Cash and cash equivalents

2009 2008
£m fm
Cash at bank and in hand 1,238 938
Short-term deposits 1,722 1531
2,960 2469
Overdrafts (note 13) L] 9)
Cash and cash equivalents per cash flow statement {page 58) 2,956 2460
Cash held as collateral against third party obligatcns 77 85
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82 ___ Notes to the consolidated financial statements - continued

13 Borrowings

Current Non-current Total
2009 3008 2009 2008 2009 2008
£m im im £m £m £m

Unsecured
Qverdrafts 4 9 - - 4 9
Bank loans 2 11 04 3 206 16
7% Notes 2016 £200m - - 200 200 200 200
5 84% Notes 2010 US518/m? 120 - - 136 120 136
638% Notes 2013 U55230m’ - - 155 178 155 178
& 55% Motas 2015 US$83m! - - 57 57 57 67
41/,% Notes 2011 €750m? - - 577 738 677 738
5 75% Notes 2019 £500m - - 493 - 493 -

Secured

Oblkgations under Ainance leases? (note 20) - 3 1 1 1 4
126 23 1,787 1325 1,913 1348

T These notes are the subject of interest rate swap agreements under which the Group has undertaken to pay floating rates of interest and currency swaps which form a fair value hedge

* These notes are the subject of swap agreements under which counterparties have undertaken 1o pay amounts at fixed rates of interest and exchange in consideraucn for amounts payable at vanable rates of
interest and at fixed exchange rates

+ Obligations under finance leases are secured by related leased assets

14 Trade and other payables

Current Non current
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m
Payments received on account' 1,550 1635 544 549
Trade payables B63 1042 - -
Amounts owed to parent undertaking - 163 - -
Amounts owed to Joint ventures and associates 176 372 2 9
COther taxation and social secunty 71 55 - -
Other payables 1,086 1170 71 206
Accruals and deferred income 1,782 1461 528 554
5,628 5900 1,145 1318
"Includes payments recewed from joint ventures 200 205 259 107
Analysed as

e i

Financial mstruments {note 153)
Trade payables and similar items 2,142 2264
Other non-dervative financial igbiiities 381 430
Non-financial instruments 4,250 4524
6,773 iNg

Included within trade and other payables are government grants of £31m {2008 £25m) During 2009, £2m of government grants were released to
the income statemeant
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__.. Notes to the consolidated financial statements - continued

15 Financial instruments

This note should be read in conjunction with the Finance Directar’s review on pages 41 to 48

Carrying values and fair values of financial instruments

Assats Liabllities Total
Valuation Heldfor  Loans and Avallable Held for
basls trading  recelvables for sale Cash trading Other
Nates £m £m £m £m £m £m fm
At December 31, 2009
Unlisted non-current asset investments g A - 58 - - - - 38
Trade recevables and simifar items i1 B - 1,837 - - - - 1,837
Other non-derivative financial assets 11 B - 382 - - - - 382
Dervative inancial assets C nz - - - - - 17
Short-term investments B - - 2 - - - 2
Cash at bank and in hand 12 B - - - 1,238 - - 1,238
Short term deposits 12 B - 1,722 - - - - 1,722
Borrowings 13 D - - - - - {1,913} {1,913)
Derwative financial liabihites C - - - - {673} - (673)
Financizl RRSPs D - - - - - {363} (363)
Trade payables and similar tems 14 C - - - - - (2,142} 12,142)
Qther non-dervative financial abilities 14 B - - - - - (381} (381)
717 3,999 2 1,238 {673} {4,799) 484
AL Decernber 31, 2008
Unlisted non-current asset Investrents 9 A - 53 - - - - 53
Trade recervables and similar items 1 B - 1939 - - - - 1,939
Other non-denvative financial assets 1 B - 369 - - - - 369
Derwative financial assets C 390 - - - - - 390
Short-term investments B - - ] - - - 1
Cash at bank and in hand 12 B - - - 938 - - 938
Short-term deposits 12 B - 1531 - - - - 1,531
Borrowings 13 C - - - - - (1,348) (1348)
Dernvative financial habilites C - - - - (2,386) - (2,386)
Financial RRSPs D - - - - - {455) (455)
Trade payables and similar items 14 B - - - - - (2,264) (2289)
Other non-denvative financial labilines 14 B - - - - - 1430 430)
390 3892 1 938 2386 (4497 ] (1652)
Fair values equate to book values for both 2009 and 2008, with the following exceptions
2009 2008
Book value Fair value Boak value Fairvalug
£m £im £m £m
Borrowings {1,913) (2,012) {1348) (1,314
Financial RRSPs (363) (390) (455) (487)

The farr value of a financial instrument 1s the price at which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties
In an arms-length transaction Far values have been determined with reference to avallable market information at the balance sheet date, using the

methodologles described below

A These primarily compnise fioating rate convertble loan stack The conversion condrtiens are such that fair value approximares to the book value

B Farrvalues are assumed to apprommate to cost either due to the short term maturity of the instruments or because the interest rate of the investments 1§ reset after periads not exceeding six months

C Fairvalues of derivative financial assets and fialwhites are estimated by discounuing expecied future contractual cash flows using prevailing interest rate curves Amounts denominated in foreign currencies
are valued 3t the exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet date These financial instrumients are included on the balance sheet at fair value derved from observable market prices (Leve! 2 as defined by

IFRS 7 FinancioHnstruments Disclosures)

L Borrowing and financial RRSPs are carned at amortsed cost Farr values are estmated by discounting expected future contractual cash flows using prevailing Interest rate curves Amounts denominated
infareign curiencies are valued at the exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet date For financial RASPS, the comtractual cash flows are based on future trading actvty which is estimated based on

latest forecasts
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84 ___ Notes to the consohdated financial statements - continued

15 Financial instruments (continued)

Carrying values of other financial assets and habilities

Further to the amendments to IAS 1 1in the Improvements to IFRS (2008), dervative contracts are now classified as current or non-current based on
their matunity dates Previously all*held for trading’ terms were deemed to be current The effect s that () financial assets comprising foreign exchange
contracts (2008 £112m and 2007 £433m), commedity contracts (2007 £39m) and interest rate contracts (2008 £278m and 2007 £42m), previously
reported as current assets, and {1} financial babilities comprnsing foreign exchange centracts (2008 £2,293m and 2007 £54my), commedity contracts

(2008 £89m) and interest rate contracts (2008 £4m and 2007 £3m) previously reported as current liabilities, are presented as current or nen-current as
set out below

Foreign
exchange  Commodity  Interest rate Total Financlal
COMRracts. €Ontracts COMfacts derlvatives RRSPs Toral
£m £m £m £m £im £m
At December 31, 2009
Non-current assets 429 1" 197 637 - 637
Current assets 72 4 4 80 - 80
Current liabihties {56) (12) - (68) {100) {168)
Non-current hiabilives {589) {14) (2) (605) {263) (868)
{144) {11) 199 a4 {363) (319)
AL December 31 2008
Non-current assets 88 - 278 366 - 386
Current assets 24 - - 24 - 24
Current liabilities 214) (36) 2 (252) 64) (316),
Non-current habihtes (2079) (53) (2) (2,134) (391) (2,525)
{2181) 89 274 {1,996) (455) (2451)
At December 31, 2007
Nan-current assets 286 15 42 343 - 343
Current assets 147 24 - 171 - 171
Current labihties G - m {5) 12} 17}
Non-current hiabilities (50) - 2) (52} (303) {355)
379 39 39 457 315) 142
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___ Notes to the consolidated financial statements — continued 85

15 Financial instruments (continued)

Foreign exchange and commodity finanaial instruments

The Group uses vanous financial Instruments to manage Its exposure 1o movements in foreign exchange rates The Group uses commodity swaps to
manage Its exposure to movements in the price of commodities {jet fuel and base metals} From January 1, 2005, the Group has not included foreign
exchange or commodity financial instruments in any cash flow hedging relationships for accounting purposes To hedge the currency nisk associated
with a barrowing denominated in US dollars, the Group has cutrency dervatives designated as part of far value hedges

Movements in the fair vatues of foreign exchange and commodity instruments were as follows

Forelgn

exchange Commuodity

Instruments instruments

Em £m

At January 1 2008 379 39
Fair value gains to far value hedges'? 83 -
Fair value losses to other denvative contracts’ {2,383) (96)
Faw value of contracts settled (236) (32)
Fair value of detivative coniracis assumed on formation of joint venture (24) -
At tanuary 1, 2009 (2,181) (89)
Fair value iosses to fair value hedges'? {33) -
Fair value losses to net Investment hedges {14) -
Fair value gains 10 other dervative contracts' 1,783 52
Fair value of conwracts settled 301 26

At December 31, 2009 (144) [k

' Included in finanang
* Profizon related hedged werns £33m (2008 £83m loss)

Interest rate financial instruments
The Group uses Interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements and interest rate caps to manage its exposure to movements in interest rates Where the
effectiveness of the hedge relatonship 1n a cash flow hedge 1s demonstrated, changes in the fair value that are deemed effective are included i the

hedging reserve and released to match actuzl payments on the hedged item Durning 2008 and 2009, the Group did not have any cash flow hedges,
other thanin joint ventures, which are not included in this analysis

Movements In the fair values of interest rate financial instruments were as follows

Included in Other
falr value | Interest rate
hedging financlal

Total | relationship instr
£m £m im
A{ January 1, 2008 39 42 (3)
Fair value changes'? 235 236 )
At January 1, 2009 274 278 L)
Fanr value changes™ (75) {77) 2
At December 31, 2009 199 201 {2)

' Incuded in finanaing
1 Profit on related hedged items £77m {2008 £236m loss)

Financial risk and revenue sharing partnerships (RRSPs)

The Group has financial habilities arsing from financial RRSPs These financial habilities are valued at each reporting date using the amortised cost
method This involves calculating the present value of the forecast cash flows of the arrangements using the internal rate of return at the inception
of the arrangements as the discount rate
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15 Financial instruments (continued)

Movemenits In the amortised cost values of financial RRSPs were as follows

2009 2008

£m fro

AtJanuary 1 (455) 315)

Cash paid to partners 55 53

Additions (15) {40)

Exchange adjustments direct to reserves 6 (8)

Financing charge' (26) (26)
Excluded from underlying profit

Exchange adjustments’ 45 118}

Restructuning of Ainancial RRSP agreements and changes in forecast payments! 27 (3)

At December 31 (363) {455)!

' Included i financing excluding £1m of finance charge capitalised in intangible assets

Risk management policies and hedging activities

The principal inancial risks to which the Group 1s exposed are foreign currency exchange rate risk, hquidity nsk, credit risk, interest rate risk, and
commodity price nsk The Board has approved policies for the management of these risks

Foreign currency exchange rate risk - The Group has significant cash flows (most significantly US dollars, followed by the euro} denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant trading entity To manage its exposures 1o changes in values of future foreign currency
cash flows so as to maintain relatively stable long-term foreign exchange rates on settled transactions, the Group enters into derivative forward
foreign currency transactions For accounting purposes, these dernvative contracts are not designated as hedging instruments

The Group also has exposures to the far values of non-denvative financial iInstruments denominated in foreign currencies To manage the risk of
changes in these farr values, the Group enters inte dervative forward foreign exchange contracts, which are designated as fair value hedges for
accounting purposes

The Group regards 1ts nterests in overseas subsidiary companies as long-term investments The Group aims to match its translational exposures

by matching the currencies of assets and habilities Where appropnate, foreign currency financial habilities may be designated as hedges of the
net investment

Liguidity nsk - The Group's palicy is 1o hold financial ivestments and maintain undrawn committed facibities at a level sufficient to ensure that the
Group has available funds to meet ts medium-term capital and funding obligations and to meet any unforeseen obligations and opportunities
The Group holds cash and short-term investments, which together with the undrawn committed facilines enable the Group to manage its hquidity
nsk The profile of the maturity of the Group's committed faciities 1s shown in the Finance Director's review

Credit nsk — The Group 1s exposed to credit risk to the extent of non-payment by either its custormers or the counterparties of its financial instruments
The effective monitoring and controling of credit risk 1s a key component of the Groups risk management actviues The Group has credit policies
covering both trading and financial expasures Credit nisks ansing from treasury activities are managed by a central treasury function in accordance
with the Group credit policy The objective of the policy s to diversify and minumise the Group's exposure 1o credit nisk from its treasury activities by
ensunng the Group transacts strictly with single A or hugher rated financial institutions based on pre-established mits per inancial institution At the
balance sheet date, there were no significant concentrations of cradit risk to indmdual customers or counterparties The maximum exposure to credit
risk at the balance sheet date 1s represented by the carrying value of each financial asset, including derivative financial instruments

Interest rate risk — The Groups interest rate risk 1s primarily in relation to 1ts fixed rate borrowings (fair value nisk), floating rate borrowings, cash and cash
equivalents (cash flow risk) Interest rate denvatives are used to manage the overall interest rate profile within the Group policy, which 1s to maintain a
higher proportion of net debt at floating rates of interest as a natural hedge to the net cash pasition These are designated as either fair value or cash
flow hedges as appropnate

Commeodity nisk — The Group has exposures to the price of jet fuel and base metals ansing from business operauons Te minimise rts cash flow
exposures 1o changes In commodity prices, the Group enters into derivative commodity transactions For accounting purposes, these dervative
contracts are not designated as hedging nstruments

Other price nsk - The Group's cash equivalent balances represent investments In money market Instruments, with a term of up to three months
The Group does not consider that these are subject to significant price risk

— Fo'ls Roves Dl A nual repurt 009
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15 Financial instruments {continued)

Denvative financial instruments
The nomtnal amounts, analysed by year of expected matunty, and farr values of denvative financial instruments are as follows

Expected maturity Falr valug
Between Between
Nominal Within one and two and After
amount one year twa years frve years five years Assets Liabilltles
im £m £m im £m im £m
At December 31, 2009 ~
Foreign exchange contracts
Fair value hedges 280 106 - 128 45 23 -
Non-hedge accounted 14,203 3,544 3184 6,573 202 478 (645)
Interest rate contracts
Fair value hedges 809 116 500 142 51 201 -
Nen hedge accounted 35 20 - - 15 - (2)
Commaodity cantracts
Nen-hedge accounted 169 62 59 48 - 15 (26
15,496 3,848 3,743 6,891 1,014 77 (673
At December 31 2008
Foreign exchange contracts
Fair value hedges 280 - 106 128 46 56 -
Non hedge accounted 13,342 3728 3106 6408 102 56 (2,293)
Interest rate contracts
Fair value hedges 848 - 130 660 58 278 -
Non-hedge accounted 65 25 22 - 18 - {4}
Commodity contracts _ ~ ~
Non hedge accounted 271 106 73 92 - - (89)
14 806 3857 3437 7288 224 390 (2,386)

As described above, all derivative financial instruments are entered into for risk management purposes, although these may net be designated into
hedging relationships for accounting purposes

Denvative financial Instruments related to foreign exchange risks are denominated in the following currencies

Currendes purchased forward

Sterling US dollar Euro Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At December 31, 2009
Currengies sold forward
Sterhng - 280 - 77 357
U5 dollar 11,508 - 1,094 810 13,412
Euro - - - an an
Other 54 116 129 44 343
At December 31 2008
Currencies sold forward
Sterling - 280 - 13 373
US dallar 1009 - 1,185 1,097 12382
Euro - - - 614 614
Qther 2 44 166 91 303
Other denvative financial instruments are denominated n the following currencies
2009 2008
im im
Sterling 15 18
US dollar 498 666
Euro 500 500
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15 Financial instruments (continuad)

Non-denvative financial instruments
Non-dervative financial instruments are denorminated in the following currencies

Sterling US dollar Euro Other Total
£m £m £m £m im
At December 31, 2009
Assets
Unhsied non-cutrent investments 49 - 4 5 58
Trade recenvables and similar iems 242 1,175 225 195 1,837
Other non-dernvative financial assets 130 54 40 158 382
Short-term INvestments - - - 2 2
Cash at bank and in hand 488 366 129 255 1,238
Short-term depasits 1,517 1 192 12 1,722
2,426 1,596 550 627 5,239
Liabllities
Borrowings (893) (332) {683) (5} (1,913
Financial RRSPs - (303} (&0) - {363
Trade payables and similar items (886) 811) (221} {224) (2,142
Other non-derivative financial iabilities {187} (86) {23} (85) (381
{1,966) (1.532) {987} (314) {4,799
460 64 {397} 13 440
At December 31, 2008
Assets
Unlisted non-current nvestrnents 46 1 4 2 53
Trade recewables and similar items 249 1,228 21 251 1,939
Other non-denvative financial assets N 110 a5 83 369
Short-term invastments - - - 1 }
Cash at bank and 1n hand 97 552 129 160 938
Short-term deposits 479 287 744 21 1,531
962 2178 1,173 518 4831
Liabilities
Borrowings {203) {385) (746} (14) (1348)
Financial RRSPs - 1406) (49} - {455)
Trade payables and similar items. 1763) {979) (250} 27N (2,264)
Other non-dervative inancial iabiities {144) {151) (58) (77) (430)
{1110) (1,521) (1103) (363} (4,497}
(148) 257 70 155 334
Currency exposures

The Group's actual currency exposures after taking account of dervative foreign urrency contracts, which are not designated as hedging instruments

for accounting purposes are as follows

Sterling US dollar Eure QOther Total
Functionai currency of Group operation £m £m Em £m £m
At December 31, 2009
Sterling - 2 - {2} -
US dollar 9 - (6) 4 7
Other - 4 (1) 4 7
At December 31 2008
Sterhing - i 4 1 8
US dollar 6 - - 8 14
Other - — {2) 5 3
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___ Notes to the consolidated financial statements — continued

15 Financia!l instruments (continued)

Ageing beyond contractual due date
The ageing beyond contractual due date of the Group's financial assets Is

Betrween
Uptothfee threa months More than
Within months  and one year one year
terms overdue overdue overdue Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At December 31, 2009
Unlsted non-current asset nvestments 58 - - - 58
Trade recewables and similar items 1,509 237 67 24 1.837
Other non-derivative financial assets 363 14 3 2 382
Dervative financial assets n7 - - - n7
Shaort term Investmenis 2 - - - 2
Cash at bank and n hand 1,238 - - - 1,238
Short-term deposits 1,722 - - - 1,722
5,609 251 70 26 5,956
At December 31, 2008
Unlisted non-current asset investments 53 - - - 53
Trade receivables and similar items 1516 322 93 B 1,939
Cther non-denvative finanaial assets 354 9 4 2 369
Dervative financial assets 390 - - - 390
Short-term investments 1 - - - 1
Cash at bank and in hand 938 - - - 938
Short-term deposits 1,531 - - - 1531
4,783 331 97 10 5221
Contractual matunty analysis
Gross values
Between Between
Within one and two and After Carrying
one year two years five years fiveyears | Dlscounting value
£m im £m £m £m £m
At December 31, 2009 B
Boriowings 112} (903) (366) {1,183) 651 {1913
Denvative financial labihties (66) {59} (424) {113) {(15) (673)
Financial RRSPS {118) (45) {109 (179) 8B (363)
Trade payables and similar tems (2,139) {2) (4} - - {2,142))
Other non-dervative financial iatuliues (377) (2) {1} (1) - (381)
(2812) (1.007) (901} {1,476) 724 (5472)
At December 31, 2008
Borrowings 92 (202) (1,005) (313) 264 {1348)
Cenvative financial iabihities (252) (225} 817) (963) (129} {2 386)
Financial RRSPs (56) (177 127 (198) 103 (455)
Trade payables and similar items (2 255) (S) {4 - - {2 164)
Other nan-denvative financial habihties {408) 2n ) - - (430)
{3,063) 630) {1954) {1474} 238 (6,883)}
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15 Financial instruments (contnued)

Interest rate risk

In respect of Income earning financial assets and interest bearing financial habihues, the following table indicates ther effective interesi rates and the
penods in which they reprice The value shown is the carrying amount

2009
Period In which interest rate reprices
Effective §months More than
Interest rate Total orless  6-12 months 1 2years 2 Syears 5years
£m £m fm fm im £m
Short-term investments’ 8 6744% 2 2 - - - -
Cash at bank and in hand? 1,238 1238 - - - -
Short-term deposns? 1,722 1722 - - - -
Unsecured bank loans
€2 5m floating rate koan EURIBOR + 12 (1} {1) - - - -
€5m fAoating rate loan EURIBOR +05 (4) [G)] - - - -
Overdrafts* (4} (4) - - - -
75m Indian Rupee Fixed Rate Loan 98167% {1} () - - - -
Effect of Interest rate swaps 61814% - 15 - - - 15
£200m floaung rate GBP LIBOR + 0 267 (200) (200) ~ - - -
Unsecured bond issues
7 %% Notes 2016 £200m 7 37509 {200) - - - - (200)
5 B4% Notes 2010 USS187m 5 8400% {(120) - {120) - - -
Effect of interest rate swaps USD LIBOR + 1159 - (120) 120 - - -
638% Notes 2013 US$230m 6 3800% [155) - - - {155} -
Effect of interest rate swaps USD LIBOR + 126 - (155) - - 155 -
£559% Notes 2015 U5583m 6 5500% (57} - - - - (57)
Effect of interest rate swaps USD LIBOR +1 24 - (57) - - — 57
4 14% Notes 2011 €750m 4 5000% {677} - - 677) - -
Effect of interest rate swaps GBP LIBOR + {911 - {677) - 677 - -
675% Notes 2018 £500m 6 75005 (493) - - - - {493),
Other secured
Obligatons under finance leases 5 0000% {1) ~ - - - 1)
1,049 1,758 - - - (709)

— folls [oee phe

Interest on the short term investments are at fixed rates
Cash at bank and in hand comprises bank balances and dermand deposits and earns interest at 1ates based on dally bank deposit rates
Short term deposis are deposits placed on money markets for penods ug to three months and earn interest at the respective short term deposil rates
Qverdrafis bear interest at rates inked to apphcable LIBOR rates that fluctuate in accordance with local practice
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15 Financial instruments (conunued)

___ Notes to the consolidated financial statements — continued

2008
Penod in which interest rate reprices
Effactive & months More than
interest rate Total o less 612 months 1 2 years 25 years 5 years
% fm £m £m fm Em £m
Short term investments' 96769% 1 | - - - -
Cash at bank and in hand? 938 938 - - - -
Shart-term deposits® 1531 1531 - - - -
Unsecured bankicans
€2 5m floating rate loan EURIBOR + 1 2 (2) 2) - - - -
€5m floating rate loan EURIBOR + 05 (5} {5) - - - -
Overdrafts? &) )] - - - -
55m Indian Rupee Fixed Rate Loan 13 5455% ) - m - - -
79 4m Norwegian Kroner Floating Rate Loan NIBOR + 11 8 8 - - - -
Effect of interest rate swaps 33521% - 40 - {22) - {18)
Unsecured bond issues
7% Notes 2016 £200m 73750% (200) - - - - (200)
5 84% MNotes 2010 US5187m 538400% {136) - - (136) ~ -
Effect of interest rate swaps USD LIBOR + 1159 - (136) - 136 - -
638% Notes 2013 US$230m 63800% (178) - - - {178) -
Effect of nterest rate swaps USO LBOR + 126 - (178) - - V78 -
6 55% Notes 2015 US583m 65500% 67) - - - - 67)
Effect of interest rate swaps USC LIBOR + 124 - 67) - - - 67
4'/4,% Notes 2011 €750m 45000% 1738 - - - (738) ~
Effect of interast rate swaps GBP LIBOR + 0911 - (738) - - 738 -
Other secured
Obligauons under finance leases 5.5226% (4] (3) - - - (1)
1122 1,364 (1) {22) - {219)

! Interest on the short term investments are at fixed rates

? Cash at bank and in hand compnses bank batances and demand deposits and earns interest at rates based on dally bank deposit rates
¥ Short term deposits are depasits placed on money markets for penads up to three months and earn interest at the respective short term deposit rates
4 QOverdrafts bear interest at rates hnked to apphcable LIBOR rates that fluctuate in accordance with local practce

Some of the Group’s borrowings are subject to the Group meeting <ertain obligavions, including customary financial covenants If the Group fails to
meet its obligations these arrangements give rights to the lenders, upon agreement, to accelerate repayment of the faciiities There are no rating
triggers contained in any of the Group's facilines that could require the Group to accelerate or repay any facility for a gven movement in the Groups

credit rating

In addition, the Group has undrawn committed berrowing faciities available as follows

2009 2008
£m im
Expiring after two years 450 650

—Annuat repory 29
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15 Financial instruments {continued)

Sensitivity analysis
The Group 1s exposed to a number of foreign currencies The most significant transactional currency exposures are US dollar wath sterling and US dollar
with euro

At December 31, 2009 if sterling had weakened ten per cent against the US dollar wath all other vanables held constant, profit after tax for the year
and equity would have been £864m lower (2008 £890m) If sterling had strengthened ten per cent against the US dollar with alt other variables held
constant, proht after tax for the year and eguity would have been £707m higher (2008 £728m) There would have been no change to the underlying
results that exclude unrealised gains and losses on foreign exchange dervatives

At December 31, 2009 if the euro had weakened ten per cent against the US dollar with all ather variables held constant, profit after tax and equity
for the year would have been £88m lower (2008 £102m) If the euro had strengthened ten per cent against the US dollar with all other vanables held
constant, profit after tax for the year and equity would have been £72m higher (2008 £84m) There would have been no change to the underlying
results that exclude unrealised gains and losses on foreign exchange dervatives

At December 31, 2009 f the price of commaodities had been ten per cent lower, with all other variables remaining constant, profit after tax for the year
and equity would have been £11m lower (2008 £13m), ansing mainly as the result of lower fair value gains on dervatives [f the price of commodities
had been ten per cent higher, with all other vanables remaining constant, profit after tax and equity would have been £11m higher {2008 £13m),
ansing mainly as the result of higher fair value gains on denivatives There would have been no change to the underlying results that exclude
unrealised gans and losses on commodity dervatives

At December 31 2009 the Group had no matenal sensitivity to changes in interest rates on that date The main interest rate sensitivity for the Group
anses as a result of the gross up of net cash and this 15 mmigated as described under the interest rate nsk management pohcies on page 64

— R s Rovce plo __ Al R regurt 2002




___ Notes to the consolidated financial statements — continued

16 Provisions
AL Unused Charged to At
Cecember 31 Exchange amounts Income December 31,
2008 | adjustments reversed statement Utllised 2009
£m £m £m £m im im
Warraniy and guaraniees 182 (4) (8) 87 (33) 224
Coniract loss 38 1 - 39 (18} 58
Restructunng 16 - (6) 8 {10) 8
Custerner financing 73 (2) - 14 (14} 71
Insurance 38 - - 7 - 45
Other 22 {1} - 17 (2) 36
369 (8) {14) 172 (77) 442

Analysed as

2009 2008
im im
Current habihues 210 181
Nen-current iabilines 232 188
442 369

Prowisions for warranties and guarantees pnmanly refate to products sold and generally cover a period of up to three years
Provisions for contract loss and restructuring are generally expected 1o be utilised within two years

Customer financing provisions cover guarantees provided for asset value and/or financing These guarantees are considered to be insurance contracts
In nature and provision 1s made in accordance with IFRS 4 insurance Contracts and IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liobilities and Contingent Assets These
quarantees, the risks ansing and the process used 10 assess the extent of the sk are described under the heading ‘Sales financing'in the Finance
Director’s review on page 47 The related contingent liabilties ansing from these guarantees and the sensitivity 10 movements in the value of the
underlying secunty are discussed in note 21 Itis estimated that the provision will be utilised as follows

2009 2008
£m £m
Potential claims with specific claim dates
In ane year cr less 3 -
In more than one year but less than five years 20 6
In more than five years Fil 27
Potential claims that may anse at any ume up to the date of expiry of the guarantee
Up to one year 19 31
Up to five years 4
Thereafter 4 5
LAl 73

The Group's Capuve insurance company retains a portron of the exposures It insures on behalf of the remainder of the Group Significant delays occur
in the notfication and settlement of claims and judgement 1s Involved 1n assessing outstanding liabilities, the ultimate cost and timing of which
cannot be known with certainty at the balance sheet date The insurance provisions are based on information currently available, however it is
inherent In the nature of the business that ultimate liabilities may vary Provisions for outstanding ¢laims are established to cover the outstanding
expected liability as well as claims incurred but not yet reported

Other provisions comprise a number of liatiities with varying expected utilisation rates
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94 __ Notes to the consolidated financial statements - continued

17 Post-retirement benefits
The Group operates a number of defined benefit and defined contribution schemes

For the UK defined benefit schemes, the assets are held in separate trustee administered funds and employees are entitled to retirement benefits
based on either therr final or career average salenes and length of service

Qverseas defined benefit schemes are a mixture of funded and unfunded plans Additicnally n the US, and 1o a lesser extent in some other countries,
the Group's employment practices include the provision of healthcare and Iife insurance benefits for retired employees These schemes are unfunded

The valuations of the defined benefit schemes are based on the most recent funding valuations, updated by the scheme actuarnes to December 31,
2009 The most recent funding valuations of the main UK schemes were

Scheme Valuation date
Rolis-Royce Pension Fund (RRPF) March 31, 2009
Rolls-Royce Group Pension Scheme Apnil 5, 2007
Vickers Group Pension Scheme March 31 2007
Restatement

IFRIC 14 IAS 16 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Mimimum Funding Requirements and therr interaction has been adopted in 2009 The interpretation
requires that, where statutory funding requirements will result In an unrecognisabie surplus arising in the future, a liability should be recognised
The rules of the RRPF are such that future contributions set out in the scheme’s Recovery Plan will give rise to an unrecognisable surplus In
accardance with the transition rules of the interpretation it has been apphed from January 1, 2008, and the 2008 figures have been restated
accordingly The impact of adopting IFRIC 14 1s as follows

Deferred tax (note 4]

post retllem’:re\: Retained
liabiliey Astets Liabilities Total earnings
£m £m £m £Em £m
Al January 1 2008 as previousty reported (123} Bl (345) (264) 2081
Adoption of IFRIC 14 (491), 51 87 138 {353)
At January 1 2008 restated 614) 132 {258} (126) 1728
At December 31, 2008 as prewiously reported (142) 685 (307) 378 760
Adoption of IFRIC 14 (425) 119 - 119 {306)
At December 31, 2008, restated (567 804 {307) 497 454
Moverments in 2008 recognised in other comprehensive income 66 68 87} (15}
Amounts recognised in the income statement
2009 2008
UK Qverseas UK Overseas
schemes schemes. Total schernes schemes Towl
£m im £m £m im fm
Defined benefit schemes
Current service cost 94 9 123 127 27 154
Past service cost 2 4 6 5 3 8
Ex-gratia paymeni paid directly by the Group - - - 8 - 8
96 33 129 140 30 170
Defined contribution schemes 8 29 37 & 20 26
Qperating cost 104 62 166 146 50 196
Financing (iIncome)/costs in respect of defined beneft schemes
Expected return on assets (285) (20} (305) {352) (21) (373)
Interest on habilties 355 a7 402 358 37 395
70 27 97 & 16 22
Total iIncome statermnent charge 174 89 263 152 66 218
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17 Post-retirement benefits (continued)

The operating cost ts charged as follows

Defined benefit Defined contribution Total

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

£m £m £m Em £m im

Cost of sales 94 124 27 9 121 143
Commercial and adrministrative costs 26 33 7 5 33 38
Research and development 9 13 3 2 12 15
129 170 37 26 166 196

The Group operates a PaySave scheme in the UK This 1s a salary sacrifice scheme under which employees elect to stop making employee
contributions and the Group makes addrmonal contributions in return for a reduction n gross contractual pay As a result, there 1s a decrease inwages
and salaries and a correspanding increase in pension costs of £36m (2008 £38m) in the year

Amounts recognised in ether comprehensive income

2009 2008
£m im
Actuanial gain on scheme assets R (270) 178
Expenience gans on scheme habiliues (878) 766
Movement in unrecognised surplus 707 928}
Movement in minimum funding hability 40 66
(401) 82
Defined benefit schemes
Assumptions
The principal actuanial assumptions used at the balance sheet date were as follows
UK mfiﬁ? UK wz::%
schemes schemes schernes schemes
% % %
Rate of increase in salanes 47 40 45 39
Rate of increase of pensions in payrnent 33 22 29 a5
Discount rate 57 59 64 61
Expected rate of return on scheme assets 54 74 41 69
Inflation assumption 36 26 30 26

' Benefits accruing after Aprib 5 2005 are assumed 10 ncrease in payment at a rate of 19 per cent

The discount rates are determined by reference to the market yields on AA rated corporate bonds For the main UK schemes, the rate 15 deterrmined
by using the profile of forecast benefit payments to derive a weighted average discount rate from the yield curve For less significant UK schemes and
overseas schemes, the rate 1s determined as the market yield at the average duration of the forecast benefit payments The discount rates above are
the weighted average of those for each scherme, based on the value of therr respective abilties

The overall expected rate of return 1s calcutated by weighting the individual returns expected from each asset class (page 97) in accordance with the
actual asset balance in the schemes' investment portfolios

The mortality assumptions adopted for the UK pension schemes are derived from the actuanial tables (PA92, other than RRPF which has adepted the
SAPS tables 1n 1ts 2009 vatuation), with 80 per cent of long cohort, published by the Institute of Actuaries, projected forward and, where appropriate,
adjusted to take account of the relevant scheme’s actual experience The resulting range of fife expectancies in the principal UK schemes are as follows

Life expectancy from age 65
Current pensioner i . o __196yearsto 23 5years
Future pensioner 207 years to 24 2 years
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17 Post-retirement benefits (continued)

86 ____ Notes to the consolidated financial statements - continued

The future costs of healthcare benefits are based on an assumed healthcare costs trend rate of eight per cent grading down to five per cent over

sIX years

Other demographic assumptions have been set on advice from the relevant actuary, having regard to the latest trends 1n scheme experience and
other relevant data The assumptions are reviewed and updated as necessary as part of the pernodic actuanal valuation of the schemes

Assumptions In respect of overseas schemes are also set in accordance with advice from local actuaries

Amounts recognised in the balance sheet

2009 December 31,2008 January 3 2008
UK Overseas UK Dverseas UK Qverseas
schemes schemes Total schemes schemes Total schemes schemes Toral
£m £m £m £m £m im £m £m fm
Present value of funded obhgations (6,714} (406) (7,120) {5719 (390) {6109 6335) (293) (6628),
Fair value of scheme assets 7,048 354 7,402 7163 283 7 446 6626 277 6903
o 334 {52) 282 1 444 (107 1,337 29 _(18) 275
Present value of unfunded obligauions } - {M7) 417} - (430 [@3in - (284 (284)
Unrecogmised surplus' {(329) (6} (335) (1,036) ) (1042 moy ) a4
Minimum funding bability? {385) - {385) (425) 425 (451) - 451)
Net asset/{liabilty) recognised n the balance sheet {380) (475) {855) (17} (550} (567) (310 (304) 614)
Analysed as .
Post-reurement scheme surpluses 75 - 75 453 - 453 210 - 210
Post retrement scheme deficiis {455) {475) (930) (470) {550} {1020) {520) {304) {§24)
(380) {475) (855} 17) {550) (567) 3100 (304) 614)]

! Where a surplus has ansen on a scheme n accordance with IAS 19 and IFRIC 14 the surplus s recogrised as an asset only i it represents an unconditional economic benefit avallable to the Group iInthe
future Any surplusin excess of this benefit 15 not recognised in the balance sheet

T A minimum funding labihty anses where the statutory funding requirements are such that future contnbunons in respect of past service that will result in a future unrecognisabie surplus.

Changes in present value of defined benefit obligations

2009 2008
UK Qverseas UK Overseas
schermes schemes Total schemes schemas Total
£m £m £m £m Em im
At January 1 {5,719) {827) {6,546) {6,335} {577) {6912)
Exchange adjustments - 67 67 - (196) (196)
Current service cost (94) (29) (123} 027 (2N {154)
Past service Cost (2) (4) (6} (5} (3 &Y
Finance cost (355) 47) (402} {358 (37 (395}
Contrbutions by empioyees (3) (3} (6) )] 2 (6}
Net benefits paid out 324 33 357 331 25 356
Actuanial (losses)/gains (865) (13) {878) 776 (10} 766
Transfers - - - 3 - 3
At December 21 (6,714) (823) (7,537) 5719 827) {6 546)
Funded schemes (6,714) {406) (7.120) 5719 (390) (6,109)
Unfunded schemes - N7) 417 - (437) (437)
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___ Notes to the consolidated financial statements - continued

17 Post-retirement benefits (continued)

Changes in fair value of scheme assets

2009 2008
UK Overseas UK Overseas
schemes schemes Total schemes schemas Toral
£m £m £m £m £m Em
AlJanuary 1 7.163 283 7.446 6626 277 6,903
Exchange adjustments - {16) (16) - 63 63
Expected return on assets 285 20 305 352 21 373
Contribuuions by employer 232 56 288 248 31 279
Contnbutions by employees 3 3 ] 4 2 6
Benefits paid out {324} 33 (357) (331) (25) {356)
Actuanial (losses)/gains (311} 41 (270} 264 (86) 178
At December 31 7,048 354 7,402 7,163 283 7,446
Actual return on scheme assets 35 551
The fair value of the scheme assets in the schemes and the expected rates of return at December 31, were as follows
Expected Expecteg 8
rate of Market tate of Marker
return value return value
% £m % Em
UK schemes
LD portfohos! 50 5,736 35 5833
Equities 78 1,107 72 1,141
Sovereign debt 45 18 39 110
Corporate bonds 55 8 55 110
Other 46 179 19 21}
54 7,048 414 7,163
Overseas schemes
Equities 93 194 90 134
Corperate bonds 47 136 49 130
Other 65 24 59 1%
74 354 69 283

' A portfoha of gdt and swap contracts, backed by LIBOR generanng assets that Is designed to hedge the majonty of the interest rate and inflation risks assoaated with the schemes cbligatons

The scheme assets do not inc!ude any of the Group’s own financial iInstruments, nor any property occupied by, or other assets used by, the Group

The expected rate of return for LDI portfolios 1s determened by the implicit yield on the portfolio at the balance sheet date

The expected rates of return on ather individual categories of scheme assets are determined by reference to gityields In the UK, equities and
corporate bonds are assumed 1o generate returns that exceed the return from gilts by 3 25 per cent and 1 0 per cent per annum respectively
The expected rates of return above are the weighted average of the rates for each scheme

Future contributions
The Group expects to contribute approximately £270m to its defined benefit schemes in 2010
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17 Post-retirement benefits (continued)

Sensitivities

The revised investment strategies are designed 1o hedge the risks from interest rates and inflaticn on an econamic basis A reduction of 025 per cent
1n the discount rate would Increase the obhgations of the principal UK defined benefit schemes by approximately £243m An equivatent moverment
in interest rates would increase the far value of the assets by approximately £290m The difference anses largely due 1o differences in the mathods
used 10 value the obligations for accounting and economic purposeas Cn an economic basis the correlation 1s in excess of 80 per cent The principal
remaining risks relate to the assumptions for mortality and increases in salaries If the age ratings in respect of the principal UK defined benefit
schemes were increased by one year, the scheme liabilities would increase by £137m If the rate of increase in salanes were 05 per cent higher,
scheme habilities would increase by £117m

The defined benefit obligation relating to post-retirement medical benefits would increase by £47m if the healthcaze rend rate ncreases by one per
cent, and reduce by £38m if it decreases by one per cent The pension expense relating to post-retirement medical benefits, comprising service cost
and interest cost, would increase by £5m if the healthcare trend increases by one per cent, and reduce by £4m if it decreases by one per cent

History of defined benefit schemes
The history of the schemes for the current and prior years is as follows

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
£m im im fm £m
Balance sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligation (7.537) {6,546) 6912) (6,859) {7 220)
Fair value of scheme assets 7,402 7446 6903 5 906 5563
Unrecognised surplus (335) (1,042) {14 (2} (2)
Minimum funding hability (385) {425) - - -
Deficit (855} {567) {123) {995) {1,659)
Experience gains/losses
Actuarial {losses)/gains on scheme assets (270} 178 161 132 588
Experience (lossesi/gains on scheme habilities (878} 766 350 470 {868)
Movement in unrecagrised surplus 707 528) {12 - )
Recegnition of minimum funding hability on January 1, 2008 - (491) - - -
Movementin minimum funding hability 40 66 - - -
Total amount recognised in OCI {401) {409) 399 602 (282)
Cumulative amounts recogmised in OCl since January 1 2004 (98) 303 712 313 (289)
18 Share capital
Crdinary
shares Nominal
of 20p each value
Millions £m
Authorised
At lanuary 1 2008 and Cecember 31 2009 2,000 400
Issued and fully paid
At January 1 2008 and December 31, 2009 1,631 326
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19 Share-based payments

Share-based payment plans in operation during the year

The Group had the following share-based payment plans in respect of shares in 1ts parent company, Rolis-Royce Group ple, in operation during
the year

Performance Share Plan {P5F)
This plan involves the award of shares to participants subject to performance conditons Vesting of the performance shares is based on the
achievement of both nan-market based conditons (EPS and cash flow per share} and a market based performance condiuion (TSR}

ShareSave share option plan

Based on a three- or five-year monthly savings contract, eligible employees are granted share options with an exercise price of up to 20 per cent
below the share price when the contract 1s entered into Vesting of the options 1s not subject 1o the achievement of 2 performance target In the UK,
the plan 1s HM Revenue & Cusioms approved Overseas, employees in 33 countnes parucipate in ShareSave plans through arrangements which
provide broadly comparable benefits 1o the UK plan From 2007 onwards, the overseas schemes are cash-settled schemes

Executive Share Qption Plan (ESOP}
This plan involved the grant of market value share options to parucipants [t expired in 2009 ana no further grants may be made Bemaining options
under the plan are subject to a non-market based performance condition {(growth in EPS) and have a maximum contractual ife of ten years

Annual Performance Related Award (APRA) plan deferred shares

Deferred shares are awarded as part of the APRA plan Qne third of the value of any annual bonus is delivered in the form of a deferred share award
The release cf deferred share awards 1s not dependent on the achievement of any further performance conditions other than that participants remain
employed by the Group for two years from the date of the award in order to retain the full number of shares During the two-year deferral period,
particpants are entitled to receve dividends, or equivalent, on the deferred shares For deferred share awards made from 2010 onwards, 40 per cent
of the value of any annual bonus wiil be delivered in the form of a deferred share award

Share Incentive Plan (SIP)

This 1s the ‘Free Share' element of the UK Share Incentive Plan Eligible UK employees may recewve shares as part of the Company component of any
bonus paid There are no conditions attached to the shares

During the year the Group recognised a total expense of £3tm (2008 £40m), of which £1 Om (2008 £04m) related to cash-settled arrangements
At December 31, 2009, the Group had a hability of £1 5m (2008 £0 6m) relating to cash-settled arrangements

The movements In awards under the Group's vanous share plans are shown in the 1ables below

Number of shares

2009 2008

PSP Mlllians Millions
Qutstanding at January 1 132 140
Awarded dunng the year 101 51
Forfeited dunng the year 7 07)
Addincnal enutlements ansing from TSR performance - 13
Vested duning the year (42) 65)
Outstanding at Decembxr 31 18 4 132
2009 2008

Number of Weighted Number of Weighted

share average share average

options  exercise price OpOONS  exercise e

ShareSave Milllons Pence Milhons Pence
Outstanding at January 1 297 303p | 433 260p
Granted dunng the year 119 387p - -
Forfeited dunng the year 2n 352p an 333p
ExerCised dunng the year {119 192p {119 i44p
Quistanding at December 31 274 384p 297 03p
Exercisable at December 31 - - 16 41p
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19 Share-based payments (continued)

2009 2008

Number of Welghted Number of Weighted

share average share average

options  exerdse price OpUONs  exerise phce

ESOP Millions Pence Millions Pence
Qutstanding at January | 21 177p 23 175p
Forfeited dunng the year 02) 209p - -
Exercised durning the year on 213p 02 156p
Quistanding at December 31 12 154p 21 177p
Exercisable at December 31 12 154p 21 177p
Number of shares

2009 2008

Deferred shares under APRA Millions Millions
Ouistanding at January 1 28 34
Awarded dunng the year 23 15
Forfeited durning the year o1 on
Additional shares accrued from conversion/reinvestment of B/C Shares o1 ai
vested dunng the year {17} (2
Qutstanding at December 31 34 28
Number of shares

2009 2008

Free $hares under SIP Millions Millions
Awarded dunng the year 12 12

Options were exercised on a regular basis duning the year The average share price duning the year was 386p {2008 382p)

Fair values

The weighted average far values per share for PSP awards, ShareSave grants, APRA deferred share awards and SIP Free Share awards included in the

expense for the year were as follows

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
PSP awards - 259 TSR uphft 253p 458p 557p 494p 282p
PSP awards - 50% TSR ughft 282p n/a n/a n/a n/a
ShareSave - 3 year grants 144p - 230p - 131p
ShareSave - 5 year grants 167p - 264p - 154p
APRA defarred share awards 290p 440p 502p 448p 260p
SIP Free Share awards 330p 43% 499p 462p 257p

Details of the assumptions used In the calculation of these fair values are set out below Expected volatihity 1s based on the histonical volaulity of
Rolls-Royce Group ple's share price over the seven years priot to the grant or award date Unul 2007, expected dividends were based on Rolls-Royce
Group plc's payments to shareholders over the five years prnor to the grant or award date From 2008, expected dividends are based on the payments

10 shareholders in respect of the previous year

PSP awards

The farr value of shares awarded under the PSP are calculated using the market value of shares at the time of the award adjusted to take into account
non-entitlement to dividends (or equivalent) dunng the vesung penod and the TSR performance condition The PSP fair values were calculated using

the foltowing assumpuions

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Weighted average share price 260p 430p 501p 444p 262p
Expected dnvidends 14 70p 1300p 830p 792p 781p
Volaulty 32% 29% 29% 3% 4%
Correlation 35% 29% 26% 19% 19%
Expected Ife 3years Jyears 3 years 3 years 3 years
Risk free interest rate 19% 4 1% 52% 43% 4 5%
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19 Share-based payments {continued)

—;

The PSP has a TSR market-based performance condition, such that Rolls-Royce Group plc's TSR over the performance period will be compared with the

TSR of the comparves constituting the FTSE 100 index on the date of grant i Rolls-Royee Group plc's TSR exceeds the median TSR of the FTSE 100, the

number of shares that vest will be increased by 25 per cent For conditional awards made from 2009 onwards, a further stretch was incorporated for
certain senior executives, such that f TSR performance exceeds the upper quartile of the FTSE 100 index, awards are increased by 50 per cent, with
straight-line vesting between median and upper quartile performance The fair values of the awards of shares under the PSP have been adjusted to
take Into account this market-based performance condiion using a pricing model based on expectations about volatility and the correlation of share
price returns i the group of FTSE 109 companies and which incorporates into the valuation the interdependency between share-price performance
and TSR vesung This adjustment increases the fair value of the award relative to the share-price at the date of grant

ShareSave awards

The farr value of options granted under the ShareSave plan are calculated using a binomial pricing model with the following assumptions

2009 2007 2005 2003
Weighted average share pnce 462p 553p 35ip 173p
Exercise price 387p 416p 298p 142p
volaulity 36% 37% 40% 43%
Expected dividends 14 30p 280p 7860 761p
Expected life! - 3 year ShareSave 33-38years |33-38years |33-38years [32-37 years

___ -5yearShareSave L B _ L §3-58years [53-58 years | 53-58 years | 52-57 years
Risk free interest rate T T T 2a% | 5 0% qa% | T Ac%

' The binomial pncing model assumes that partcipants wili exerclse ther optons at the beginning of the s month window if the share pnce s greater than the exerase pnice Otherwise it assumes that
options are held untl the expiration of thesr contractual teren This results in an expected | fe that falls somewhere between the start and end of the exercise wincow

Deferred shares under APRA and Free Shares under SIP
The fair value of shares awarded under these plans is calculated as the share price on the date of the award
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20 Operating and finance leases

Cperating leases
Leases as lessee

2009 2008
£m £m
Rentalspad - hire of plant and machinery 68 64
- hire of other assets 24 25
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as fotlows
Within one year a2 104
Between one and five years 182 163
After five years 123 205
387 472
Leases as lessor
2009 2008
£m £m
Rentals receved - credited wisthin revenue from aftermarket services 22 26
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are recevable as follows
wathin one year 5 6
Between cne and five years 1 13
Afer five years 5
21 22

The Group acts as lessee and lessor for both land and bulldings and gas turbine engines, and acts as lessee for some plant and equipment

* Sublease payments of £18m (2008 £15m) and sublease receipts of £11m (2008 £11m) were recognised in the income statement in the year

= Purchase opuons exisi on aero engines, land and buildings and plant and equipment with the pencd to the purchase option date varying between
one 1o five years

* Renewal options exist on aero engines, land and buildings and plant and eguipment with the peried 10 the renewal option varying between cne to
21 years at terms to be negotiated upon renewal

* Escalation clauses exist on some leases and are linked to LIBOR

« The total future minimum sublease payments expected to be made 15 £74m (2008 £88m) and sublease rece pts expected to be received s £4m
(2008 £6m)

Finance leases
Finance lease liabilities are payable as follows

2009 2008

Payments Interest Princlpal Payments Interest Principal

£m £m £m im £ £m

Withuin one year - - - 4 ] 3
Between one and five years 1 - i - - -
After five years - - - 1 _ 1
i - 1 E 1 4

There were no conungent rents recognised as an expense in the year (2008 £nil) The future minimuem sublease receipts expected under
non-cancellable subleasesis £4m (2008 £6m)
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21 Contingent hiabilities

in connection with the sale of its products the Group will, on some occasions, provide financing support for its customers The Group's contingent
habilines refating 1o financing arrangements are spread over many years and relate to a number of customers and a broad product portfolio

Conungent habilities are disclosec on a discounted basis As the directors consider the likelihood of these contingent liabilities crystatiising 1o be
remate, this amount does not represent a value that 1s expected to crysiallise However, the amounits are discounted at the Group's borrowing rate to
reflect better the time span over which these exposures could anse The contingent habiities are denominated in US dollars As the Group does not
adopt cash flow hedge accounting for forecast foreign exchange transactions this amount 15 reported, together with the sterling equivalent at the
reporting date spot rate

The discounted values of contingent liabilities relating to delivered aircraft and other arrangements where financing 1s in place, less insurance
arrangements and relevant pravisions, were

2009 2008

im sm [ $m

Gross contingent habilities 704 1137 775 1086
Contingent lizbilities net of relevant secunity’ 134 217 155 222
Conuingent habilibes net of relevant secunty reduced by 20 per cent? 233 376 246 354
! Security includes unrestricted cash collateral 77 124 85 123

# Although sensitraty calculations are complex, the reduction of relevant securty by 20 per cent ifustrates the senstmty of the contingent lizbility to changes in this assumgnon
ug ¥ Y pe g 4 ng

There are also net contingent habilities In respect of undelivered aircraft, but it 1s not considered practicable to estimate these as deliveries can be
many years in the future, and the relevant inancing will only be put in place at the appropriate time

Contingent habilities exist 1n respect of guarantees provided by the Group in the ordinary course of business for product delivery, performance and
reliability The Group has, in the nermal course of business, entered 1nto arrangements in respect of export finance, performance bonds, countertrade
obligations and minor miscellaneous items Vanous Group undertakings are parties 10 tegal actions and claims which anise in the ordinary course of
business, some of which are for substantial amounts These include claims, which are yet to be substantiated, received by EPI Europrop Internationa!
GmbH (EP)) in which the Group 15 a partner, which 1s developing the TP400 engine for the Airbus A400M arrcraft As a consequence of the insolvency
of aninsurer as previously reparted, the Group 1s no longer fully mnsured against known and potenual claims from employees who worked for certain
of the Group's UK-based businesses for a peniod prior 1o the acquisiion of those businesses by the Group While the outcome of some of these matters
cannot precisely be foreseen, the directors do not expect any of these arrangements, legal actions or claims, after allowing for provisions already made,
to result in significant loss to the Group

There 1s continuing uncertainty about the A400M programme Arrbus 1s currenily In negotiation with s customers 16 determne the future of the
programme The tming and outcome of these negotiations, and thew possible impact on EPI and the Group, 1suncertain In the event that the
programme were cancelled, at December 31, 2009, the Group's balance sheet included net assets of £17m in relation te the programme, which
would require impairment
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104 ___ Notes to the consolidated financial statements - continued

22 Related party transactions

2009 2008
£m £m

Sales of goods and services to joint ventures and associates 2,136 1,555
Purchases of goods and services from joint ventures and associates (1,800) {1 482),
Operating lease payments to joint ventures and associates (45) (36)
Guarantees of joint ventures and associates borrowings 15 13
Dvidends received from joint ventures and associates 77 59
RRSP receipts from joint ventures and associates 7 19
Interest receved from joint ventures and associates - 2
Other income receved from joint ventures and associates 52 102

The aggregated balances with Rolls-Royce Group plc and joint ventures are shown in notes 11 and 14 Transactions with Group pensicn schemes are

shown In note 17

in the course of normal operations, related party transactions entered 1nto by the Group have been contracted on an arms-length basis

Rolls-Royce Group plc 1s a non-trading holding company for Rolls-Royce ple

Key management personnel are deemed to be the directors and the members of the Group Executive as set out in the Annual report of

Rolls-Royce Group plc Remuneration for key management personnel is shown below

2009 2008

£m £m

Salanes and short-term benefts 1n ]
Post reurement schemes 2 2
Share-based payments 4 3
17 17
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23 Acquisitions and disposals

During the year, the Group acquired 58 per cent of the shares of Tidal Generation Limited {previously a joint venture with a Group interest of

42 percent) and 49 per cent of shares in Eurcpea Microfusioni Aerospaziall Sp A (previously a subsidiary with a Group interest of 51 per cent}
as summarnised below

Total
£m
Trade and cther recenvables 3
Cash at bank and in hand B 3
Trade and other payables {1
Net assets acquired 4
Goodwill ansing &
Acquisition Cost 10
Less cash in acquired businesses (3)
Cash outflow per cash flow statement 7
There were no significant fair value adjustments in respect of the net assets acquired
During the year, the Group disposed of its interests in a number of small businesses, as summarised below
=
Trade and other recenvables 2
Assets heid for resale 2
Net assets 4
Profit on sale or termination of businesses {21
Disposal proceeds 2
Receipt of proceeds deferred at December 31, 2008 1
Cash inflow per cash flow statement 3
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__ Company financial statements
December 31, 2009
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__Company balance sheet
At December 31, 2009

* Resiated
2005 2008
Notes £m £m
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 3 569 546
Tangible assets 4 1,041 1029
Investments - subsichiary undertakings 5 1,750 1647
Investments - joint ventures 5 51 71
Investments - other 5 49 46
3,460 3,339
Current assets
Stocks 6 1,240 1328
Debtors - amounts faling due within one year 7 2,183 2476
Debtors - amounis falling due after one year 7 932 1433
Other financial assets - amounts falling due within one year 10 14 217
Other financial assets — amounts falling due after one year 10 646 476
Short-term deposits 1,644 1456
Cash at bank and in hand 663 554
Assets held for resale 9 9
7.431 7949
Creditors - amounts faling due within one year
Borrowings 8 (511) (637
Other financial habilities 10 (158) {384}
Other creditors 9 (5.093) (5856}
(5,762) 6 917)
Net current assets 1,669 1,032
Total assets tess current habilitles 5129 4371
Creditors - amounis falling due after one year
Borrowings 8 (1,782) {1319
Other inancial habilities 10 (896) {2461)
Other creditors 9 (773) {792)
(3.451) (4 572)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 11 (99) {100}
Net assets/(labihties) excluding post-retirement schemes 1,579 (301}
Post retirement scheme surpluses 237 664
Post relirement scheme deficits {50} (32)
Net assets 1,766 331
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 14 326 326
Share premium account 15 631 631
Revaluaton reserve 15 47 51
Transition hedging reserve 15 - 20
Other reserves B 15 167 167
Profit and loss account 15 595 (864)
Total shareholders’ funds 1,766 34

a5 feclassified denvanve financial instruments into those falhing due with and after one year - see note 10

* The Campa
The, ﬁ(aal stafements on pages 107 1o 126 were approved by the Board on February 10, 2018 and signed on s behalf by

Simon Robgrtsoh Charm Andrew Shilston Finance Director

BB
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__Statement of total recognised gains and losses
For the year ended December 31, 2009

2009 2008
£m £m
Profit/{loss) attnibutable to the shareholders of Rolls-Royce plic 1,937 {1.658)
Net actuanal {losses)/gains {1,176} 1,040
Movement in uniecognised post retirement surplus 491 (453)|
Movement in farr velue of available for sale assets - (8)
Related tax movements 192 (163}
Total recognised gains/{losses) relating to the year 1,444 (1240}
_Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds
For the year ended December 31, 2009
2009 2008
£m im
At January 1 n 1612
Total recognised gains/(losses) for the year 1,444 (1 240)
Transfer from transition hedging reserve {27} (78)
Share based payments adjustment n 15
Related tax movements 7 22
At December 31 1,766 33

— Rolls Reree plc __ Annual Report 2009




—Notes to the Company financial statements

__Notes to the Company financial statements

1 Significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards on the historical cost basis, modified to include the
revaluation of land and buildings

As permitted by the Companies Act 2006, a separate profit and loss account for the Company has not been included in these financial statements

As permitted by FRS 1 Cash flow statements, no cash flow statement has been prepared, as a consolidated cash flow statement has been prepared by
the ultimate parent company

Some small adjustments have been made to comparative figures 1o put them on a consistent basis with the current year

Revenue recognition
Revenues comprise sales 1o external customers after discounts, and excluding vatue added tax

Sales of products are recogrised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred to the customer, the sales price
agreed and the receipt of payment can be assured

Sales of services and Jong-term contracts are recognised when the outcome of the transaction can be reliably esumated Revenue is recogrised by
reference to the stage of completion based on services performed to date as a percentage of the total contractual obligation The assessment of the
stage of compleuon 1s dependent on the nature of the contract, but will generally be based on costs incurred to the extent these relate to services
performed up to the reporting date, achievement of cantractual milestones where appropriate, or flying hours or equivalent for long-term aftermarket
arrangements

Linked sales of preduct and services are treated as a single long-term contract where these components have been negouated as a single commercial
package and are so closely interrelated that they do not operate independently of each other and are considered to form a single project with an
overall profit margin Revenue 1s recognised on the same basis as far other sales of products and services as described above

Full proviston 1s made for any esiimated losses to completon of contracts having regard 1o the overall substance of the arrangements

Progress payments ieceived on long-term contracts, when greater than recorded turnover, are deducted from the value of work 1n progress except to
the extent that payments on account exceed the value of wark 10 progress on any contract where the excess s in¢luded in creditors The amount by
which recorded turnover of long-term contracts 15 1n excess of payments on account is classified as'amounts recoverable on contracts'and 1s
separately disclosed within debtors

Government investment

Where a government or similar body has previously invested in a development programme, the Company treats payments to that body as royalty
payments, which are matched to related sales

Risk and revenue sharing partnerships (RRSPs)

From time-to-time, the Company enters into arrangements with partners who, in return for a share in future programme revenues or profits, make
cash payments that are not refundable (except under certain remote crrcumstances) Cash sums receved, which reimburse the Company for past
expenditure, are credited to other operatng income The arrangements also require partners 1o undertake development work and/or supply
components for use In the programmee at their own expense No accounting entnes are recorded where partners undertake such development work
or where programme components are supplied by partners because no obligation anses unless and until programme sales are made, instead,
payments to partners for their share in the programme are charged to cost of sales as programme revenues arise

The Company has arrangemenits with partners wha do not undertake development work or supply parts Such arrangements are considered to be
financial instruments as defined by FRS 25 Financialinstruments Presentation and are accounted for using the amorused cost method

Research and development

The charge to the profit and loss account consists of research and development expenditure incurred in the year, excluding known recoverable costs
on contracts, contributions 1o shared engineering programmes and application engineering Application engineenng expenditure, incurred in the
adaptation of existing technology to new producis, 15 capitalised and amorused over the programme life, up to a maximum of 15 years, whare both
the technical and commercial risks are considered to be sufficiently low

Interest
Interest recevable/payable 1s credited/charged to the profit and loss account using the effectve interest method

—Pols-Roye ple AL fepn 2008




110 __ Notes to the Company financlal statements - continued

1 Significant accounting policies {continued)

Taxation

Provision for taxation 15 made at the current rate and for deferred taxation at the projected rate on all uming differences that have ongmated, but not
reversed at the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 15 calculated using the enacted or substanively enacted rates that are expected to apply when the asset or liabifity 1s settled

Deferred tax assets are recognised only 1o the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profits witl be availabie against which the assets can be
utilised

Forelgn currency translation

Transactions In overseas currencies are translated into local currency at the exchange rate ruling on the date of the transaction Monetary assets and
habdiies denominated in foreign currencias are translated into sterhing at the rate ruling at the year-end Exchange differences arnsing on foreign
exchange transactions and the retransiation of assets and labiities into steriing at the rate ruling at the year-end are taken into account in
determining profit on ordinary activities before taxation

Financial instruments
FRS 26 Ainancialinstruments recognition and measurement requires the classificauen of financial Instruments into separate categories for which the |
accounting requirement is different Rolls-Royce has classified its financial instruments as follows
- Fixed deposits principaily comprising funds held with banks and other financal institutions, are classified as loans and recewvables
- Investrnents (other than interests in joint ventures and fixed deposis) and short-term deposits {other than fixed deposits) are dlassified as
avallable for sale
- Borrowings, trade creditors and financal RRSPs are ¢lassified as other liabilities
- Denvatives comprising foreign exchange contracts, interest rate swaps and commodity swaps are classified as held for trading

Financial instruments are recognised at the contract date and initally measured at fair value Their subsequent measurement depends on therr

classification

~ Loans and recewvabtes and other liabilties are held at amorused cost and not revalued (except for changes n exchange rates, which are included
1n the profit and loss account) unless they are included in a far value hedge accounting relationship Where such a relationship exists, the
instruments are revalued in respect of the nisk being hedged If instrumenits held at amortised cost are hedged, generally by interest rate swaps,
and the hedges are effective, the carrying values are adjusted for changes in fair value, which are included 1n the profit and loss account

- Availlable for sale assets are held at fair value Changes in farr value ansing from changes in exchange rates are included 1n the profit and loss |
account Al other changes In farr value are taken ta reserves On disposal, the accumulated changes in value recorded in reserves are included in
the gain or loss recorded in the profit and loss account

- Held for trading nstruments are held at farr value Changes in fair value are included in the profit and loss account unless the instrument is
included in a cash flow hedge If the instruments are included in a cash flow hedging relationship, which 1s effective, changes in value are taken to
reserves When the hedged forecast transaction occurs, amounts previously recorded in reserves are recogrised in the profit and loss account

Financial instruments are derecogrised on expiry or when all contractual nights and obhigations are transferred

Hedge accounting

The Company does not apply hedge accounting in respect of forward foreign exchange contracts held to manage the cash flow exposures of
forecast future transacuions denominated in forexgn currencies

The Company does not apply hedge accounting in respect of commodity swaps held 1o manage the cash flow exposures of forecast future
transactions in those cammadities

The Company applies hedge accounting 1n respect of transactions entered into to manage the fair value and cash flow exposures of 1ts borrowings
Forward foreign exchange contracts are held 1o manage the farr value exposures of borrowings denominated in fareign currencies and are
designated as far value hedges [nterest rate swaps are held to manage the interest rate exposures and are designated as fair value or cash flow
hedges of fixed and floating rate borrowings respectively

Changes in the farr values of dervatives designated as fair value hedges and changes in fair value of the related hedged item are recognised directly
in the profit and loss account

Changes in the fair values of dervaiives that are designated as cash flow hedges and are effectve are recogrised directly in reserves Any
ineffectiveness in the hedging relationships 1s included 1n the profit and loss account The amounts deferred 1n reserves are recognised in the profit
and loss account to match the recagnition of the hedged item
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___Notes to the Company financial statements - continued

1 Significant accounting policies {continued)

Hedge accounting 15 discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or 1s sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer qualkfies for hedge
accounting At that time, for cash flow hedges and If the forecast transaction remains probable, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging
mstrument recognised in reserves, 1s retained in reserves until the farecast transaction occurs If a hedged transaction 1s no longer expected o occuy,
the net cumulative gam ar loss previously recegrused in reserves 1s transferred to the profit and loss account

The portion of a gain o loss on an instrument used 10 hedge a net iInvestment i a foreign operation that 1s determined to be an effective hedge 15
recogrused directly in reserves The ineffective portion 1s recogrised immediately in the profit and loss account

Unul December 31 2004 the Company applied hedge accounting for forecast foreign exchange transactions and commodity exposures in
accordance with UK Accaunting Standards On January 1, 2005, the farr values of derivatives used for hedging these exposures were included in the
transition hedging reserve This reserve 1s released to the profit and loss account based on the designation of the hedges on January 1, 2005

Certification costs and participation fees

Costs incurred in respect of meeung regulatory certficaton requirernents for new cwil engine/arrcraft combinauons and payments made 1o arrframe
manufacturers for this, and participation fees, are carried forward in Intangible assets 1o the extent that they can be recovered out of future sales and
are charged to the profit and loss account aver the programme life, up 1o a maximum of 15 years from the entry into service of the product

Software
The cost of acquinng software that 1s not specific to an item of tangible fixed assets is classified as an intangible asset

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and any provision for impairments in value

Depreciation 1s provided on a straight-line basis to write-off the cost or valuation, less the estimated residual value, over the estimated useful life
Esumated useful lives are as follows
) Land and buildings, as advised by the Group's professional valuers
a) Freehold buildings - five 10 45 years (average 24 years)
b) Leasehold land and buildings — iower of valuers'estimates or period of lease
¢} Neodeprecation s provided in respect of freehold land
1) Plant and equipment - five to 25 years {average 14 years)
ng)  Awcraft and engines - five to 20 years (average 16 year)
) No depreciation 1s provided on assets in the course of construction

Impairment of fixed assets
Impairment of fixed assets is considered in accordance with FRS 11 impairment of fixed assets and goodwill Where the asset does not generate cash
flows that are ndependent of other assets, impairment 1s considered for the iIncome-generating unit to which the asset belongs

Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually Other fixed assets are assessed for any indications of impatrment
annually If any indication of impairment is identified, an imparment test 1s performed 1o estimate the recoverable amount

Recoverable amount 1s the igher of value in use or farr value less costs 1o sell - if this is readily available The value In use Is the present vatue of future
cash flows using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the urme value of money and the rnsk specific to the asset

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or Income-generaung unit) 1s estimated to be below the carrying value, the carrying value 1s reduced to the
recoverable amount and the impairment loss recognised as an expense
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112 ___ Notes to the Company financial statements - continued

1 Significant accounting poticies (continued)

Accounting for leases

) Aslessee

Assets financed by leasing agreements that give nghts approximating to ownership {finance Yeases} have been capitalised at amounts equal o the
onginal cost of the assets to the lessors and depreciation provided an the basis of the Company depreciation policy The capital elements of future
obligations under finance leases are included as habilities in the balance sheet and the current year's interest element, having been allocated to
accounting periods to give a constant periodic rate of charge on the outstanding balance, 1s charged to the profit and loss account

The annual payments under all other lease arrangements, known as operating leases, are charged to the profit and loss account on a
straight-line basis

) As Lessor

Amaounts recevable under finance leases are included under debtors and represent the total amount outstanding under lease agreements less
unearned income Finance lease income, having been allocated to accounting perods te give a constant perniodic rate of return on the net cash
investment, I1s included in turnover

Rentals receivable under operating leases are included 1in turnover on a straight-hine basis

Stock

Stock and work in progress are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value on a first-in first-out basis Cost comprises direct matenals and,
where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads, Including depreciation of property, plant and equipment, that have been incurred in
bringing the inventories to therr present location and condiion Net realisable value represents the estimated selling prices less all esumated costs of
completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of 8 past event, and 1t 15 probable that the Company will be required
10 settle that obhgation Provisions are measured at the drrectors' best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the cbligation at the balance
sheet date, and are discountad to present value where the effect 1s material

Post-retirement benefits

Pensions and similar benefits are accounted for under FRS 17 Post-retirement benefits For defined benefit plans, obligations are measured at
discounted present value whilst plan assets are recorded at fair value The service and finanaing costs of such plans are recognised separately in the
profit and loss account, service costs are spread systematically over the lives of employees and financing costs are recognised in the penods in which
they anse Actuanal gains and losses are recognised immediately in the statement of total recognised gains and losses

Payrments to defined contribution schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due

Share-based payments

The Company participates in Rolls-Royce Group plc employee share-based payment arrangements These are equity-settled arrangements and are
measured at fair value (excluding the effect of non-market based vesting conditions) at the date of grant The fair value is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Company’s estimate of shares or options that will eventually vest The costs of these share-based
payments are treated as a capital contribution from the parent company Any payments made by the Company to Its parent company, In respect

of these arrangements, are treated as a return of this capital contribution

The fair values of the share-based payment arrangements are measured as follows

1) ShareSave — using the binomial pricing method,

1} Performance Share Plan - using a pricing model adjusted to reflect non-entitlement to dividends {or equivalent) and the TSR
market-based condiuon,

my Annual performance Related Award plan and free shares under the Share Incenuve plan - share price on the date of the award

See note 17 for further description of the share-based payment plans
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2 Emoluments of directors

2009 2008
Highest paid Other|  Highest paid Other
director directors diregor directors
£000 £000 £000 £000
Aggregate emaluments excluding deferred share plans 1,110 3,638 1125 3526
Aggregate amounts relaung to deferred share ptans 837 1,361 1402 1801
Aggregate value of Company contnbutions to Company defined cantribution pensions schemes - 524 - 558
Accrued pension of highest paid director 450 - 449 -
Gans realised on exercise of share options - 51 - 9
2009 2008
Number Number
Number of directors with accruing revrement benefiss
Defined contnbution schemes 2 2
Defined benefit schemes 2 2
Number of directors with enhanced protection nghts within defined benefit schemes 2 2
Number of directors exercising share options 2 1
Number of directors receving shares as part of iong-term incentives schemes 5 5
' Member of defined benefit scherme, started to recerve pension on February 1 2008
1 Includes gains under the ShareSave plan
* Two dwectors were contnbuting members of both defined contribution and defined benefit schemes (2008 two directors)
3 Intangible assets
Certification
casts and
participatton Software
fees and other Total
£m £m £m
Cost
At January 1, 2009 526 2n 737
Additrons 38 22 60
At December 31, 2009 564 233 797
Accumulated amortisation
At January 1, 2009 152 39 191
Provided dunag the year 13 4 37
At December 31, 2009 165 63 228
Net book value at December 31, 2009 399 170 569
Net book value at January 1 2009 374 172 546
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4 Tangible assets
Land and Plant and Alrcratt and In course
buildings equipment engines of construction Total
£m £m £m £m Em
Cost or valuation
At January 1, 2009 407 1,282 41 127 1,857
Additions 3 51 18 71 143
Reclassifications 6 51 4 61) -
Transferred to Assets held for sale’ (12) - - - {12)
Disposals/wrie-offs 0] (62) (28) - (92)
At December 31, 2009 402 1,322 35 137 1,896
Accumulated depreciation
At January 1, 2009 116 708 4 - 828
Provided during the year 14 84 4 - 102
Transferred 10 'Assets held for sale {12) - - - (12)
Disposals/wriie-offs (1} (59) (3) - 63)
At December 31, 2009 117 733 5 - 855
Net book value at December 31, 2009 285 589 30 137 1,041
Net bock value at January 1 2009 291 574 37 127 1029
2009 3008
Tangible fixed assets inctude im fm
Net book value of finance leased assets 13 17
Non-depreciable land 47 57
Land and buildings at cost or valuaticn comprise
Cost 250 248
Valuation at December 31, 1996 152 159
402 407
Land and bulldings at net book value comprise
Freehold 279 284
Long leasehoid 4 5
Short leasehold 2 2
285 291
On an histoncal cost basis the net book value of land and buildings would have been as follows
Cost 386 390
Depreciation {148) {1394
238 251
Capuai expenditure commitments — contracted but not provided for 82 a5
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5 Investments

115

Subsidiary Joint
undertakings’ ventures? Other
Unlisted
Shares Shares investments
at cost® arcost Loans Total at cost
£m £m £m £m £m
At January 1, 2009 1,647 56 5 Al 46
Additions 87 1 1 2 -
Transfer to other investments™ - (5} [AM 16} 4
Transfer to subsidiary undertakings’ 16 (16} - (16} -
Impairment - - - - ()
At December 31, 2009 1,750 46 H 51 49

* The principal subskdiary undertakings are listed on page 127
i The principal josnt ventures are listed on pages 128 and 129
* The Company has guaranteed the uncalled share capital of Mighungale Insurance Limited one of 15 subsidianes. At December 31 2009 this guarantee was £25m (2008 £25m)

* During the year the Company reduced 11§ ownership interast in a joint venture 1o that of an investment The difference between values attrbutable 10 ths nvestment 15 due to the companies share of post

acquisition reserves which form part of the cost of investment when recorded within Other Investments

6 Stocks

2009 2008
£m £m
Raw matenals 106 44
Work in progress 303 368
Long-term contracts work in progress 15 2
Frrushed goods 800 881
Payments on account 16 13
1,240 1,328

7 Debtors
Falting due within one year Falling due after one vear
2009 2008 2009 2008
£m im £fm Em
Trade debiors 315 408 3 3
Amounts recoverable on contracts i) - 609 578
Amounis owed by parent undertaking 72 - - -
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 1,040 1392 - -
Amounts owed by joint ventures and associates 455 394 5 5
Deferred tax assets (note 12) - - 292 794
Other debtors 146 202 - 15
Prepayments and accrued income 77 80 25 38
2,183 2476 932 1433
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8 Borrowings
Falling due within one year Falling due after one year

2009 2008 2009 2008
£m im £m Emn
Unsecured
Overdrafts 3N 634 - -
Bank toans - - 200 -
743% Notes 2016 £200m - - 200 200
584% Notes 2010 USS187m! 120 - - 136
6 38% Notes 2013 US5230m! - - 155 178
6 55% Notes 2015 US583m’ - - 57 a7
4'/,% Notes 2011 €750m7 - - 677 738
6 75% Notes 2019 £500m - - 493 -
Secured
Oblhgations under finance leases?
Less than one year - E] - -
511 637 1,792 1319
Repayable
Between one and two years - otherwise 677 136
Between two and five years — otherwise 355 816
After five years — otherwise 750 267
1,782 1319

' These notes are subyect 1o nterest rate swap agreements under which the Company has undertaken to pay floating rates of interest and currency swaps which form a fair value hedge

? These notes are the subject of swap agreements under which counterparties have undertaken to pay amounts at fixed rates of interest and exchange in consideraton far amounts payable at vanable rates
of interest and at fixed exchange razes

3 Obhgatians under finance leases are secured by related leased assers

? Other cred Itors Falling due within one year Falling due after one year
200% 2008 2009 2008

£m Em im £m

Payments received on account’ 387 383 525 547
Trade Creditors 426 431 - -
Arnounts owed to parent undertaking - 168 - -
Amecunts owed 10 subsidiary undertakings 2,211 2995 - -
Amounts owed 10 joint ventures 258 n 2 4
Corporate taxation 95 101 - -
Other taxation and social secunty 38 18 - B
Other crediters 832 905 69 150
Accruals and deferred income 846 574 177 51
5,093 5896 773 792

'Includes payments recerved from joint ventures 161 209 239 107
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10 Other financial assets and liabilities
Dertaifs of the Company's policies on the use of financral instruments are given in the accounting polictes on page 110

The Company adopted FRS 25 and FRS 26 Financiol instruments prospectively from January 1, 2005 Consistent with the presentation of such amounts
in the consaofidated financial staternents, in the current penod the Company has reconsidered the classification of its derivative financial instruments
in the balance sheet between amounts due within one year and after one year Those derivatives with settlement dates greater than 12 months from
the balance sheet date are now classified as due greater than one year Previously all derivative instruments wese classified as current Comparatives
have been represented consistently The effect s that financial assets comprising foreign exchange contracts (£415m) and interest rate contracts
(£278m) were previously reported as assets falling due within one year, and financial labilities compnsing foreign exchange contracts (£2,367m),
commodity contracts (E89m) and interest rate contracts {(£4m) were previously reported as habihues faling due within one year

The farr values of derivative financial instruments held by the Company are as follows

Foreign Interest
exchange Commodity rate Financlal
contracts contracts contracts RRSPs Total
im £m im £m £m
At December 31, 2009
Assets - amounts falling due within one year 106 4 4 - 114
Assets — amounts faling due after one year 438 1t 197 - 646
Liabiities ~ amounits falling due within one year o7 {11} - {50 (158}
Liabilities — amounts falling due after one year {617) {15} (2} (262} {896},
{170) [} 199 {312} {294))
At December 31, 2008
Assets - amounts falling due within one year 217 - - - 217
Assets - amaunts falling due after one year 198 - 278 - 476
Liakylines — amounts falling due within one year 271 (38} 2 (75) {384)
Liabihyies - amounts falling due afier one year {2 096) (53} {2) (3100 (2461)
{1 952) (89} 274 (385) (2152

Foreign exchange and commodity financial instruments

The Company uses various financial Instruments to manage its exposure to movements in forexgn exchange rates The Company uses commodity
swaps 10 manage Its expasure 10 movements in the price of commadities (jet fuel and base metals) Frem January 1, 2005, the Company has not
included foreign exchange or commodity financial iInstruments in any cash flow hedging relationships for accounting purposes To hedge the
currency nsk associated with a borrowing denominated in US dollars, the Company has currency dervatives designated as part of a far value hedge

Maovements In the fair values of foreign exchange and commodity financial instruments were as follows

Forelgn
exchange Commodity
instruments  [nstruments
£m im
At January 1, 2008 257 19
Fair value changes (o dervative contracts notin accounting hedaing relationships (2044} (96)
Fair value changes to far value hedges' 83 -
Fair value of dervative contracts assumed on formation of joint venture 24 -
Farr value of contracts setifed (264} (32)
At January 1, 2009 (1,952) (89)
Farr value changes to dervative contracts not In accounting hedging relationsh ips o . 1562 52
Farr value changes to far value hedges' (33 -
Fair value of contracts settled 253 26
At December 31, 2009 {170} {11}

! Profit on related hedged irerns £33m (2008 £(83)m loss)

— PRolls-Royge plc —Annualreport 2009

117



118 __ Notes to the Company financial statements - continued

10 Other financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Interest rate financial instruments

The Company uses interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements and interest rate caps to manage its exposure to movements In interest rates Where
the effectiveness of the hedge relationship in a cash flow hedge 1s demonstrated, changes in the fair value that are deemed effective are included in
the hedging reserve and released to match actual payments on the hedged item

Movements in the farr values of interest rate financial instrements were as follows

Inctuded in Other

falrvatue | Interestrate

hedging financial

Total | relationships | Instruments

£m £m £m
At January 1 2008 39 42 {3)
Changes during the year 235 236 {1)
At January 1, 2009 274 278 (4
Changes duning the year (75} 77 2
At December 31, 2009 199 201 (2

Where applicable, market values have been used to determine fair values Where market values are not avallable, fair values have been calculated by
discounung expected future cash flows at prevailing interest rates and translating at prevailing exchange rates

Finanaal nsk and revenue sharing partnerships (RRSPs)

The Company has financial labilines arising from financial RRSPs These financial labilities are valued at each reporting date using the amorused cost
method This invalves calculating the present value of the forecast cash flows of the arrangements using the internal rate of return at the inception of
the arrangemenits as the discount rate

Moverments in the amorused cost values of financial RRSPs are as follows

2009 2008

im £m

At January 1 {385} (31 7)

Cash paid to partners 57 74

Financing charge (22} (26)

Exchange adjustments 44 (16)

Changes in forecast payments (3] ~

At December 31 (312) (385)
11 Prowisions for habilities and charges

At Unused Charged At

December 31 amounts  to profit and December 31,

2008 reversed  loss account Utilised 2009

£m £m £m £m £m

Warranties and guaraniees 27 - 7 (5) 29

Centract loss - - 5 - 5

Customer financing 58 - 14 {15} 57

Restructunng 15 {6) 8 {9)| 8

100 (6} 34 {29) 99

Provisions for warranties and guarantees primarily relate to products sold and generally cover a peniod of up 10 three years
Provisions for contract loss and restructuring are generally expected to be utiised within two years
Customer financing provisions cover guarantees provided for asset values and/or financing as described in note 18 Timing of uulisauon 1s uncertain
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_ Notes to the Company financial statements - continued

12 Deferred taxation

£m
At January 1, 2009 548
Amount credited to profit and loss account (520
Amount credited to siatement of total recogmised gauns and losses 192
At December 31, 2009 220

There are other deferred tax assets wotaling £102m (2008 £102m) that have not been recognised on the basis that their future economic benefit

1S Unceramn

The undistnbuted profits of overseas subsidiary undertakings and joint ventures may be liable to overseas taxes and/or United Kingdom tax {after
allowing for doubie tax relief) if remitted as dwdends to the UK No deferred tax has been provided as there are currently no commitments 0 pay

such dividends

The analysis of the deferred tax pasition is as follows

2009 2008
£m £m
Fixed asset uming differences (3117} (119)
OCther timing differences 45 17
Pensions and other post-retirement scheme benefits (72) (246)
Foreign exchange and commaodity financial assets and latilities 54 655
Losses 249 180
Advance corporation {ax 61 61
220 548
Included within
Debiars - amounts falling due after one year 292 794
Provisions - -
Post retirement scheme surpluses {92) {259)
Post-retrement scherme deficits 20 13
220 548

The above figures exclude taxation payable on capital gains which might arise from the sale of fixed assets at the values at which they are stated In

the Company's balance sheet
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120 ___ Notes to the Company financial statements - continued

13 Post-retirement benefits

Defined benefit schemes
For the defined benefit schemes the assets are held in separate trustee admunistered funds and employees are entitled to retrernent benefits based
on either thet: final or career average salarnies and length of service

The valuations of the defined benefit schemes are based on the most recent funding valuations, updated by the scheme actuaries to December 31,
2009 The most recent funding valuations of the main schemes were

Schemae Valuation date
Rolls-Royce Pension Fund (RRPF) March 31, 2009
Rolls Royce Group Pension Scherme Apni 5 2007
vickers Group Pension Scheme March 31 2007

The principal actuarial assumptions used at the balance sheet date were as follows

2009 2008

% %
Rate of ncrease in salaries 47 45
Rate of increase of pensions in payment 33 29
Discount rate 57 64
Expected rate of return on scheme assets 54 41
Inflation assumpuion 16 10

" Benefits accruing after April 5 2005 are assumed 10 Increase at a rate of 19 per cent

The discount rates are determined by reference 1o the market yields on AA rated corporate bonds For the main schemes, the rate s determined by
using the profile of forecast benefit payments to derve a weighted average discount rate from the yield curve For less significant schemes the rate 1s
determined as the market yield at the average duration of the forecast benefit payments The discount rates above are the weighted average of those
for each scheme, based ¢n the value of therr respective hakilities

The overall expected rate of return 1s calculated by weighting the indmidual returns expected from each asset class (see below) in accardance with the
actual asset balance in the schemes investment portfolios

The mortality assumptions adopted for the pension schemes are denved from the actuanal tables (PA92, other than RRPF which has adopted the
SAPS tables in its 2009 valuation), with 80 per cent of long coheort, published by the [nstitute of Actuaries, projected forward and, where appropniate,
adjusted to take account of the relevant scheme’s actual experience The resulting range of Iife expectancies in the principal schemes are as follows

Life expectancy from age 65
Current pensioner 196 years 10 23 5 years
Future pensioner 207 years 16 24 2 years

Other demographic assumptions have been set on advice frem the relevant actuary, having regard to the latest trends in scheme experience and
other relevant data The assumpnions are reviewed and updated as necessary as part of the penodic actuanal valuation of the schemes
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_— Notes to the Company financlal statements - continued 12

13 Post-retirement benefits (continued)

Amounts recognised in the balance sheet

2009 2008
£m im
Present value of funded obligations (6,714) {5719)
Fair value of scheme assets 7,048 7163
Unrecognised surplus' {75) (566)
Surplus/(deficit) 259 878
Relaied deferred tax (hability)/asset (72)) {246)
Net asset/{(lability) recognised in the balance sheet 187 632
Analysed as
Post-retirement scheme surpluses 237 664
Post-retrement scheme deficits {50) (32)
187 632

' Where a surplus has ansen on a scheme 1n accordance with FRS 17 Retirement benefits the surplusis recognised as an asset only if it represents a future economic benefit available to the Company Any
surplus in excess of thus benefiz 1s not recogrused in 1he balance sheet Surpluses have ansen largely as a result of differences between the actuanial and FRS 17 valuation assumptions

Changes in present value of defined benefit obligations

2009 2006
£m £m
Al January 1 {5,719) 6,335
Current service Cost ! R (94) {127y
Past service cost {2) (5}
Finance cost {355) {358)
Contributions by employees 3) (4}
Net benefits pad out 324 33
Actuanal gains (865 776
Transfers - 3
At December 31 {6,714) (5,719)
' The Cormpany made no ex-gratia payments directly 10 scheme membaers (2008 £8m)
Changes in fair value of scheme assets
2009 2008
£m im
At January 1 7,163 5626
Expected return on assets 285 352
Contrnibutions by employer 232 248
Coninibutions by employess 3 4
Benefits paid out (324} (331
Actuanal gains {311) 264
At December 31 7,048 7,163
Actual return on plan asseis {26) 616
The fair value of the scheme assets and the expected rates of return at Decernber 31, were as follows
2009 2008
Expected Market Expected Market |
rate of retum value | rate of return value
% £m % £m
LDI pertfoho! 50 5,736 35 5833
Equities 78 1,107 72 1141
Sovereign debt 45 18 i9 110
Corporate bonds 55 8 55 110
Cther 46 179 19 {31}
54 7,048 41 7163

' A portfolio of gt and swap contracts, backed by IBOR generaung assets, that is designed to hedge the majonty of the interest rate and inflation risks associated with the schermes abligations.
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13 Post-retirement benefits (continued)

The scheme assets do notinclude any financial instruments of the Rolis-Royce Group plc group, nor any property occupied by, or other assets used by,
the group

The expected rate of return for LDI portfolios 15 determined by the implicit yield on the portfolio at the balance sheet date

The expected rates of return on other indivtdual categories of scheme assets are determined by reference to gilt yields Equities and corporate bonds
are assumed to generate returns that exceed the return from gilts by 3 25 per cent and 100 per cent per annum respectively

The expected rates of return above are the weighted average of the rates for each scheme

Future contributions
The Company expects to contribute approximately £220m to its defined benefit schemes i 2010

Sensitivities

The investment strategies are designed to hedge the nisks from interest rates and inflation on an economic basis A reduction of 025 per cent in the
discount rate would increase the obhigations of the principal UK defined benefit schemes by approximately £243m An eguivalent movementin
interest rates would increase the fair value of the assets by approximately £290m The difference anses largely due 1o differences in the methods
used 1o value the obligauons for accounting and econemic purposes On an economig basis the correlation 15 1n excess of 80 per cent The principle
remaining risks refate to the assumptions for mortality and increases in salanies If the age raungs in respect of the principal UK defined benefit
schemes were increased by cne year, the scheme habilities would increase by £137m {f the rate of increase in salanies were 05 ger cent higher,
scheme liabilities would increase by £117m

History of defined benefit schemes
The history of the schemes for the current and prior years is as follows

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
£m im fm £m £m
Balance sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligations 6,714 (5719) {6,339) (5,785) (6102)
Fair value of scheme assets 7,048 7163 6,626 5101 4809
Unrecogmised surplus 75 (566) (113 - -
Asset/(deficit) 259 878 178 {684) {1 293)
Experience gains/(losses)
Actuanal {losses)/gains on scheme assets (311} 264 157 14 503
Expenence (iosses}/gains on scheme habiliues (865) 776 309 477 (745)
Movement (n unrecognised surplus 491 {453) {113) - -
Total amount recogrised in the statement of total recogrised gains and lasses (685 587 353 591 (242)
Cumulative amaount recognised In the statement of total recogmised gains and losses' (493 192 (395} {748) {1339)

' Since January 1 2002

Defined contribution schemes
The Company cperates a number of defined contribution schemes The total expense recognised in the profit and loss account was £7m (2008 £6m)

14 Share capital
Equity
ordinary shares Nominzl
of 20p each value
Milllons £m
Autharlsed
At January 1 and December 31, 2009 2,000 400
Issued and fully paid
At January 1, and December 31 2002 1,631 326
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15 Movements in capital and reserves

Non distributable reserves

Transition
Share Share  Revaluation hedging Other Profit and
capital premium reserve reserva' reserves | 10ss account Total equity
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At January 1, 2009 326 631 51 20 167 {854) 33
Total recogrised gaing relating 10 the year - - - - - 444 1444
Transfers between reserves - - {4) - - 4 -
Transfer from transition hedging reserve - - - 27) - - (27)
Share based payments adjustment - - - - - 1 11
Related tax movements - - - 7 - - 7
At December 31, 2009 326 6§31 47 0 167 595 1,766
! See accounting polickes note 1 - hedge accounting
16 Operating lease annual commitments
2009 2008
£m im
Leases of land and builldings which expire
Between one and five years 3 3
After five years 1 4
Other leases which expire
Within one year 1 -
Between one and five years 4 3

17 Share-based payments

Share-based payment plans in operation during the year
The Company participated in the followsng share-based payment plans of Rolls-Royce Group plc in operation dunng the year

Performance Share Plan (P5P)
This plan involves the award of shares to partcipants subject to performance conditions Yesting of the performance shares 1s based on the
achievament of both non-market based condiions (EPS and cash flow per share) and a market based performance condition (TSR)

ShareSave share option plan

Based on a three- or five-year monthly savings contract, eligible employees are granted share options with an exercise price of up to 20 per cent
below the share pnice when the contract is entered Into Vesting of the options 1s not subject to the achievement of a performance target In the UK,
the plan 1s HM Revenue & Customs approved Overseas, employees in 33 countries participate in ShareSave plans through arrengements which
provide breadly cornparable benefits to the UK plan From 2007 onwards, the overseas schemes are cash-settled schemes

Executive Share Option Plan (ESOP)
This plan involved the grant of market value share options to paracipants It expired in 2009 and no further grants may be made Rernaining options
under the plan are subject tc a non-market based performance condition (growth in EPS) and have @ maximum contractual Iife of ten years

Annual Performance Related Award (APRA) plan deferred shares

Deferred shares are awarded as part of the APRA plan One third of the value of any annual bonus 1s delivered in the form of a deferred share award
The release of deferred share awards 1s not dependent on the achievement of any further performance conditions other than that participants remain
emgloyed by the Group for two years from the date of the award in order to retain the full number of shares During the two-year deferral period,
parucipants are entitled to receve dividends, or equivalent, on the deferted shares For deferred share awards made from 2010 onwards, 40 per cent
of the value of any annual bonus will be delivered in the form of a deferred share award
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17 Share-based payments (continued)

Share Incentive Plan (5IP}

This 15 the Free Share'element of the UK Share Incentve Plan Eligible UK employees may receve shares as part of the Company component of any
bonus paid There are no conditions attached to the shares

The Company recogrised a tatal expense of £19m (2008 £24m})

The movements in awards under the vanous share plans are shown in the tables below

Number of shares

2009 2008

PSP Mililons Milhons
Qutstanding at January 1 78 87
Awarded dunng the year 60 28
Forfeited dunng the year {G5) 05)
Additional entitlements ansing from TSR perfermance - 0g
Vested duning the year {26) 41)
Quistanthng al Decernber 31 07 78
2009, 2008

Waelghted Weaighted

Number average Number average

of share exercise of share exercise

options price options prce

ShareSave Milllans Pence Millions Pence
Qutstanding at January 1 189 2BBp 295 241p
Granted dunng the year 75 387p - -
Forfeited duning the year {(13) 353p ©08) 334p
Exercised dunng the year (7 6) i7ip (98) 143p
Outstanding at December 31 175 381p 189 288p
Exer¢isable at December 31 - - 11 141p
2009 2008

Weighted Weighted

Number average Number average

of share exerclse of share exergise

options price aplions price

ESOP Millions Pence Millions Pence
Qutstanding at January 1 09 176p 10 1770
Forfeited duning the year - - - -
Exercised during the year {0.3) 205p 01) 184p
Qutstanding at December 31 06 165p 09 176p
Exercisable at December 31 06 165p 09 176p
Number of shares

2009 2008

Deferred shares under APRA Millions Millons
Outstanding ai January 1 14 18
Awarded during the year 12 08
Forferted during the year - -
Additional shares accrued from conversion of B Shares 01 -
Vested during the year (10} {12)
Cutstanding at December 31 17 14
Number of shares

2009 2008

Free shares under SIP Millions Mdhons
Awarded dunng the year 10 10

Options were exercised on a reguiar basts during the year The average share price duning the year was 386p (2008 382p)
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17 Share-based payments (continued)

Fair values

The weighted average farr values per share for PSP awards, ShareSave grants, APRA deferred share awards, and SIP Free Share awards in¢luded in the
expense for the year were as follows

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
PSP awards - 25% TSR uplift 253p 458p 557p 494p 282p
PSP awards - 5096 TSR uplift 282p n/a n/a n/a n/a
ShareSave - 3 year grants 144p - 230p - 131p
ShareSave - 5 year grants 167p - 264p - 154p
APRA deferred share awards 290p 440p 502p 448D 260p
SIP Free Share awards 330p 439p 499p 462p 257

Detalls of the assumptions used in the calculauon of these fair values are set out below Expected volatility 1s based on the hisiorical volatlity of the
Rolls-Royce Group plc share price over the seven years prior to the grant or award date Until 2007, expected dividends were based on payments 1o
shareholders over the five years prior to the grant or award date From 2008, expected dividends were based on payments to shareholders in respact
of the previous year

PSP awards

The fair value of shares awarded under the PSP are calculated using the market value of shares at the tme of the award, adjusted to take into account
non-entitlement to dividends (or equivalent) during the vesting penod and the TSR performance condition The PSP farr values were calculated using
the following assumptions

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Weighted average share price 260p 430p 5C1p 444p 263p
Expected dvidends 1470p 13 00p 830p 7892p 781p
volaulity 32% 29% 2% 32% 34%
Correlation 35% 29% 26% 199 19%
Expected e 3 years I years 3 years 3 years 3 years
Risk free interast rate 19% 41% 52% 43% 49%

The PSP has a TSR market-based performance condition, such that the Rolls-Royce Group plc TSR over the performance pernod will be compared

with the TSR of the companies constituting the FTSE 100 index on the date of grant If the Rolls-Royce Group plc TSR exceedds the median TSR of the
FTSE 100, the number of shares that vest will be increased by 25 per cent The fair value of an award of shares under the PSP has been adjusted to take
Into account this market-based performance condition using a pricing medel based on expectations about volaulity and the correlation of share price
returns in the group of FTSE 100 companies and which incorporates into the valuation the interdependency between share price performance and
TSR vesung This adjustment increases the farr value relauive to the share price at the date of grant

ShareSave awards
The fair value of options granted under the ShareSave plan are calculated using a binemial pricing model with the following assumptions

2009 2007 2005 2003

Weighted average share price 462p 553p 351p 73p
Exercise price 387p 416p 29p 142p
Volatility 36% 37% 40% 43%
Expected dvidends R 14 30p 280p 7 86p 76ip
Expected hfe' - 3 year ShareSave 33-38years| 33-38years| 33-3Byears| 32-37 years
- 5 year ShareSave 53-5Byears| 53-58years| 53-58years| 52-57 years

Risk free interest rate 2 4% 50% 44% 4 5%

' The binomial pnicing model assumes that parucipants will exercise options at the beginning of the six manth window if the share pnce 1s greater than the exercise price Otherwise It assumes that opLons
are hekd unul the expuranon of their contraciual term Ths results i an expected e that fafls somewhere between the start and end of the exescise window

Deferred shares under APRA and Free Shares under SIP
The fair value of shares awarded under these plans is calculated as the share price on the date of award
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18 Contingent liabilities

In connection with the sale of ts products the Company will, on some occasions, provide financing support for its customers The Company's
contingent liabilities relating to financing arrangements are spread over many years and relate to a number of customers and a broad
product peortfolio

Conungent habilimes are disclosed an a discounted basis As the directors consider the likelihood of these contngent habilities crystallising to be
rerote, this amount does not represent a value that 1s expected 1o crystalise However, the amounts are discounted at the Company’s borrowing rate
to reflect better the time span over which these exposures could anse The contingent habilities are denominated in US dollars As the Company does
not adopt cash flow hedge accounting for forecast foreign exchange transacuions, this amount is reported together with the sterling equivalent at the
reporting date spot raie

The discounted value of the total gross contingent liabilities relating to financing arrangements on all delivered arrcraft less insurance arrangements
and relevant provisions were

2009 2008

£m $m £m sm
Gross contingent habihties 704 1,137 775 1086
Conuingent habikines net of relevant security ' 134 217 155 222
Contingent habidies net of relevant security reduced by 50% ? 233 376 246 354
'Unrestncted cash collateral held as secunty 77 124 85 123

* Although sensitity calculations are complex the reduction of the refevant security by 20% lllustrates the sensitivity of the conungent liability to this assumption

There are aiso net conuingent habilities in respect of undelivered aircraft, but itis not considered practicable to estimate these as deliveries can be
many years in the future, and the relevant financaing will anly be put in place at the appropriate tme

Contingent habilities exist 1n respect of guarantees provided by the Company i the ordinary course of business for product delivery, performance and
reliability The Campany has, in the normal course of business, entered into arrangements in respect of export finance perfermance bonds, countertrade
obligations and minor miscellanecus items The Company 1s party to legal actions and claims which arnise in the ordinary course of business, some of
which are for substanual amounts As a consequence of the insolvency of an insurer as previousty reported, the Company 1s no longer fully insured
against known and potenual claims from employees who worked for certain of the Company’s UK based businesses for a penod prior to the acquisition
of those businesses by the Company While the outcome of some of these matters cannot precisely be foreseen, the directors do not expect any of
these arrangements, legal actions or claims after allowing for provisions already made, to result in significant loss to the Company

Where the Company enters into financial guaraniee contracts to guarantee the indebitedness of other comparies within 1ts group, the Company
considers these to be insurance arrangements, and accounts for themn as such In this respect, the Company treats the guarantee contract as a
conngent habidity until such time as 1t becomes probable that the Company will be required 1o make a payment under the guaraniee At

December 31, 2009, there were Company guarantees in respect of joint ventures amoeunting te £15m (2008 £13m)

The Company particpates in a Cash Pooling Arrangement Under the Pooling Arrangement the Company benefits from more favourable interest rates

than would be available outside of the Pocling Arrangement as well as more streamlined treasury functions As part of the Poaling Arrangement, the
Company cross-guarantees the borrowings of other pooling participants At December 31, 2009 these guarantees amounted to £35m (2008 £24my}

19 Related party transactions

The Company 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of Rolls-Royce Group plc and therefore has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 8 Refated party
disclosures not 1o disclose related party transacuons with its parent company and other group companies

There are na significant related party transacuons with non wholly owned group companies

The aggregated balances with joint ventures are shown in notes 7 and 9

20 Ultimate holding company

The ulumate holding company 15 Rolls-Royce Group plc incorporated in Great Britain The financial statements for Rolls-Royce Group plc may be
obtained from the Company Secretary, Rolls-Royce Group plc, 65 Buckingham Gate, London SWiE 6AT
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____Principal subsidiary undertakings

__Principal subsidiary undertakings
At December 31, 2009

Incorporated within the UK - directly held unless marked*

Optimized Systems and Solutiens Limited
Rolls-Royce Fuel Cell Systems Limited
Rolls-Royce International Limiteg

Rolls-Royce Leasing Limited

Rolls-Royce Marine Electrical Systems Limited®
Rolis-Royce Manne Power Operaticns Limited
Rolls-Royce Power Development Limited

Rolls Royce Power Engineening plc

Rolls Royce Total Care Services bimned

Tidal Generation Limited

127

Equipment health management and advanced data management services
Development of fuel cell systems

International support and commercial information services

Engine leasing

Marne electncal systerns

Nuclear submarine propulsicn systems

Generation of electnaity from independent power prajects

Energy and marine systems

Aero engine aftermarket support services

Development of tidal generation systems

The above companies operate principally in the UK and the effective Group interest is 100 per cent, cther than Rolls-Royce Fuel Cell Systemns Limited in

which it 1s 80 per cent

Incorporated overseas — directly held unless marked*

Brazl Rolls-Rayce Brasil Limitada Aero engine repair and overhaul

Canada Rolls-Royce Canada Limited* Industnal gas turbines and aere engine sales service and overhaul

China Rolls-Royce Marine (Shanghai) Limitec® Manufacture and supply of manne equipment

Finland Rolls-Rayce OY AB* Manufacture of manne winches and propeller systemns

France Rolls-Royce Civil Nuclear SAS* Instrumentation and control systems and one lifecycle management for
nuclear power plants

France Rolls-Royce Technical Support SARL* Aero engine progect support

Germany Rolls-Royce ODeutschland Ltd & Co KG* Aero engine design development and manufacture

Guernsey Nightingale Insurance Limited* Insurance services

India Rofls-Reyce India Private Limited® Diesel engine project management and customer support

India Roils-Royce Operations {India) Private Limited®  Engineering support services

Italy Europea Microfusioni Aerospaziali S p A Manufacture of gas turbine engine casungs

Norway Rolls-Royce Marine AS* Design and manufacture of ship equipment

Norway Scandinavian Electric Holding AS* Marine electrical systermns

Singapore Rolls-Royce Singapore Pre Limited* Energy and manne aftermarket support services

Sweden Rolls-Royce AB* Manufacture of marine propeller systems

us Data Systems & Selutions LLC* Instrumentation and control systers and one ifecycle management for
nuclear power ptants

s Optirmized Systems and Solutions Inc * Equipment health management and advanced data

. management services

us Rolls-Royce Commercial Marine Inc * Manne aftermarket sUppPOrt services

us Rolls-Royce Corporation® Design development and manufacture of gas turbine engines

us Rolls-Royce Crosspointe LLC* Manufacturing facility for aerc engine parts

us Rolls-Royce Energy Systems Inc * Energy turbine generator packages

us Rolls-Royce Engine Services — Oakland Inc* Aero engine reparr and overhaul

us Rolls-Royce Defense Services Inc * Aero engine repair and overhaul

us Rolls-Royce Maval Manne inc * Design and manufacture of manne equipment

us Seaworthy Systems Inc * Marine support services

The above companies operate principally in the country of therr incorporation

The effective Group interest s 100 per cent

A list of all subsidiary undertakings will be included in the Company's annual return to Companies House
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__Principal joint ventures and associates
At December 31, 2009

Joint ventures

Incorporated within the UK - directly held unless marked*

% of % of total
Class, class held equity held
Airtanker Holdings Limited
Strategic tanker aircraft PFi project Crdinary 20 20
Arrtanker Services Limited
Provision of aftermarket services for strategic tanker aircraft Crdinary 22 22
Alpha Partners Leasing Limited A Ordinary 100 }
30
Aero engine leasing B Ordinary -
Composite Technology & Applications Limited A Ordinary 100 } 51
Development of aero engine fan blades B Ordinary -
Gemistics Holdings Limited A Ordinary 100 } 50
Traller-mounted field mobile generator sets B Ordinary -
Rolls-Royce Goodnich Engine Control Systerns Lirnited*
Development and manufacture of aero engine controls Ordinary 50 50
Rolls Royce Snecma Limited (UK & France) AShares - } 50
Aero engine collaboration B Shares 100
Rolls-Royce Turbomeca Limited (UK & France) AShares - } 50
Aero engine collaboration BShares 100
Rolls Wood Group {Repair and Overhauls) Limited A Ordinary 100 } 50
Industnal gas turbine reparr and overhaul B Ordinary -
TRT Limited A Ordhinary - } 495
Aero engine turbine blade repair services B Crdinary 100
Turbine Surface Technolegies Limited A Crdinary - } 0
Aero engine turbine surface coatings B Ordinary 100
Turbe-Umon Limited (UK Germany & Italy) Orchinary 40 } 40
RB199 engine collaboration A Shares 375
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Principal joint ventures and associates - continued

__Principal joint ventures and associates (continued)

At December 31, 2009

Joint ventures

Incorporated overseas - directly held unless marked*

129

% of % of total
Class class held equity held
Chma Xian XR Aero Compenents Co Limited
Manufacturing facility for aero engine parts QOrdinary 49 49
Germany EFt Europrop International GmbH (effective interest 15 5%)
L ___ MOOMengine collaboration e Odmary 28 28
Germany EURQIET Turbo GmbH (UK, Germany, Italy & Spaln) {effectve. interest 39%)
£J200 engine collaborgtion Ordinary 33 33
Germany MTU Turbomeca Rolls-Royce GmbH (UK, France & Germany)
- o ... Mim3%0engnecollaboration e e Ordwary 333 B3
Germany N3 Engine Overhaul Services Verwanungsgesellschaﬁ mbh*
Aero engine repair and overhaul Ordinary 50 50
Hong Kong Heng Kong Aero Engine Services Limited™
.. __ . hercengrnereparandoverhad -~ Odmnay 45 45
Israel Techjet Aerofoils Limited* A Ordinary 50 50
Manufacture of compressor aerofonls for gas turbines B Ordinary 50
Malaysia Advanced Gas Turbine Solutions Sdn Bhd*
e . __Industral gasurbine aftermarket services L L L. - . Drdinary e .8
Singapore International Engine Component Gverhaul Pte Limited®
Aero engine repair ang overhaul Crdinary 50 50
Singapore Singapore Aerc Engine Services Private Limited (effective interest 39%)*
o o Aeroengine reparangdoverhaod Ordinary 30 30
Spain Industnia de Turbo Propulsores SA
) ) Aero enging component manufacture and mantenance o ___ Ordinary 469 469
Switzerland IAE Internaticnal Aero Engines AG (UK, Germany Japan & US) A Shares 100
V2500 engine collaboration B Shares - 325
C Shares -
- - N T, S . . DShaes -4
us Alpha Leasing {US) LLC, Afpha Leasing {US) (No 2) LLC
Alpha Leasing {US) (No 4} LLC, Alpha Leasing {US) {No 5) LLC
Rolls-Royce & Partners Finance (US) LLC, Rolls-Royce & Partners Finance (US} {No 2) LLC®
- nm - __.. heoengineleasing U L1 L1 S L )
us Exastar LLC*
Business to business internet exchange Partnership 176 -
us GE Rolls Royce Fighter Engine Team LLC*
o __ _ fFi136development engine for the Joint Strike Fighter (J5F) Programme .~ _Partnership, 40 -
us Texas Aero Engine Services, LLC*
Aero engine repair and overhaul Partnership 50 -
us Williams-Rolls Inc (UK & US)*
Small aero engine collaboration Commaon 15 15
Unincorporated overseas — held by subsidiary undertaking
us Light Helicopter Turbine Engine Company (LHTEC)
Rolls-Royce Corporation has a 50 per cent interest in this unincorporated
partnership which was formed to develop and market jointly the T8O engine
Associate
Incorporated overseas - held by subsidiary undertaking
Nerway ODIM ASA
Provider of specialist manine hangdling systems Ordinary 33 33

The countries of principal operations are stated in brackets after the name of the company, if not the country of incorporation
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